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Annex F. No. I.
REPORT OF CAPTAIN JAMES INCHBIRD

.

Public Department Diary Duplicate No. 134 of 1740 pages 53 to 6o.

ARRIVED at Sion on his Return from the Maratta Countrys Captain
James Inchbird who instantly forwarded the following relations of his
Journey to the President.

Hon'ble Sir,

UproN my Arrival over the Boregauts, I learnt that the Bajerow had
taken the field near Nagar, and that Chimnajee Appah had marched
from Poona to Join the Bajerow, in regard to which I had many various
Reports that I thought the most effective way to meet with him of
either of them would be to despatch one of the Horseman with a letter
to Appah to advise him that I had urgent Business with him, that I
should pursue the Road to Poonah, without I met with advise from him
to the contrary, at the same Time delivered the Messenger your Honrs.
Letter te Chimnajee that it might have the more weight on him for the
Quicker Dispatch of my Negotiation, then pursued my way te Poonah:
but for Brevity’s Sake I shall omit what passed at Poonah, and pursue
Chimnajee and Bajerow who I reached in eleven days from my Departure
from Bombay and opened my Negotiation to them with the utter
most Caution. I received civil Treatment from them but am not able
to express their Pride and haughty despisal of the Portuguese and
talked as even Demaun Choul and also Goa were theirs; however I lost
no Time to Convince them their good Effects a Peace would be to their
Conquests, on the other hand [illegible] Treasure and blood it would cost
to reduce the places offered them [illigeble] upon granting the Portuguese
reasonable [illegible] Benifits that would arise from it both to [illegible]
was Master of in promoting and [illegible] and strong efforts from many
Partys, especially from Vicant Raw, who would undertake to reduce Goa,
and proposed them many Terms in fear of Losing that Government, and
produced Letter from Kempsaunt pressing the Bajeraw to vigorously
push on the War against Goa Island, and that he would undertake to
find ways and Means to get their Forces upon that Island, from which
they observed when they have cut off the Root what would become
of the Branches, and that they were determined to reduce Damaun
and Choul the Fortress being shut up but their Forces were deprived
the Benefit of the country, and that they was determined as soon as they
could conveniently to invest them both, and promised them selves and
easy Conquest. These seeming Resolutions and the others circumstances
put me out of all Hopes to obtain any Thing for them, ‘till I discovered
from Chimnajee by his often sending for me (which were only bear sus-
picions of mine) that he was inclined to grant them some Terms, believing
he had not forgot the Loss of Blood and Treasure in Reducing Bassein,
I often observing to him the superior strength of that Place to Bassein,
and the Danger of their refusing these offers of that important Place
falling into other hands, and all that I could urge upon that Head. My
first proposals were their Quitting of Goa and all Demands and preten-
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tions what-soever. Damaun and its Limits; upon such conditions your
Honr would put Choul into their hands, accepting the artillery and ammu-
nition and the Portuguese making to them a perpetual Cession Bassein
with all its Dependencys. Those proposal they despised with great
Indignation, and was merry upon the offers made them of what they
had already Conquered and were in their possession. As to Choul they
observed it was supported before from. Damaun, Bassein and Goa being
only a bare Fortress without either Country or Revenues, therefore
despised it, and insisted upon the Evacuation of Damaun and forty Cent
upon the Revenue of Goa and all its Dependencys and three secure
places for the gathering of that Tribute and securing their Contract
which they had lately made with that Port on their suspension of
Arms, by which agreement they now owe them five Lacks of Rupees
Making slight of Choul and despising what they proposed, as not being
equivalent to which I demanded, from which the most convenient
Opportunity I could lay hold on. I lowered my demands, but found
little Effect, and could discover the little or no inclination they had to
come to Terms. I Employed Ragonaut to the uttermost of my Power to
discover their real Intentions, he being a man consulted in all their
affairs (especially the maritime.and new conquests) and they on the
other hand employing their Agents to discover the uttermost of my
Comurnission [illegible] these Topicks we continued searching each other
minds eight days [illegible] slow marches Inland to raise contributions,
and carrying [illegible] the many Days, assuring me of my Despatches,
we expressing [illegible] other making me a compliment for the trouble
fillegible] slighting all proposals in regard to the Portuguese ‘till at last
I found it necessary to let them know the uttermost of my power,
Expressing that no other Interest or conveniency induced your Honr to
this Mediation but a sincere Friendship and value we had for their
Interest: to which they made a suitable Return, but despise the Propos-
als, which were they should entirely quit Goa of all Tribute and Preten-
tions whatsoever, give up two Preganas for the support of Damaun, and
acceptance of the Forts of Choul and Morro as a Balance of all their
Demands: and in that I persisted tiil the fourth of January, at which Time
they despised everything and talked of nothing but despatching of me,
and rather raised their Demands than lowered them, and on the same Day
gave me a Sirpaw and told me they would despatch me, and gave me
their last proposals, which were to keep two places at Goa for the security
of the Tributes of forty Cent, to leave Damaun bare of any Revenue
whatsoever a free Excise of their religion at Goa upon which terms they
would accept of Choul and grant them Peace. I discovered their Inten-
tions were to keep both a fore and back door open to enter Goa at thetr
Pleasure. Finding their proposal of no Utility to the Portuguese persisted
in my Proposals as the uttermost of my power, and discovered notwith-
standing 1 had so often repeated that the artillery and munitions of
Choul must be withdrawn, that they had reserved that in their Breast,
and gave no answer to it, not so much as taking Notice of it, but were
resolved neither Gun Powder nor Ball should go out of the Place if they
came to an agreement. Thus stood affairs when T hourly expected to be
sent for to be dispatched, but discovered they were still in strong Debates
in regard to the Place, as I never omitted with all the Force I could
insinuate to them that the Portuguese could dispose of that Place with
great Utility to themselves, and that upon their Refusing them any
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Terms yvour Honrs, Power as a Mediater would end and that you must
in course wash your hands of it, therefore the steps your Honr had taken
T did not doubt but convinced them that if proceeded from no other
motive but a sincere Regard your Honr had for their Friendship and
Interest, and that in case the Portuguese should despose of that important
Place to other not in their Interest, they must impute any ill consequences
that may ensuc to any il Management of ours, but to the contrary
referring them to the before mentioned convincing Proofs of your Honrs.
sincerity and Friendship towards them, which I found took such an
effect and wrought upon them so much, that without sending for me
they held ... a Council for one day and a Night, upon Result of which
they sent for me, and had a Debate for three or four Hours Part of which
I heard, and found the Vincent Raw and his Counsellours still kept their
Resolutions in suspense, which Chimnajee Appah took up very smartly
and spoke very favourably of the [illegible] a good inoftensive use full
people, which induce [illegible] without being gratified in some measure;
from [illegible] Art of them People that they know when [illegible]
taken their Resolutions in private So soon as they had concluded I was
sent for into their Tent of Retirement, and Received compliments in
regard to their Condescensions to your Honrs Mediation, and that that
and nothing else induced them to grant the Portuguese following Terms
{also that your Honr must observe that you must be a Mediator between
the Kempsaunt and the Portuguese as you have been betwixt with them
and the Portuguese) and desire that your Honr would write to the Kemp-
saunt to send up a proper Person to Bombay to conclude the same
with them, and at the same another from the Portuguese promising at
the same Time they would lose ne opportunity in sending a proper
person to the Kempsaunt to prompt him at it, observing that Kemp-
saunt at least must not be lessened from their old standing of articles of
Peace between them two Nations, upon which they will give up all
Demands upon Goa the five Lack and Tribute of forty Cent upon the
Revenues and of all Dependencys thereabouts and grant one Pragana
for the Support of the Fortress of Damaun in which Ports and Places
they (the Portuguese) shall live peaceably, and shall enjoy the Fruits of
Peace in them places by Land, they allowing the same to the Morttas
by sea, a mutual peace on both sides in all Respects, upon consideration
of their putting the Forts of Choul and Morro into their Hands which
they have engaged me to do in Case the Portuguese approved of it,
and that a Peace was concluded on all sides, that 1s, that GGoa was eva-
cuated by them and the Kempsaunt and freed from all Demands,

The above is the materiall circumstances of my Negotiation, I having
had a long and fatiguing March to get at them and many Days March
with them, almost too much for the patience of Mankind to bear and
a hard and expeditious March from them begging your Honrs. Patience
‘till tomorrow for further satisfaction, believing that your Honr is
impatient to hear from me, have taken leave to send this to your Honr
by Serjeant Levick, being with uttermost Respect.—

Hon’ble 5ir
Your Honour's
Most obedient
Sion Fort Humble servant.

13th January 1739/40. JAMES INCHBIRD.
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THE article of Peace proposed by the Morattas referred to in the Artticles of
. peace proposed
foregoing Letter.— by Moratta.
AL Morattas will withdraw ali their Forces now employed in the
District of Goa that the Portuguese may possess their former

Boundarys that way in full ‘Tranquillity.—

zndly THE Portuguese shall in consequence thereof deliver up to the
Morattas the Fortification of Choul and other adjacent called
Morro.—

3rd  UntiL the Morattas are actually retired from the Parts near
Goa, the Fortress of Choul shall receive an equal Number of
Men appertaining to the English and said Morattas, then the
place shall be left in the Hands of the Latter, with all the Guns
thereunto belonging. ‘

4th  TuEe City of Damaun shall remain to the Portuguese and a share
of Land appropriated for its subsistence, but as the Morattas
have erected a new Fortress near the city, it shall stand.

5th  THE Portuguese shall not in any manner molest the Jurisdictions
of Bassein, Damaun, Tannah, Island of Salesett, Bellafloar,
and other Places in Possession of the Morattas, nor will the
Latter in any wise disturb the Territorys of the Portuguese
near Goa.

6th  THAT an accommmodation may be fixed between the Kempsaunt
and Portuguese they shall respectively send their People to
treat, but said Kempsaunt must enjoy what he was anciently
entitled to, and in Case the Portuguese insist otherwise the
Morattas esteem themselves obliged to favour him.—

7th  THE Kempsaunt shall enjoy the Places called Karzuem and
" Panellem as belonging to him long since, and be exempt from
paying any Tribute to the Portuguese.—

8th  Tae Portuguese shall aid the Morattas in their attempts on
Pondem Zambolly, Panchamall, Sundah and Bednure, and
should those Places with their Territorys fall to the Marattas,
the Portuguese shall not offer to give any Molestation.

gth  SHouLD the Morattas attack Sambajee Angria, the English and
Portuguese must assist with their Fleets,.—

roth For Establishing all Points, the Portuguese shall order up their
Secretary or Manager of their Revenues.—

1rth THE Gentoos Inhabiting Goa and its Districts shall be allowed
the free exercise of their Religion.—

12th THE Fleets of the Portuguese and Marattas shall not molest each
other.
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Annex F. No. 2
Public Department Diary (Duplicate} No. 13 A of 1740. Pages 64-65.

LETTER OF THE GOVERNOR OF BoMBAY TO THE VICEROY OF GOA

MAY IT PLEASE YOUR EXCELLY.

I immediately on the Receipt of your Favour of the Giving me full
Powers to treat the Badjerow, I deputed Captain James Inchhird to
him for that end, letting the said Captain into all the Particulars your
Excellency had imported to me at the same Time pressing him to adjust
in your Behalf the Conditions best attainable.

The Captain was obliged to follow Badjerow more than one hundred
Leagues, and after frequent Meetings found it impracticable to attain
other Conditions as a Plan for a peace than are contained in the enclosed
Paper, one part is in the Moratta Language as it came from Bajerow,
and the other translated by our People here.

‘Tis needless Informing your Excellency of the Haughtiness of the
Morattas, who in Discourse with the Captain frequently expressed their
Resolution to enter Goa, as then by the Roots being cut off, the Branches
would fall of course, and nothing but the want of money {which there
was a Prospect of beign soon possessed of) had retarded the execution
of their Design.

Kempsaunt they insist shall remain on the Terms he formerly enjoyed,
and it 1s apprehended that Point will not be given up by them, nor
that the Artillery or Ammunition be withdrawn from Choull or the
[illegible] denied the free Exercise of their Religion in your Dominion
in and [illegible] Goa.

The 3rd Article as to the manner of Vacating Choul, as well as the
lillegible] to Damaun 'tis presumed may be managed in a way not
disagreeable. [illegible] the Morattas will insist on Holding their new
Fortress erected thereabout. The 8th ’tis apprehended may be got over
entirely by your Excellency’s promising to stand neuter in the Efforts
they intend to apply against the Territorys therein noted.

On your Excellency’s weighing all circumstance you will please to
determine whether to appoint a proper person hither with full Powers
to conclude with the Morattas on the Plans now forwarded, or transmit
me a speedy and final answer for drafting a treaty, as at present we
are at entire Liberty to do either, but ’tis is absolutely necessary your
Excellency does impart to me with speed and clearness your Ultimate
Determinations as I am not without apprehensions that by Holding
matter in long suspence, we may be drawn into Disputes with them,
which is what we must avoid as directly contrary to our interest and
Welfare,

Should your Excellency approve of the Treaty, be pleased to transmit
the enclosed Letter Kempsaunt for his sending a proper Person forthwith
or otherwise let the said Letter be returned.

Your Frigate is now at the Choul for conveying hither the Brass
Artillery, which we shall keep here until we know what Issue attends
the Treaty prementioned, by which your Excellency will perceive how
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truly we consult the interest of your state, in preference to any immediate
Interest of our own,

I ought to have noted that in Case the Morattas Proposals are accepted,
they then will give up the whole Territorys about Goa and excuse the
paying the five lack of Rupees which they say your state has engaged
to pay.

I am &ca.
Bombay Castle STEPHEN Law.

the 16th January 1739/40.

Annex F. No. 3

TREATY OF 160!
Archives of India, Book No. 2 of Peaces, page 11q.

Treaty of Peace concluded between the Count of Ega, Viceroy and
Captain-General of India, and the Most Happy Balaji Rao Pandit
Pradhan (Nana), executed by the Secretary of State, Belchior Jose Vaz
de Carvalho, and the hon’ble Vistu Naique and Madagi Quensou, by
the necessary powers conferred on them, dated the zoth March, 1760.

Art. XV

“Whereas by the present Treaty of friendship between the Most Happv
and the Majestic State is renewed and ratified, both the powers under-
take reciprocally to forget completely any reasons for discord, hindrance
or previous clarms, and the capitulations clashing with the agreement of
this Treaty shall not have any effect.”

Annex F. No. 4

LETTER FrROM BaLaJl BAjt RAO, COMMONLY KNOWN AS NANA, TO THE
VICEROY, COUNT OF ALVA, DATED THE gTH NOVEMRER, I755?

“... I have received reports that you are sending your fleet to assist
the Illustrious Tulaji Angria, and it is not just that you should send your
Army for the assistance of the said Tulaji Angria, as there is between
me and you good exchange of friendship. The above-mentioned has
committed various disorders, and with a view to obtain a satisfaction
from him, I have appointed an army, in view of which fact you should
see to it that our friendship increases and on this matter the esteemed
Ganes Trimbak has already written to you, owing to which fact you
should not help the above-mentioned Angria...”

! Translation from Biker’s Collections of Treaties, Vol. VII, page 143.
? Translation from Biker's Collections of Treaties, Vol. VII, p. 42.

22
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Annex F. No. 5

LETTER FROM THE VICEROY, COUNT OF ALva, To Barayr Bajr Rao
PRADHAN, DATED THE 4TH JANUARY, 1756 1

‘... The news of the grand friend are always pleasant to me and these
with greater reason because Tucu Sinai informed to the grand friend all
the circumstances with contributed to the matter in which Tulaji Angria
took advantage of the protection of the Majestic State and about the
same I did not allow myself to be convinced about his friendship nor
would I seek to follow any patch which might change the good friendship
existing between the Majestic State and the grand friend, and even if
this had not meant a good reason, the knowledge of the bad faith of
Tulaji Angria would suffice; ... owing to which fact after withdrawing
even this small favour which in no way was opposed to the progress of
the grand friend you may be assured that on my part I always maintain
a like desire for our good friendship hoping that it may increase day by
day...”

Annex F. No. 6

LETTER FROM THE SECRETARY OF STATE, BELCHIOR JOSE Vaz DE CAR-
vaLHO TO BALAJI BATr Rao PRADHAN, DATED THE 4TH JANUARY,
17562

*... As regards the reports sent to the grand friend by the Commander
who is in the Angria territory, to the effect that the Majestic State has
given assistance to the said Angria for the defence of his territories, I can
assure you that it is inaccurate because even the guard, under Ismail
Khan, allowed to the said Angria was merely for the purpose of the
safety of his family with the express instruction not to fight against
the troops of the grand friend or with any other Captain with whom
we were in peace...”

Annex F. No. 7
Roval INSTRUCTIONS TO THE COUNT OF Louza®

“The Count of Ega was succeeded in the Government of India by the
Count of Louza who, however, died in Mozambique. In the Royal In-
structions which he carried with him on coming to India, bearing the
date of gth April 1763, the following passages are found, inter alia:

“You shall establish as a basis for all your plans, and all your actions
a firm and unshakable intention of preserving what exists, without even
giving a thought to anything that may smack of vestoration, and much less
congquest...

1 Translation from Biker’'s Collections of Treaties, Vol. VII, p. 43.
? Translation from Biker’s Collections of Treaties, Vol. VII, p. 44.
3 Translation from P. Pissurlencar: “Portuguesese Maratas - VI, page 44.
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“... You shall however observe these instructions with such a dis-
cretion, as never to give the slightest indication, either by words or
actions, that you have received such orders, because otherwise the result
would be opposite and you will be more easily subjected to provocations.
Therefore, you shall rather, owing to your aim of preserving the Country,
show outwardly that you are prepared for war, by maintaining the troops
in complete discipline, and the Fortresses garrisoned to the extent
permitted by the possibilities available to the State...

“Amongst them (the neighbouring rulers) the most powerful are the
Marathas, and hence, the ones who should be the object of your maost
urgent vigilance, because they are encouraged by the English, and pos-
sess forces much stronger than those of the State, and have excuses fo
break off, after the Count of Alva assisted, inconsiderately, the Angria, and
attacked the Citadel of Phonda, garrisoned by men of the same Nana, in
the war which he declared on Sunda, breaking the faith, so contrary fo my
Royal Orders, as well as to My Religious Intentions...”

Annex F. No. §

LETTER FROM THE SEGCRETARY OF STATE, FRANCISCO XAVIER DE MEN-
poNCcA Furtapo, TO THE VICEROY, COUNT OF EGA, DATED THE 26TH
MARCH, 17611

“... It being true that the decadence and the almost complete ruin
of that State was caused by ambitions for conquests made by your
predecessors without pondering on the fact that the vastness of the
dominions and the multiplicity of the fortresses would divide and con-
sequently weaken the forces which prudence advises should be maintained
united for upholding respect, without which the State cannot subsist,
as long as the time does not permit carrying out of the steps which
the said Master will necessarily take in due course, without wanting in
justice, with which we must conduct ourselves towards the neighbours,
contiguous to us, and without which no State can subsist and much less
prosper, His Majesty reiterates his directive, more strictly, to you that
his aim is to maintain always peace with the same neighbours; to keep
them satisfied as far as possible and to seek to extend the trade, and in
no way the dominions of the territory which their legitimate owners
should be allowed to cultivate as long as we obtain a frontier which will
be respected.

“In-another letter which you wrote on the said date of 3oth January
enclosing a document entitled ‘Memorandum of the Negotiations for
which purpose Jacques Phelippe de Landreset is proceeding to the Court
of Punem’, His Majesty has approved your plan in the spirit of the said
first instructions with which you left this Court and of the principles
which you have well observed in the above mentioned manner, that is,
of seeking an alliance of the State with the Maratha or commonly known
as Nana, because it will be certainly prefitable to maintain it with ail

! Translation from Biker's Collections of Treaties, Vol. VII, pages 27z to 281, -
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caution dictated by prudence, as long as it can be maintained. Towards
this and vou should seek all means which are practicable and decorous.
For this purpose it would appear convenient that you should maintain
with the same Nana a personal and close and friendly correspondence.

“His Majesty has approved entirely the said instructions carried
under the above mentioned title by the said Jacques Phelippe de Lan-
dreset considering it thoughtfully written and in everything conforming
to his Royal Order, as long as they are directed towards the maintenance,
without any aim of futuve conguests, not even of the Island of Salcete or
any other Northern Tervitory ; because the said Master again reilerates fo
you that he does not want absolutely any extension in his dominions
but rather and only in the trade and skf,gb;bmg towards which he will in due
course take steps as time permits. .

Annex F. No. g

LETTER FrROM THE VICEROY, COUNT OF EGA, TO THE SECRETARY OF
STATE, DATED THE 12TH JANUARY, 1702

[Translation of the parts omitted by the Portuguese Government in the
printed Annex 16 to its Reply.]

Letter from the Viceroy, Count of Ega, to the Secretary of State,
dated the 12th January, 1762.

The instructions issued by H. Majesty to me at the time of my
departure for India, ordered me that I should endeavour to make efforts
for the preservatlon of peace, promotion of trade, spread of the Gospel,
the good administration of justice, policy with European nations and for
establishing good relations with the neighbouring Ch-ieftains, and that
I should not entertain ideas either of conquests or restorations, as long
as the same Master did not decide otherwise in due course . . .

“You tell me in the same letter that H. Majesty was pleased to approve
the instructions with which I sent Lt. Col. Jacques Filipe de Landreset
to the Court of Punem finding that those instructions were in accordance,
with the Royal Order, as long as he went for the purpose of preservation,
without any other objective of future conquest, not even of the conquest
of the Island of Salcete, or of any other land of the North, because the
said Master does not absolutely desire the extension of the dominions,
but only of commerce and shipping, and you stressin the next paragraphs
the matter which is put down in such specific terms and which relate to
the same end...”

Annex F. No. 10

REPLY OF THE COUNCIL OF BOMBAY TO THE GOVERNOR OF GOA, DATED
THE 18th OCTOBER, 1780 !

“To the Honorable Don Frederick William De Souza, Governor and Cap-
tain General of Her Most Faithful Majesty’s Possessions in India at Goa.

“Honorable Sir—We have now the honour to reply to Your Excellen-
cy’s letter dated the 17th of July received here in the time of the mon-
S001.

! Translation from Biker’'s Collections of Treaties, Vol. VIII, p. 82.
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““When the reduction of Salcete was undertaken by the English troops
in the year 1774, we received letters of protest from Signor Jose Sanchos
de Brito, commander of His Most Faithful Majesty’s fleet, and from
Your Honourable Predecessor Don Pedro Jose de Camera. Our replies
are no doubt deposited in the public Archives at Goa, and we conceived,
were very sufficient; but as Your Excellency has now been pleased to
revive the subject, and in like manner with Your Predecessor advanced
arguments to prove that the right ... {of your nation still continues in
the) ! countries conquered by the Mharattas nearly forty-two years ago
protested against this Government for an invasion of that right, and
endeavoured to alarm us for the safety of the British interests derived
from the national alliance with the Kingdom of Portugal, we are con-
strained to give a more minute reply, lest the public, unacquainted with
the real circumstances of the case, should put a disadvantageous con-
struction upon our reserve.

““We should have wished to confine ourselves to our former answer,
because we confess we find a difficulty in treating seriously or with regular
arguments a position so contrary fo réason and veceived maxims as the
extstence of a vight of sovereignty in your nation to tervitories dismembered
from its domintons almost half a century, or that a regard on our part fo
such a supposed vight should prevent the English from carrying the war
tnto such part of the Mharatta dominions as they may find most convenient
or conducive to their success. The English in their proceedings have been
governed by the plain dictates of reason, and of the laws of nature and of
nations. They are engaged in a war with the Mharattas, and for their
own safety and advantage they prosecute it with all possible vigour.
They attack the Mharatta dominions wherever they judge an impression
may be made with most advantage to themselves, or injury to the enemy,
and when their armies come before the walls of a fortress where the
Mharatta colours are flying, they are under no necessity to consult
history before the batteries are opened to discover the ancient possessor,
or to deliberate whether any of them may not possible have an intention
again to attempt the conquest at some future period,

“"The Portuguese acquired most of their territories in India by conguest
and force of arms. In the same manner they were deprived of what they term
the Province of the North, and their vight consequently expirved on the same
principle that it originated...”

Annex F. No. 11

LETTER FROM THE SECRETARY OF STATE, MARTINHO DE MELLO E CASTRO,
TO THE (GOVERNOR OF GOA, DATED THE 6TH MARCH, 1782 °*

[Translation of the Government of India of certain parts of the photo-
copy of Anrex 16 to the Portuguese Reply].

“Her Majesty has been shown your letter in which you refer to the
objectionable behaviour of the British nation to the detriment of this
State... :

t These words were obliterated in the original in English and have been supplied
from its Portuguese Translation.
2 Translation from Biker's Collections of Treaties, Vol. VIII, page 96.
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I

.. You also state that a result of these conquests vou had lodged
a protest to the Council of the said City of Bombay, which you for » ard
under No. 1, to which the said Council replied as undef No. 2, following
which the British launched an attack against the citadel of Bassein which
finally surrendered to them on 11th December 1481. As a result of this
it goes without saying that, after having lost the abovementioned cities
and territories of Thana, the Island of Salsette and Bassein, and the
Maratha being In possession of the same for over thirty or forty years,
when the British made their conquest, we have no right to blame the said
British for having done so, and the reply given by them fo your protest is
based on such solid grounds that they cannof be challenged. The only thing
we wmust feel more keenly, in the circumstances, is the fact that the State
should have been reduced to such a deplorable plight that the only weapons
and forces that we resort Lo should comsist of useless protesis which only
provoke laughler amidst those against whom they are divected...”

Annex F. No. 12

LeTTER OF ViTHAL RAO GORAKSH, PORTUGUESE EMISSARY
st June 1791t

No. 56

A SUMMARY TRANSLATION OF A LETTER OF VITHAL Ra0 GORQUI, WRITTEN
IN MARATHI TO THE SECRETARY OF STATE, SEBASTIAN JOoSE FERREIRA
Barroco

Jivaji Visram wrote from Sawantwadi to the Court of Punem to the
effect that the Portuguese had prepared their fleet and that he believed
that they were proceeding against Vyayadurg, on the excuse of the ship
“Sant’ana” (which had been seized from them by the Marathas).

He also wrote that two envoys to Punem were proceeding from Goa
under disguise, making it believe that they were on pilgrimage to the
holy places; these envoys were Narayan Rao (Dhume) and Vithal Rao
Gorqui; and that the aim of their journey was to start negotiations both
with Raghoba Dada, and Savai Madhav Rao. Consequently before our
arrival at Punem, the news aboiit our impending journey to the same
city was already known in that Court through the Bhonsle...

Because Bhonsle imparted the said news to the Court of Punem,
guards were posted at a distance of three leagues from that city, and
Narayan Rao and I were interrogated about our intentions. At this we
concealed the letter addressed by the State to Raghoba and produced the
other one which was addressed to the Ruler of Punem... The same night
we were interviewed, secretly, by Moroba Fadnis who vequested us that
we should write to Goa asking the Portuguese to help Raghoba and not to
support the group of the Ruler of Punem. However, as we had been issued
tnstructions o negotiate with the most powerful party, we entered tnio
negotiations with the Ruler of Punem, or rather with Nana Fadnis...

! Translation from ‘"Agentes da Diplomacia Portuguesa na India”, by P. Pissur-
lencar—"'Tipografia Rangel”, Bastora (Goa), 1952.
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Finally, it was decided to conclude the Trealy between the State and the
Peshwa... We were heve jor one year. Then I became ill and left the
Court (of Punem) informing that I was leaving for Pandharpur...

Narayan Rao (Dhume) went on postponing the negotiations for 15 vears
of his stay in Punem, staking believe that it was he who arranged the
Treaty, when the fact is that, when I left that Court, I had already
arranged for its settlement under the necessary conditions. What can
he do that I cannot? The entire success is due to my Master...

ViTHAL Rao GORrQUuI,
Punem, dated the 1st June 1791

Annex F. No. 13

LETTER FROM RAGHOBA TO LAXMAN AppajI?

[2 September 1776.]
To,

Laxman Appaji, Suhur Sabah Sabain Maya va Alaf,

The letter sent by you was recetved on 13th Rajab. “T put it to the
General if he really meant to undertake the Scheme, if not should we
accept the friendship of another who would offer it? The General replied
if there was any chance of succeeding, we might, At present John Carnac
had arrived from home, He was supreme to all other members of the
Council. When General Homy would be dismissed from his post he
would step in. Therefore Sarkar’s letter be sent to him. For the present
I have no work here. Therefore a letter be sent to me to return to
Huzur.” You write thus. This is understood. The General is a friend of
the Sarkar. He should naturally be happy at the success of the Sarkar’s
scheme. As regards your rcturn, though we have opened negotiations
with the Firangi it does not mean that our policy towards the English
has changed. You should remain there for conducting negotiations,
As soon as fresh orders of the English are received from home we are
here in the vicinity and we will go where invited. We continue to have
perfect confidence in the English. We have made friendship with them
and we continue it. Your remaining there will be useful for our designs;
therefore you should not think of coming back. You should stay there.
Further details have been communicated to you by a special messenger
from Balsad. After you receive those papers, speak to the General accord-
ingly. A letter of similar content has been addressed to John Carnac who
has arrived from England. If you return at this time it will create an
impression in the Council that we have abandoned them altogether.
This will be rather dishonourable. Having formed alliance with the Firangs
we propose to make a move. Bul his resources are poor, his strengih is
tnconsiderable, honesty is also lacking. We were viding the elephant. Now
unfortunately we have taken to a swmall horse. The reason for this, the
elephant no doubt is vespectable and reliable, but on account of an injury

! No. 178, Marathyanche Ithasachi Sadhane, Vol. XII, Edited by Rajwade,
page I1g. .
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to the fool he cannot walk. Therefore we are obliged to ride the horse. .ls
soon as the elephant is up on his feet and can walk, we will again go back
to the elephant. For the present we are carrying on somehow. The General
offers us 15000 rupees per month which though according to him, a
liberal allowance, 1s altogehter inadequate. Therefore it is convenient
to both that we keep away (from the English) and sustain the army.
We are asking you to remain with the English because it is very useful
to us. There is no other reliable person at Surat. When your stay would
be of no use we will recall you. 18 Rajab.

Annex F. No. 14

MEMORANDUM RELATING TC RETURN OF SARAL 1775

(Wad's Peshwa Dairy, Vol. VI, page 78.)
Sita Sabain Maya Wa Alaf,
Rajab zo.

(16th September 1775)

It has been agreed to return the ship (Sarai) of—Firangee Govekar
which was captured previously by Sarkar, Yashvantrao Sadashiv has
been deputed for that purpose. With his help Sarai may be made to
sail in waters along with its old—equipment, mast, ropes, anchor,
etcetera. Of its equipment which has already been utilised by the
Navy, only part of it, required to make it sail may be returned. Some
of our ships should accompany it to see that it has landed in Goa port.
The receipt of the same be obtained and forwarded to Sarkar.—Letter
to the Navy Chief of Vijaydurg. ‘Anand Rao Dhulap... Letter 1.’

Annex F. No. 15

SANAD FOR RETURN OF BOTELLO, 1776

(Wad's Peshwa Diary, Vol. VI, page 78.)

Sita Sabain Maya Wa Alaf,
Safar 18

(18 April 1776)

Narayan Vithal Vakil from Firangee Govekar, represented that a
botello of Pandurang Shenvi of Davan carried by one Narayan Prasad
to Davan from Goa loaded with coconuts and other merchandise,
accompanied by naval ships of Firangee, met with Sarkar’s Navy,
was captured and carried away to Vijaydurga by Dhulap. It was
confiscated and further auctioned by Dhulap. The same should be
returned. It has been, therefore, decided to return the said botello
and its equipment without the goods loaded, considering the friendship
between Sarkar and Firangee. This Sanad is, therefore, issued.
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You have already auctioned the botello and have entered the sale
proceeds in Government account under receipts ...... in all Rs. 450.
The said amount should be paid back to the Saukar who purchased
it and botello be obtained from him with its equipment and be returned
to the agent of the Portuguese, after obtaining his receipt. It is not
possible to sail it to Daman, and, therefore, it should be sent to Goa.
Sanad to Anand Rao Dhulap to this effect.”.

Annex F. No. 16

LETTER FROM THE GOVERNOR FraNnCISCO DA CUNHA A MENEZES TO THE
SECRETARY OF STATE MARTINHO DE MELLO E CASTRO, DATED
[12TH MaRrcH, 1787] 1

“... This is how the affaires stand at present, and as the said Narana
Sinai Dumo was instrumental in concluding in Punem the negotiations
for making up to the State the losses suffered by the latter owing to
the seizure of the frigate ‘Santa Anna’ and S. Joaguim’, asa compensation
for which we have been given Rs. 63,000, besides the 7z villages in
Pragana Nagar Aveli and duties of the Customs, which the State took
over on the 2znd July, 1785;..."

Annex F. No. 17
ExTracTs FROM “A INDIA PORTUGUESA™ %

The Portuguese territory of Daman is sitvated on the coast of the
Gulf of Cambay at zo.22’ latitude N. and 72.35° longitude east of Green-
wich . . .

It is geographically divided today in four distinct parts:

Pragana Near, Daman-grand or Division of South-Pragana Colana Pavori,
Damao-pequeno or Division of North-Dadra-e Pragana Nagar Aveli.
Daman 0 00 ULl

“In common agreement with the British Government a third class voad
of 5 kilomeires in length, from Daman-pequenc to Vappy, was constructed
in 1868 to link this district with the railway which goes from Bombay to
Baroda”. . . . . . . . . .. 00
Pragana de Nagar Aveli. This small pragana is situated at South-east,
and, as can be seen in the attached map, is completely separated from

the old Portuguese territory of Daman, The smallest distance between
the western limits of villages of Nagar-Aveli and the fort and town of

! Translation from Biker’s Collections of Treaties, Vol. VIII, p. 223.

 Translation from “A India Portuguesa”, by A. Lopes Mendes—agronomist,
member of “Sociedade de Geographia de Lisboa'’, and Deputy to the "Cortes”—
published by order of the “Ministerio da Marinha' by the ‘‘Sociedade de Geographia®,
Lisbon, 1886. page 217 ef seq.
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Daman is of 20 kilometres. They are separated by British territories
and the railway of Guzerathi, which, as we mentioner, goes through
Vapi—a British village near Daman-pequeno. . . . . . . . . .

“By the Treaty signed with the Court of Poona on January 6, 1780
the King Xahu, Lord of people and Treasure of Happiness, ceded to the
Portuguese in pragana of Nagar Avely, situated in the lands of Ram-
nagar of the jurisdiction of Bassein, a certain number of villages, which
would bring the rent of Rs. 12,000 or francs 24,000 per year, i# order fo
indemnify for some captures, which the Marathas had taken in time of peace.
In the execution of the said Treaty, the Portuguese commissaries took
possession of the said villages in the village of Noroly on Junero, 1783”.

“Dadra was ceded to the Portuguese by the order of the Most Happy
Madoram Pandito Pradana, Lord of Poona and its dominions. The Por-
tuguese took possession of Dadra and the villages of Marcol, Ranadem-
grande, Sily, Saily and Ambely on July 22, 1785".

Annex F. No. 18
PROVINCE OF THE NORTH 2

"“. .. the province of the North which comprises, in distance twenty-
four leagues, continuously without interrruption of foreign dominion,
many and very fertile lands, divided into various jurisdictions and def-
ended by fortifications, of greater or lesser strength; it was the best
heritage of the same State, both owing to plentiful quit-rents and reven-
ues which were paid into the treasury of its factories, and owing to the
moneys which were paid by the vassals of H. Majesty, tenants of the
same lands, through the revenues of which they were in a better position
to attend to his Royal Service, and in all that body the most important
territory was the Island of Salsete (close to the Citadel of Bassein, on
the South of the latter) both for quality of its lands as well as for the
security which it enjoys in the rivers which surround it: however as
the jurisdictions of Bassein, Saybana, Sabajo, Manora, Asserim, Mahim,
Trapor, and Daman are open lands and bordering with those of the Ma-
rathas on the side of Galiana and Biundy, they were exposed to his
invasions which were repeated often . ..”

Annex F. No. 19
1

LETTER FrOM DomINGos MASCARENHAS TO NARAIN SINAT Dumo,?®
dated 26 June, 1783

“... but that I had heard from some persons that at the time when
the King Chotia ruled, they did not yield more than six thousand to
eight thousand rupees...”

! Translation “from Portugueses ¢ Marathas”, Boletim do Instituto Vasco da
Gama, No. g, 1931, p. 26.
2 Translation from Biker’s Collections of Treaties, Vol, VIII, p- 108.
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2

BIKER'S NOTE TO THE LETTER OF GOVERNOR OF GoOa,
dated 22 March, 17801

“Nagar Aveli belonged in olden times to the king of Sarceta or Assar-

ceta, commonly called by us King Chotia and also King of Ramnagar
and at present Raja of Dramapore or Darampor.”

1 Translation from Biker’s Collections of Treaties, Vol. VIII, p. 139.
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Annex F. No. 20

FirsT DRAFT OF THE PROPOSED TREATY, 1775 !

Treaty:—Agreement has been made between the Majestic firangi
Estad and Shrimant Peshwa Pant Pradhan that from today both parties
should act in perpetual amity, and never resort tohostilities. On account
of this both parties have given sincere assurances and detailed provisions
{are as under).

Formerly treaties between Hazrat Estad and Shrimant Pant Pradhan
were concluded. Much time has elapsed since since then. During the
intervening period the Sardars and Subahdars of both sides having
acted contrary to the spirit of the treaty caused a cleavage in friendly
relations. However they were never strained so excessively by either of
the Parties as to cause a complete break. Both sides had a feeling of
despair. At that time Dom Jose Pedro da Camara arrived at Goa as
Captain and General Viceroy. He deputed Rajashri Narayan Vithel
Dhume to Rajashri Modhau Rao Narayan Pant Pradhan. After a
meeting Shrimant ordered Rajashri Trimbak Vinayak, Sar Subahdar,
that the above Vakil and he conferring together, should remove differ-
ences and cement friendly relations. Accordingly both sides drew up an
agreement. Details are as below:

{1) In case the fleet of Hazrat Estad and that of the Shrimant meet
they will inquire of each other in a friendly manner and will extend
reception in a respectful way. The Hazrat Estad should be shown the
honour which other Western Powers extended to it. Article.

(2) In case the fleet of the Shrimant encounter a single ship of Hazrat
Estad it should behave in the same friendly and respectiul manner. In
the same way should the fleet of the Hazrat Estad encounter a single
grab of the Shrimant they should behave as above. Article.

(3) In case fighting Sibars, Galbats and other small vessels of Hazrat
Estad should encounter the fleet of the Shrimant they should inquire
in a friendly and respectful manner according to the above agreement.
In the same way should fighting Sibars and other small Galbats of the
Shrimant Encounter a big ship or fleet of the Hazrat Estad they should
act in a respectful and friendly manner. Article.

{4} In case the fleet or a ship of the Hazrat Estad has plenty of water
and fuel and the fleet of the Shrimant be deficient in them and the Sardar
{Commanding Officer) of the fleet should ask of the Sardar of the Hazrat
Estad, he should give (them), In the same manner should the fleet of the
Shrimant have the articles in plenty and should a ship, fleet or small
vessel of Hazrat Estad be deficient and should demand them, they be
given. Should thefleet of one party have provisions and the fleet of the other
be deficient and should ask for them they be given against payment of
price in cash, Article.

(5) In case the fleet of the Shrimant run short of water and fuel and
should seek refuge in a creek in the territory of Hazrat Estad the Com-
manding Officer of the creek should not {fail in providing the articles. On
the contrary, rendering all possible aid he should make kindly enquiries.
In the same manner should the fleet of Hazrat Estad or a ship or Sibar

1 This is a revised translation of the document at Indian Annex E. No. 3.
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running short of water and fuel, seek refuge in a creek in the territory
of Shrimant, the officer of the place after making respectful inquiries
should give all possible help, provide water and fuel, and should there
be deficiency in provisions the same be allowed to be carried against
payment of reasonable price.

{6) In case the fleet of the Shrimant encounter an enemy and should
a fight occur, if on that occasion the fleet of the Hazrat Estad or a
frigate arrive on the spot the latter should render all possible assistance
to the former, provided the enemy is not an ally of the Estad. The fleet
of the Shrimant will act in a reciprocal manner.

{(7) In case a grab, Sibar, Pal or merchant-vessel after being defeated
seek refuge in a creek in the territory of Hazrat Estad, it should be made
free of the fear of the enemy. Should the damaged vessel be held up on
account of inclement weather it should be given help for repairs involving
even expenditure of money and when ready be respectfully conveyed to
a place of safety. In like manner should the fleet of the Hazrat Estad
or a ship or Sibar, a fighting vessel or merchant vessel arrive in the juris-
diction of the Shrimant it should receive similar treatment.

(8) Merchant ships of the territory of Hazrat Estad which enter the
dominions of the sarkar for trading purposes, shall do so on payment of
(zakat) duties in the usual manner. They will not be harassed. Traders
selling their commodities shall be permitted to carry freely foodgrains
and other commodities. Likewise, traders from the dominions of the
Shrimant entering those of the Hazrat Estad with their river boats shall
be permitted to sell in them food grains and other commodities and shall
buy in exchange whatever they want, and paying usual duties in respect
of same. They shall be permitted to return freely without being barassed
by any body. They shall agree to this reciprocally.

(g) Merchant ships from the dominions of both parties sail on the sea.
Should they come across the fleet of either party or any warship or sloop,
they will not be seized on the ground that they have no pass. They will
be allowed to go unmolested after ascertaining the origin of the country.
Ans also, in case, an enemy at sea should seize any merchant craft
belonging to either of the dominions, the navy or a ship from either party
shall, when coming across them, render assistance, setting free the ships
seized, which they shall convoy safely until they near their own rivers.
The commanders acting in this manner shall be rewarded.

(10) In case a merchant from either of the dominions hire a vessel
from a merchant belonging to foreign territory and load it with mer-
chandise and should that vessel be seized by the fleet or warship of
either party, the goods after inquiry will be returned to the person
concerned, and the vessel may be retained by the Captor. In like manner
should a ship from the territory of the Hazrat Estad be hired by a
foreigner and found carrying goods without pass, it will be released after
due inquiry. The merchandise will be dealt with in whatever manner (the
Shrimant} thinks proper. Merchantships from the Shrimant’s dominion
will be treated by the Hazrat Estad likewise. In case foreign merchants
possess the Shrimant’s but not the Permit of Hazrat Estad they may
be seized. Likewise ships carrying Hazrat Estad permits without the
Shrimant’s pass will be liable to seizure.

(11} The ships of China seas, from the ports of Hazrat Estad sailing
the sea and visiting ports for the purpose of trade, will not be molested
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by the fleet of the Shrimant. They will be given all possible help as other
merchant ships.

(12) The Hazrat Estad and Shrimant shall direct the officers Subha-
dars and Killedars on the bordering territories of both dominions to
foster friendly relations between the parties and those who will deviate
will be punished.

(13) In case Desai, Mirasdar or any person from the dominion of the
Hazrat Estad escapes and takes refuge in the dominion of the Shrimant
and plans treason such person shall not be allowed to do so and not be
given asylum on the border of the respective dominions.

(14) Neither party shall give assistance to the enemies of the other,
nor shall it help them with provisions or commodities,

{15} In case a slave, male or female, escapes from the dominion
of the Hazrat Estad officers of the Shrimant shall not punish them,
but shall send them back under escort with letter. Also the Hazrat Estad
will not punish slaves escaping from the Shrimant territory but will
restore them to the Shrimant,

(16) In case the Shrimant requires from the Hazrat Estad ammunition,
cannon, swords or any other military stores and if these are available
with the Hazrat Estad, they shall be supplied to the Shrimant against
payment of its price in cash,

(17) Differences previous to this treaty will not be revived.

(18) Both parties will instruct the commanders of their respective
fleets about the treaty directing them to observe the same. So also both
parties shall instruct Kamavisdars, Subhedars. In case, either party
fails to observe the treaty, the matter will be taken up by the envoys of
the respective Governments. The party which will be found to have
deviated from this agreement shall satisfy the other party by removing
misunderstanding and the person who shall be found guilty will be
punished. There will be no ground for disturbing friendly relafions.

(1g) When either of the two parties becomes weak, the other shall
not start a quarrel but shall help according to the articles mentioned
above. Neither will commit aggression on the other. Both will behave in
a friendly and sincere manner.

(20) In case the Hazrat Estad needs troops or infantry for defending
itself against an enemy the Shrimant will send them on payment accord-
ing to convenience,

{21) Accordingly agreement is drawn up. The Hazrat Estad shall
conclude the same ceremoniously according to his custom and shall seal
and sign it. The Shrimant shall put his seal on this agreement ceremo-
niously according te his custom and shall deliver it to the Hazrat Estad
and the Hazrat Estad shall deliver it to Sarkar. On the delivery of these
copies to each other, both parties shall issue instructions to this effect
to the Amaldars, Subhedars of Commanders of the navy of respective
dominions and a notice by the Public crier shall be circulated in both
dominions so that nobody shall act due to ignorance contrary to this
agreement and there shall be no reason for breach of friendship. This
shall be good for the benefit of both.
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Annex F. No. 21

EIGHTEENTH CENTURY PRATICE IN INDIA RELATING TO SIGNING, SEALING
AND RATIFICATION OF TREATIES

Extracts from “Treaties, Agreements and Engagements belween fhe
Honorable East India Company and the Native Princes, Chiefs, and States
in Western India,; the Red Sea, the Persian Gulf Gc. Also between Her
Britannic Majesty’s Government, & Persia, Portugal, and Turkey” by
R. Hughes Thomas—1851. Pages 476, 479, 483, 487, 490, 493, 509, 512,
513, 519, 520, 530, and 330.

* * *
Page 476.

Articles of Agreement settled by THoMas BYFELD and JOHN SPENCER,
Esquires, on the part of the Honorable RicHARD BOURCHIER, Esquire,
President and Governor of Bombay in Council, and on behalf of the
Honorable East India Company, with Balajee Bajee Rao (Nana) Pundit
Prudhan, dated the 1zth October 1756, or of the Gentoo Style, 17th
Mohurrum 1170.

Page 479.

The foregoing Articles being agreed to by us, and accepted of, we do,
in confirmation theveof, affix lo lhese presents the seal of the Honorable
United English East India Company, and do attest the same with our own
proper names in Poona, the day and year above written.

#
* *

Page 483.

Treaty with Raghoba (Rughoonath Rao Bajee Rao).—Dated the
6th March r773.

Articles of Agreement and Treaty between the Honorable WirLiam
HornBy, Esq. President and Governor, &. Council of Bombay, and
of all its dependencies, on the part and behalf of the Honorable United
English East India Company, on the one part, and Rughoonath Rao
Bajee Rao Peshwa, on the other part.—Dated the 6th day of March, in
the year of our Lord 1775 (or the 3rd day, of the month Mohurrum, and
year of the Hijree 118¢, or the year 1176 Arabic Style).

Page 487.

The foregding Articles having been agreed to by the Honorable the
President and Council of Bombay, who have empowered me to accept
the same in their behalf, I do, in confirmation theveof, affix the seal of the
said Honorable Company, and sign my own proper name thevelo, in Surat,
the day and year above written ; and 7 do engage {o procure @ ratification
of this Treaty, under the seal of the Honorable Company, and under the
hands and seals of the Hon’ble the President and Council of Bombay,
within thirty davs from this dale.

Dated 6th March, 1775. (Signed) ROBERT GAMBIER.
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We, the President and Council of Bombay ajoresaid, having empowered
Mpy. Robert Gambier lo execule a Trealy with Rughoonath Rao Bajee Rao
Peshwa, in our behalf, on account of the Honorable Company, of the fore-
going tenov, which he has accordingly done, of the date above-mentioned,
and the same having been signed lo, ralified, and confirmed, by Rughoonath
Rao Bajee Rao Peshwa ; and whereas, by the last Article, it is covenanted
and agreed, that a valification of the said Treaty shall be transmitted by
us, under the seal of the Honorable Company, and under our proper hands
and seals, within one wmonth from the above date, these therefore are fo
certify, that we hereby ratify and confirm the foregoing Treaty, in all and
every part. In lestimony whereof, we have caused the seal of the aforesaid
How'ble Company to be heveunto affixed, and do now sign the same with
our hands, and affix our proper seals thereto, this 16th day of Mavch, in the
year of our Lovd 1773.

*
* *

Page 490.
Treaty between the Honorable the English East India Company and
the Muratha State, dated the 1st March r776.

Page 493. ] .
Article XVIII.

A copy of this Treaty, under the seal of Colonel Upton, shall remain
with the Ministers of the Muratha Government, and a copy shall be
sent to Calcutta, to be signed and sealed by the Honorable the Governor
General and Members of the Supreme Council of Fort William, and
afterwards given to the Peshwa.

Dated the 1st March 1776. (Signed) J. UPTON.
The signature of BALAJEE PUNDIT.
The stgnature of SURHARAM PUNDIT,

*
Page 509. * *

Treaty of Alliance between the Company, the Peshwa, and the Nizam
against Tippoo Sultan, 17g90.

Treaty of offensive and defensive alliance between the Honorable
United English East India Company, the Peshwa, Suvaee Madhow Rao
Narayun Pundit Prudhan Bahadoor, and the Nuwab Nizam Aly Khan
Asif Ja Bahadoor, against Futteh Aly Khan, known by the denom-
ination of Tippoo Sultan; settled by Mr. CHARLES WARRE MALET, on the
part of the said Honorable Company, with the said Pundit Prudhan,
by virtue of the powers delegated to him by the Right Honorable Charles
Earl Cornwallis, K.G., Governor General in Council, appointed by the
Honorable the Court of Directors of the said Honorable Company to
direct and control all their affairs in the East Indies.

Page 512.
Article XIV.

This Treaty, consisting of fourteen Articles, being this day settled
and concluded by Mr. Malet, with the Peshwa, Suvaee Madhow Rao
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Narayun Pundit Prudhan Bahadoor, Mr. Malet has delivered to the
Pundit Prudhan one copy of the same in English and Persian, signed
and sealed by himself; and the Pundit Prudhan has delivered to Mr. Malet
another copy, in Murathee and Persian, executed by himself; and AMy.
Malet has engaged to procure and deliver to the Pundit Prudhan, in seventy-
five days, a vatified copy from the Governov General, on the delivery of which,
the Treaty executed by My. Malet shall be returned.

Poona, 1st June 1790.

(Signed) C. W. MaLET, ' The Company’s
Resident. Seal.
Ratified by the Governor General in Council, at Fort William in Bengal,
the sth day of July 1790.
(Signed) CORNWALLIS, LS.
CHARLES STUART.
PETER SPEKE.

’

13

*
* *

Page 513.
Treaty with the Peshwa, commonly called ‘“The Treaty of Bassein,”
dated the 31st December 1802.

Page 519.
Signed, sealed, and exchanged at Bassein, the 31st December A.D
1802 (or the sth of Rumzan, Anno Hijree 1217).

(Signed) BARRY CLOSE,
Resident at the Court of the Peshwa.
The Seal of Pundit

Prudhan.
The Peshwa's Signature.

Page 520,

Signed, sealed, and exchanged at Bassein, the.31st of December A.D. 1802
{or the 5th Rumzan, A H. 1217).

The seal of Rao Pundit '
Prudhan. The Peshwa's Signature.

(True copy.)

(Signed) BARRY CLOSE,
Resident at the Court of the Peshwa.

MeMORANDUM.—This Treaty was ratified by the Governor General in
Council on the 11th February 1803.

*
% *

23
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Page 530.

Treaty between the Honorable East India Company and His High-
ness Bajee Rao Rughoonath Rao Pundit Prudhan, his heirs and succes-
sors, concluded at Poona, on the 13th of June 1817, by the Honorable
M. ELPHINSTONE, on the part of the Honorable Company, and by Moro

DixiT and BALAJEE Luxoomax, on the part of the Rao PunpiT Prup-
HAN, by virtue of full powers from their respective Governments.

Page 536.
Peshwa’s Seal
Peshwa’s signature.
Governor General's Small {Stgned) HASTINGS,
Seal. N. B. EDMONSTONE.

A. SETON.
G. DOwWDESWELL,

This Treaty was rafified by the Governor General in Council, this
fifty day of July, one thousand eight hundred seventeen, at Fort William
in Bengal. . -

{Signed) J. Apam,

Acting Chief Secretary to Government.

*
% *

TRANSLATION FROM BIKER'S “SUPPLEMENT TQ THE COLLECTION OF
TREATIES”, VoL. X, NaTioNnaL PrEss, L1SBON—1873, PAGE 320

Treaty of Peace between the Viceroy and Caplain General of India, Francisco
Jose de Sampaio e Castro and Baji Rao Pandit Pradhan. oth January, 1722.

His Excellency the Viceroy and Baji Rao Pandit Pradhan undertake
to observe and fulfil, each of them on his own part, all the clauses of
Peace which have been agreed upon, ete. Field of Alibagh, dated the
gth January 1722. I sign on authority conferved on me by His Excellency
the Viceroy, Anionio Cardim Froes. Seal and sign of Baji Rao.

“And the same is considered as having been agreed with the British
nation, as the ally of the Portuguese, and at the end of eight days the
General of Bombay shall send somebody to sign what has been stated,
the copy of which has been handed over fo Knight Robert Cowan,
with the stamp of the Pradhan Baji Rao, by the ship “Nossa Senhora
da Piedade™, on 12th January 1722.

Joao Roiz MacHADO.
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Annex F. No. 22

LETTERS OF SADASHIV DINKAR AND MAHAD]JI SINDIA.
17th NOVEMBER I779

(Historical Papers Relating to Mahadji Sindia, edited by G. 5. Sardesal.
1937, at page 43.)

No. 54 Suarx 17 November 177g.

Sadashiv Dinkar presents compliments. The news from here upto
&th Zilkad isallright. A letter sent with a camel rider was received by me.
1t contained your orders as follows:

Copy of the treaty with the Firangi has been sent to Patil Baba.
A reply to it must be recetved early to negotiate with the envoy of the Firangt.
Therefore reply of the Patil Baba be sent early. (I am to say) in this
connection that the packet was delivered by the Camel rider to Baba.
Its reply with memorandum of the treaty was given and the same
has been despatched to your honour, It should reach you.

No. 35 SHRI (17 November 1779)

Received g Zilkad Samanin.

To, Rajashri Balajipant Nana.

After compliments I am in reccipt of the letter despatched by you.
Narayan Rao, Vakil of the Govekar (Firangi of Goa) is at this Court.
A Treaty is being negotiated for the last two, three years. In respect
,of this, a treaty drawn by the Firangi was sent here; of this a copy is
sent to you. This may be scrutinised (by you). This was understood
(by me). I also understood the gist of the talk with the envoy. There was
a talk with you at the time of your departure. Therefore this intimation
to you. Four days’ promise has been made to him. You have written that
a reply be sent early. All this is understood. Whatever has been decided
by drawing a treaty between the Firangi and the Sarkar, accordingly
vou should negotiate with the envoy. Memoranda in respect of the treaty
have been sent back. Despatched 8 Zilkad.
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Annex F. No. 23

PORTUGUESE OFFICIAL TEXT OF 4TH MAY 1779, CONTAINING THE ,,TREATY"
1IN PORTUGUESE AND MARATHI LANGUAGES, UNDER THE SIGNATURE AND
SEAL OF CAMARA, THE PORTUGUESE VICEROY AT Goa

Facsimile copy of the document in Arquivo do Estado da India, Pazes e
Tratado No. 3—Ano de 1755 fols. 277—284. With Ewnglish translation
made by Government of India given on the opposite page.
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(Arch. da India, tivro 2° de pazes, fol. 277.)
{Seal)

P.! Treaty of agreement made by His Excellency the Governor and
Captain General of India, Dom Jose Pedro da Camara, on behalf of the
Majestic State, with the Most Happy Madou Rau Naraen Pandit Pradan.
Naraen Vital Dumo was sent to the latter and, having conferred upon
matters relating to friendship, made the agreement between the same
Majestic State and the said Grand Pandit Pradan in following manner:—

M.2 His Excellency the Governor and Captain General of India,
Dom Jose Pedro Da Camara, on behalf of Hazrat Estad despatched
Narayan Vithal Dhume to the presence of Rajeshri Madhav Rao Pandit
Pradhan. After friendly discussions a treaty was concluded between the
Firangee State and the Pandit Pradhan. The articles are detailed below:

I

P. Should the fleet of the State and that of Pandit Pradan meet at
sea, or should single ships encounter each other, or a ship of one party

1 P.indicates English translation from the Portuguese text.
2 M, indicates English Translation from the Marathi text.
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meet the entire fleet of the other, they shall proceed amicably upon their
way.

T

M. When the fleet of the Firangee State meets the fleet of the Sarkar
ot even a single ship at sca, or one ship of one party were to meet the
fleet of the other, they will behave in a friendly manner.

2

P. Should the fleet of the State and that of Pandit Pradan meet at
sea, one fleet being in want of wood and water, and the other abundantly
provided therewith, they shail provide the other fleet therewith. And in
the same way should one fleet be in want of provisions and the other have
abundance thereof, they shall give them of their provisions, recetving
the price thereof in current rupees; and so they shall act reciprocally.

2

M. When the fleet of the Firangee State meets the fleet of the Pandit
Pradhan on its way and one side is short of wood or fuel the other side
will give them to the former if it has sufficient to spare; and if provisions
are short in the fleet of one party and the other has more than it needs,
it should give them on payment of cash. Both will act accordingly.
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3
P. The ships of Chinese parts and from the ports of the State which
navigate the sea for commerce putting into any port laden with mer-
chandise, to buy and sell, shall not be impeded by the fleet of Pandit
Pradan, nor shall the State impede the shups from the ports of Pandit
Pradan, which may trade in those of China.,

3
M. Vessels from ports of the Firangee State in China territory laden
with merchandise sail on the sea for trading at various ports. The fleet
of the Pandit Pradhan will not obstruct them. Nor will the vessels
from the ports of the Pandit Pradhan going to China ports for trading
be obstructed by the Firangee State.

4
P. The male and female slaves from the dominions of the State who
may fly to the lands of Pandit Pradan, shall be restored. And this shall
be rectprocally practised.
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4

M. Female slaves and male slaves escaping from the Dominion of the
Firangee State into the territory of the Sarkar will be delivered up.
Both to act accordingly.

5

P. The differences which existed before this treaty shall be recipro-
cally forgotten.

5
M. Disputes prior to the present treaty will not be revived.

6

P. This treaty being concluded, should there still be any motive of
jealousy and discord the matter shall first be treated through the Attor-
ney, and both parties shall reciprocally act with all sincerity.

6

M. A bilateral treaty has been now concluded. Should there arise
between the two parties anything contrary to it, after carrying on nego-
tiations through the Vakil, both sides should act in strict accordance
with it.
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7

P. The vesscls, parangues, and boats, for trading, which come from
the dominions of the State to those of Pandit Pradan with merchandise
for commerce, may do so on paying duty in the manner practised from
ancient times, without vexation from anyone. The merchants having
sold their merchandise, may freely take with them vegetables, and other
produce. In the same way the merchants from the dominions of Pandit
Pradan, entering those of the State with their boats and parangues, will
sell their vegetables and other merchandises and buy what they like
in exchange, paying duty thereon according to the ancient custom es-
tablished from the beginning and may withdraw freely without suffering
oppression from any person whatever. And this shall be reciprocally
observed.

7
M. Merchant ships of various types—Tarandis, Padgis, or Batelas—
from the Dominion of the Firangee State will visit the Dominion of the
Pandit Pradhan carrying merchandise. They will engage in trading,
paying customs duties according to usage and will not suffer molestation
from anybody. Merchants will sell their merchandise and purchase
provisions and other articles and carry them safely. Similarly merchant
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vessels from the Dominion of the Pandit Pradhan—DBatelas, Padgis—
visiting the territory of the Firangee State, will sell provisions and other
articles and buy in exchange produce from there. After paying customary
Zakat they will sail in safety, They wiil receive no molestation from
anybody. This is agreed to by both parties.

8

P. The trading vessels of both the dominions going to any port,
meeting the fleets of either party, or any ships or vessels of war, shall
not be taken upon the pretext that they have not sage-conducts but
shall be allowed free passage. And should the enemy take trading vessels
from the dominions of either party, at sea, the fleets, or even a vessel
of either side, which shall meet them in the power of the enemy, shall
go to their assistance and liberate them, and convoy them in safety
to the vicinity of their own rivers, And the commanders who shall so
act shall be rewarded by their superiors.

8

M. Merchant vessels of both Dominions sail on the sea to visit what-
soever State. If they came across the fleet of either party or a man-of-
war or a sibad they should not be seized on the ground of not carrying
permits. They should be allowed to proceed in safety. If a merchant vessel
belonging to either State happens to be carried away by the enemy at

24
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sea and should it come across the fleet or a single ship of either party it
should be given help and if there is sufficient force, rescued and escorted
to the nearest creek. Action taken as above by commander of a ship
will be rewarded by his master,

9
P. The fleet of Pandit Pradan having encountered the enemy’s fleet
and being engaged with it, and the fleet and frigates of the State coming
up at that time, the latter shall give them aid and succour, if the said
enemy be not an ally of the said State. The fleet of Pandit Pradan shall
act in the same manner. This shall be arranged reciprocally.

9
M. If the fleet the Firangee State or its frigates arrive at the time
when the fleet of the Pandit Pradhan is engaged by the enemy, they will
give provisions and render whatever help is possible provided the enem
be not an ally of the Firangee State. The fleet of the Pandit Pradhan will
do accordingly. This is agreed to by both parties.
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I0

P. This treaty between the State and Pandit Pradan shall be made
known in particular to the Gaovernors upon the confines and others, and
to the commanders of the fleets, with orders to take the necessary pre-
cautions. The same shall be ordered by Pandit Pradhan to the Governors,
Fleet, and the Marathas of his dominions. And in case the Governors
concerned and Marathas should fail in its execution, they shall arrange
matters by their intervention. And this shall be cbserved on both sides.

IO

M. [Instructions in pursuance of the treaty between the Firangee
State and the Pandit Pradhan will be issued to frontier officers and the
navy. The Pandit Pradhan will likewise instruct his officers, navy and
Marathas (Maratha Chiefs). In case the Mamlatdars and Saranjamdars
act in variance thereof they should be ordered to carry it out. Both
parties to act accordingly.

II

P. Military men and high officers and other people from the domin-
ions of the State taking refuge in those’of Pandit Pradan, and continuing
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their plots and conspiracies in the said lands of the State, shall not be
allowed to take refuge and conspire there, not shall the said traitors
be permitted to live especially upon the confines of its dominions. In the
same way, military men and high officers of the household, high or low,
or others of the dominions of Igandit Pradan taking refuge in those of
the State, and continuing their plots and conspiracies in the said lands
of Pandit Pradan, shall not be allowed to take refuge and conspire there,
nor shall the said traitors be permitted to live especially upon the con-
fines of his dominions. And this shall be observed reciprocally.

II

M. Ancient respectable land-holders and other from the Dominion
of the Firangee State escaping into the Dominion of the Pandit Pradhan
and creating disturbances and fomenting treason in the territory of the
Firangee State will not be given asylum; neither will they be allowed to
foment treason nor to stay on the border of each other’s Dominions.
Similarly seniors and juniors from land-holders of respectable families
from the Dominion of Pandit Pradhan escaping and creating disturb-
ances and fomenting treason in the Sarkar’s territory should not be
given asylum; neither will they be allowed to foment treason nor to stay
on the border of each other’s Dominion. Both parties to act accordingly.
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12

P. The enemies of the State shall not be succoured by PPandit Pradan,
or supplied with provisions or any sort of produce. Neither shall the
State give succeur, o1 anything else, to the enemies of Pandit Pradan.

Iz

M. The Pandit Pradhan will not render assistance to the enemy of
the Firangee State and will not provide him with supplies and other
comnmodities. The Firangee State likewise will not aid the enemy of the
Pandit Pradhan.

13
P. When one of the two parties shall be weaker or stronger than the
other, the strongest shall not contend against the other upen alleged
pretexts, but both shall correspond with sincere friendship, in conformity
with the agreement.
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I3
M. Should either of the parties become weaker the other will not
start a quarrel on some pretext of other, but will act in friendship accord-
ing to the agreement.

14
P. Portuguese soldiers and other people of the State flying to the
lands of Pandit Pradan shall not be allowed to remain there nor sheltered
but shail be forced to return for the purpose of being surrendered. In the
same way sepoys and others, flying from the dominions of Pandit Pradan
to those of the State, they shall not be allowed to remain there, and with-
out being given shelter, shall be forced to return.

i
14

M. Firangees and other people from the Firangee State escaping into
the Dominion of the Pandit Pradhan should not be entertained nor be
given asylum. They should be delivered over. Likewise soldiers escaping
from the Pandit Pradhan’s Dominion into the Dominicn of the Firangee
State should not be entertained nor be given asylum. They should be
delivered over.
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15
P. Henceforward the State shall not build any fortifications in any
of the dominions of Gujrat, Saut, Cantevad, Sorat, and other places
belonging to Pandit Pradan, and shall allow free entry into its dependen-
cies through the ancient ports which the State now possesses.

15
M. The Firangee State will not establish in future posts in any place
of the Dominion of Pandit Pradhan such as Gujarat, Sawant’s territory,
Kathiawad and Sorat. There shall be amadraft from the ports he already
has from the beginning.

16

P. The trading vessels from the dominions of the State, reputed lost,
and wrecks coming ashore in the ports of Pandit Pradan, the said vessels
with their cargoes of merchandise shall be restored. And in case they
should put into port for fear of any enemy they shall not be interfered
with and this shall be observed reciprocally.
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16

M. Merchant vessels from the Firangee State wrecked and cast in
the ports of the Pandit Pradhan will be returned with cargo. If out of
fear of the enemy they take shelter in a port they shall not be molested.
Both parties will act accordingly.

17
P. As the Majestic State has evinced the greatest friendship towards
this Pandit Pradan, as proved by the Attorney, Pandit Pradan has
agreed to make a contribution in Daman of 12,000 rupees starting from
this vear through his Daman jurisdiction by virtue of which he shall
specifically give to the State the Sanad or the confirmatory order of
the villages.
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17
M. The Firangee State entertains friendly sentiments towards the
Pandit Pradhan; the envoy conveyed assurances. Therefore it is agreed
that the Pandit Pradhan should assign towards Daman from the current
year a Jagir of the revenue of twelve thousand rupees in Prant Daman.
Accordingly a sanad listing the villages be given to the Firangee State
by making a separate agreement.

P. In the past its frigate was restored to the State and for its approx-
imate effects Pandit Pradan promised the State the following sum in
rupees:—

Netinoneyear . . . . +« .« « v v « v 4 o o« 0 o v . 66454

Teak wood for the ordinary fitting of the said frigate, to be

transported in one year from Basaim to Daman, of the
valueof . . . . . . . e e e e e e e e e e e . 3000

Total . . . . . . . 00454

In accordance with the above agreement Pandit Pradan shall give
the State what is stipulated. Goa, 4th May, 1779.

25
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M. A frigate belonging to the Firangee State was returned previously;
for equipage on the same the Pandit Pradhan agreed formerly to give
as under. . —

Rs. 66454—in cash within a year.

Rs. 3000—in Teakwood to be sent from Bassein to Daman for loss

of miscellaneous equipage.

Rs. 6g454— within a year.

Accordingly as agreed the Pandit Pradhan will compensate the
Firangee State. Written at Goa, 4th May, 1779, 16 Rabilakhar, Suhur

1179

{Signed) Dom Jose Pedro pa CaMaRra..
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Annex F. No. 24

EXTRACT FROM ELPHINSTONE'S HISTORY OF INDIA, 1841

{The History of India, the Hindw and Mohamedan Periods, by the Hon.

Mountstuart Elphinstone, with notes and additions by E. B, Cowell, M A .,

late Principal of Sanskrit College, Calcuttia, oth Edition, London, 1916,
pp. 8o-82)

It has been mentioned that the king can alienate his share in a village.
In like manner he often alienates large portions of territory, including
numeerous villages as well as tracts of unappropriated waste. But in
all these cases it is only his own rights that he makes over: those of
the village landholders and permanent tenants (where such exist), of
district and village officers, and of persons holding by previous grants
from himself or his predecessors, remaining unaffected by the transfer. !
These grants are made for the payment of troops and civil officers, for
the support of temples, the maintenance of holy men, or for rewards of
public service. Lands given for the two first purposes are called Jagirs. ®
This mode of remunerating the services of certain officers, and of pro-
viding for holy men, is as old as Menu. When it came to be applied to
troops is uncertain. It was in use in Bayanagar, and other states of the
south of India, when they were overturned by the Mussulmans; but the
more perfect form in which it is now found among the Marattas is
probably of modern date. Such grants originate in the convenience of
giving an assignment on a district near the station of the troops, instead
of an order on the general treasury; a mode of transfer particularly
adapted to a country where the revenue is paid in kind.

These assignments at first were for specific sums equal to the pay due:
but when they had long been continued, and were large encugh to swallow
up the whole revenue of a district, it was natural to simplify the arrange-
ment, by transferring the collection to the chief of the military body.
This was done with every precaution to prevent the chiefs appropriating
more than the pay of the treops, or exercising any power not usually
vested in other collectors, The system adopted by the Marattas gives
a full illustration of the means resorted to for this purpose.

According to their plan, the number and description of troops to be
maintained by each chief was described; the pay of each division care-
fully calculated; allowances made for officers, sometimes even to the
extent of naming individuals; a sum was allotted for the personal ex-
penses of the chief himself; and every particular regarding the terms of
service, the mode of mustering, and other arrangements, was laid down.
A portion of territory was then selected, of which the share belonging
to the government should be sufficient, after deducting the expenses of
collection and other charges, to supply the amount which had been shown

! Want of advertence to this circumstance bas led to mistakes regarding the
property in the soil. The native expression being “'to grant a village,”” or “a district,”
it has been inferred that the grant implied the whole, and excluded the notion of
any other proprietors.

? “Jagir, which is a Dersian word in its origin, is applied to lands given by
government for personal support, or as a fief for the maintenance of troops for the
service of the state. Some service is implied in the personal, as well as the military,
Jagir.”"—(Col. Sykes on Land Tenures in the Dekkan, Jour R.A.S. 1835.)—ED.
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to be requisite; and the whole territory yielding that amount was made
over to the chief. The chief was now placed in the situation of the gov-
ernor of a revenue division, and exercised all the other functions which
are now united in the holder of that office.

The power to interfere for the protection of subordinate rights was,
however, retained by the government, as well as a claim to any revenue
which the tract assigned might yield beyond the amount for which it was
granted. Those stipulations were enforced by the appointment of two
or more civil officers, directly from the government, to inspect the whale
of the chief's proceedings, as well in managing his troops as his lands.

Notwithstanding all these precautions, the usual consequences of
such grants did not fail to appear. The lands had from the first a tendency
to become hereditary; and the control of the government always grew
weaker in proportion to the time that had elapsed from the first assign-
ment. The original principle of the grant, however, was never lost sight
of, and the necessity of observing its conditions was never denied,

Annex F. No. 25

PROCLAMATION MADE BY ELPHINSTONE ON BEHALY OF BRITISH
GOVERNMENT, I5TH DECEMBER, 1818

{ Alienation Office Records, Deccan Commissioners Marathi Records Rumal
No. 165).

Seal of the Company.

Shri

A proclamation of the Honourable Company’s Sarkar Suhur Tisa
Ashara Maya Tain Wa Alaf, This proclamation is being written for the
information of all Jahagirdars and Saranjamdars that the Sardars,
Shiledars, and Mutsaddis and Sipais etc., were holding Talukas, Villages,
lands and allowances, etc. since ancient times and from the Peshwa
Sarkar for the maintenance of troops and personal dignity, in lieu of
services or without any service, and that it has now been ordered by
the Sarkar that their claims (to their holdings} be scrutinised and arrange-
ment be made for their personal expenses. This may be made known
to all concerned. Those who were in possession of Saranjam and Jahagir
in 1807-—1808 and till the end of the War continued to hold them, for
whatsoever purpose, should bring to Poona their documents of evidence
sanads and yadis of agreements etc., and within one month should
produce their evidence regarding whatever they were holding and also
whatever was resumed previously. Assignments will be made for their
maintenance on ascertaining their claims. Those who would give false
statements, would be considered as untrustworthy and will not get
anything. Those who would not present themselves within a period of
one month, their Yadis will not be scrutinised and-will not get anything.
Dated 15th December, 1818, Safar order of Elphinstone Saheb.

15th December, 1818.
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Annex F. No. 26

BoMmBay SARANJAM RULES OF 188 AND 1g0I

{ Accompaniment to Government Resolution No. 2674, dated the sth May,
1898.)

Rurss

In exercise of powers referred to in Rule 10 of Schedule B of Act XI
of 1852 and of the second subclause to clause 3 of Section 2 of Bombay
Act VII of 1863, His Excellency the Governor in Council is pleased to
issue the following rules for the purpose of determining the terms fo
which the continuance of Jaghirs and Saranjams and other allienations
of a political nature shali be subject:—

1. Seranjams shall be ordinarily continued in accordance with
the decision already passed or which may hereafter be passed by
Provincial Government in each case.

2. A Saranjam which has been decided to be hereditarily contin-
uable shall ordinarily descend to the eldest lineal male representa-
tive, in the order of primogeniture, of the senior branch of the family
descended from the first British grantee or any of his brothers who
were undivided in interest. But Provincial Government reserve to
themselves their right for sufficient reason to direct the continuance
of the Saranjam to any other member of the said family, or, as an
act of grace, to a person adopted inte the said family with the sanct-
ion of Provincial Government. When a Saranjam is thus continued
to an adopted son, he shall be liable to pay to Provisional Govern-
ment a Nazarana not exceeding one yeatr’s value of the Saranjam,
and it shall be levied from him in such instalments as Government
may in each case direct.

3. In the case of Saranjams which have been decided to be
continuable for two generations with a pension to the third, the
eldest surviving son shall be considered to represent a generation,
and the entire Saranjam shall descend to hirmn when he represents
Bthe second generation from the first British grantee, and a pension
when he represents the third. But if the elder son or sons of the first
British grantee have did before their father, but leave sons, the
grandson who ranks first in order of primogeniture shall, on his
grand father’s death, be regarded as the second generation, and
the entire Saranjam shall be continued to him, no pension being
granted to the next generation.

4. Proposed orders regarding succession of Saranjams in accord-
ance with the above rules, must as they constitute a technical
regrant of the Saranjam be submitted, in all cases, for the sanction
of Provisional Government.

5. Every Saranjam shall be held as a lifeestate. It shall be formally
resumed on the death of the holder, and in cases in which it is
capable of further continuance it shall be be made over to the next
holder as a fresh grant from Provisional Government, unencumbered
by any debts or charges save such as may be specially imposed by
Provisional Government itself.
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5 A.—In cases in which there is no suitable person to whom a
regrant can immediately be made or in which an immediate regrant
would be injurious to the interests of the estate, the Saranjam may
be attached and placed under Government management for such
period as Provisional Government may consider necessary; and the
revenues of the Saranjam, after deduction of the expenses of mana-
gement, may be assigned for the maintenance of the representatives
of the deceased Saranjamdar, in such manner and in such proportion
as Provisional Government may from time to time direct. (G.R.P.D.
No. 4684, dated 29-6-1901).

6. No Saranjam shall be capable of subdivision.

7. Every Saranjamdar shall be responsible for making a suitable
provision for the maintenance of the widow or widows of the pre-
ceding Saranjamdar, his own brothers, or any other member of his
family who, having a valid claim arising from infancy, mental or
physical infirmity, rendering such member incapable of earning a
live lihood, may be deemed deserving of support at his hands. When
this obligation is not fulfilled by any Saranjamdar, Provisional
Government may direct him to make suitable provisions for such
persons and may fix the amount, which he shall pay, in each instan-
ce: provided that no one who has independant means of his own,
or is in the opinion of Provisional Government otherwise sufficiently
provided for, shall be entitled to maintenance irom the Saranjamdar.

8. Every order passed by Provisional Government under the
above rule for the grant of maintenance by a Saranjamdar shall hold
good during his life only,

9. If an order passed by Provisional Government under Rule 7
isnot carried out, Provisional Government may, whatever the reason
may be, direct the Saranjam, or a protion of it, to be resumed, as the
circumstances of the case may require. Provision for the members
the Saranjamdar’s family entitled to maintenance shall then be
made by Provisional Government out of the revenues of the Saran-
jam so resumed.

10. Whenever it appears that a Saranjam or its revenues have
passed by attachment or any other process of the Civil Court into
the hands of a person other than the Saranjamdar, Provisional Gov-
ernment will ordinarily direct the Saranjam to be resumed and pass
sﬁuch order as to its regrant or other disposal as mav seem to them

tting.

11. The above rules shall be applicable not only to Saranjams
proper, but also to Chouth Saranjams,

12. Any Inam granted on political considerations shall be cont-
inued in the terms of the Sanad or order creating the grant. In the
event of any such Inam passing out of the possession of the family
for whose support it was granted, it shall be Liable to resumption,
unless there be an express provision permitting such transfer in the
terms of the grant.
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REVENUE DEPARTMENT VOL. 313 0F IQ0I, COMP. NO. 242, PAGE 3.

Addition to the Rules regarding Saranjams published with Government
Resolution No. 2674, dt. the 5th May, 1568.

No. 4684.

Poriticar, DEPARTMENT
Bombay Castle, 2gth June, 1goI.

Resolution of Government.

In exercise of the powers, referred to in Rule 1o of Schedule B of Act
XI of 1832 and of the second sub-clause 3 to clause of Section 2 of
Bombay Act VII of 1863, His Excellency the Governor in Council is,
pleased to make the following addition to the Rules published with
Government Resolution No, 2674, dated the sth May, 18¢8:

Rule 5 A.—In cases in which there is no suitable person to whom a
regrant can immediately be made, or in which an immediate regrant
would be injurious to the interest of the estate, the Saranjam may
be attached and placed under Government management for such
period as Government may consider necessary; and the revenues of
the Saranjam, after deduction of the expenses of management, may
be assigned for the maintenance of the representatives of the
deceased Saranjamdar, in such manner and in such propertion as
Government may from time to time direct.

2. This Rule should be published in the Bombay Government
Gazette and communicate to the officers concerned.

3. A copy of the Rule should be forwarded to His Majesty’s
Secretary of State for India in continuation of Bombay Government
Despatch No. 18, dated the 16th May 18¢8.

J. L. JENKINS,
Acting Secretary to Government,
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Annex F. No. 27

DEecision 19 DAULATRAO MALOTIRAO v. PROVINCE 0F BOMBAY BEFORE
THE HicH Court OF BoMBAY, 1047

TaE InpIaN Law REPORTS
BoMBAY SERIES

1947

AprPELLATE CIVIL

Before Sir LEonarD Stong, Kt., Chief Justice, Mr. Justice MACKLIN
and Mr. Justice Lokur.

DauLATRAO MALOJIRAO GHORPADE
{Original Plaintiff), Appellant v.

THE PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT OF BOMBAY AND OTHERS
(Original Defendants), Respondents.*

Saranjam tenure, incidents of —Sarvanjam rules, operation of—Adverse
possession of saranjam land—Resumption of lands by levy of full assess-
ment payable to Government—Lands cease to be part of Saranjam lands
and become Khalsa lands—Bombay Revenue Jurisdiction Act (X of 1876),
s, 12,

The whole structure of saranjam tenure is founded in the sovereign
right, which can only change by request or by treaty. So founded, jagirs
and saranjams, with the feudal incidents connected with them are
granted or withheld at the will and pleasure of the sovereign power, and,
if granted, the fixity of tenure is always subject to interruption and
revocation by resumption, be it temporary or absclute in character.
No incident normally applicable to private rights between subject and
subject can fetter or disturb the sovereign will. Hence adverse possession
by a private person for however long a duration is nugatory before
a paramount resumption or re-grant.

The saranjam rules made by Government are rules of convenience
only. They do not exhaust the general power of Government or prevent
Government from making a decision or deterrmmination referable to a
particular saranjam without altering the rules with regard to all of them.

‘The suit lands having an area of about 60 acres were situated in the
village of Kodaganur, which was one of the villages comprising the
saranjam called Gajendragad Estate. Prior to 1842 the suit lands were
.granted in Inam by a member of senior branch to an ancestor of defend-
ant No, z for Kulkarni services to the estate. In course of time the estate
came to be divided among the three branches of the original saranjam-
dar’s family, which division was recognised by Government at a later
date. In 1939, defendant No. 2 sold the land to defendant No. 3. The
portion of the estate, which comprised the 6o acres of land, fell to the
share of the plaintiff, who complained to Government about the alien-
ation. In 1892, Government directed that “full assessment should be
levied and the assessment sorecovered should be credited to Government.”

L Civil Reference No. 2 :of 1G45.
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This was followed in 1936 by another resolution, which stated: ““The
recognition of the above satd shares and their entry in the revenue
records as separate shares shall not be deemed to a mountto a recognition
of the estate of Gajendragad as in any manner partible or alienable and
shall not in any way effect the right of Government to treat the said
estate as an entire impartible or inalienable saranjam estate.” The dispute
between the plaintiff and defendant No. 3 was settled by Government
by a resolution dated October 26, 1937, which directed : ““The lands which
gone into the possession of one who is a total stranger to the saranjam-
dar’s family and who does not do any service to the family should be
resumed but the resumption should be by the levy of full assessment
which should be credited to Government and not to the saranjamdar,
as the lands have been lost to the saranjamdar’s family for a long time
and there is no obligation on Government to pay the assessment to the
Saranjarndar”. The plaintiff having made a claim to the 60 acres of
land, Government made a reference to the High Court, under s. 12 of
the Bombay Revenue Jurisdiction Act, 1876, referring the following
questions for opinion:—

“(1} Whether on the 25th February 1936, being the date of the sub-
divisional grant of the Gajendragad estate, the Saranjam tenure in
the 60 acres had been destroyed by the adverse possession of the Kul-
karni and his predecessors-in-title.

{2) Whatever be the answer to question (1), what is the effect upon
the tenure of the 60 acres as it existed immediately before the 25th
February 1936:

{a) as a result of the 1936 Resolution, and
(b) as a result of the 1937 Resolution™,

Held, (1) that the saranjam tenure in the 60 acres of land had not
been destroyed by the adverse possession of Defendant No. 2 and his
predecessor-in-title;

(2) that the Government Resolution of 1936 did not change the nature
of the tenure of the 6o acres already existing;

(3) that as a result of the resclution of 1937 the 60 acres were resumed
by Government by the levy of full assessment payable to Government,
and thereby they ceased to be part of the saranjam lands and became
khalsa lands.

Shekh Sultan Sani v. Shekh Ajmodin. ! Raghojirao v. Laxmanrao, 2
referred to.

REFERENCE was made by the Government of Bombay under s. 12
of the Bombay Revenue Jurisdiction Act in pursuance of recommend-
ation made by the High Court in its judgment dated 17th March 1944
in Cross Appeals Nos, 341 and 383 of 1940 from the decision of T, B,
Shanbag, Civil Judge (Senior Division), at Dharwar in Special Suit No.
53 of 1938. The reference was made in terms as follows:—

The suit lands, bearing old survey No. 83 but known by Revision Sur-
vey Nos. 121/1, I22, 123 and 124 having an area of about 60 acres, were
situated in the village of Kodaganur, which is one of the 27 villages com-
prising the saranjam called the Gajendragad estate. The whole estate
was formerly registered in Government records in the name of the senior
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branch of the family of Daulatrao (plaintiff). Prior to 1842, the suit land
was granted in inam by a member of the senior branch to an ancestor
of defendant No. 2 for kulkarniki service. The particulars of the grant,
viz. the names of the grantor and grantee were not known. In the year
1867, as a result of litigation in the family, the estate was informally
divided between the three branches of the family. In that division, the
village of Kodaganur fell to the share of Malojirao Daulatrao Ghorpade,
the father of the plaintiff. The history of that litigation would be tound
in the case of Bhujangrao v. Malojirao (5 B.H.C.K. 161). The partition
was recognised by Government in their resolution of the Revenue Depart-
ment No. 2735, dated April 26, 1882, and it was directed that the shares
allotted to the younger brothers should be regarded as their private
property in virtue of the High Court decree and that the saranjam estate
should be restricted to the portion awarded by the High Court to Bhu-
jangrao as the head of the family.

In the year 18g1 the question of settlement of the nature and tenure
of the Gajendragad jahgir cropped up for the first time. By their reso-
lution in the Political Department, No. 1769, dated March 17, 1891,
Government passed the following order without reference to the informal
division of the estate between the three branches of the family:—

“It appears to Government that the whole Gajendragad estate is a
saranjam continuable as hereditary in the fullest sense of the word as
interpreted by the Court of Directors in paragraph g of their Despatch
No. 27, dated December 12, 1855. It is continuable to all male legitimate
descendants of the holder at the time of the British conquest and should
Government ever sanction an adoption the terms of sanction would be
those applicable to saranjamdars, The property should be dealt with like
other saranjams in the Political Department. In the event of the saran-
jam or any part of the criginal saranjam being included in the scheme
for the revision of the Hyderabad Bombay Frontier, the reversionary
interest would have to be calculated, and the rights of the saranjamdar
should be guarded as recognised by Government. The family of the
saranjamdar should be made acquainted with this decision.”

In accordance with the order the name of Daulatrao Bhujangrao,
the senior member, was entered in the saranjam list for all the 27 villages
(including Kodaganur) as the sole saranjamdar and continued as such
till his death in May 193I.

In 1896 the plaintiff’s father Malojirao died and thereafter the plain-
tiff assumed occupation of that portion of the estate which had been
allotted to his father without any formal sanction of Government. The
suit land continued in the name of Daulatrao Bhujangrac the main
saranjamdar. In 1627 the plaintiff and his cousin Bhujangrao Yashvan-
trao applied to the revenue authorities for the introduction of survey
settlement in the villages in their possession and for recognition and
separate entry of their share in the estate in the saranjam list. Govern-
ment, by their resolution in the Political Department, No. 5376, dated
March 19, 1928, ordered that “Daulatrac Malojirao Ghorpade and Bhu-
jangrao Yeshavantrac Ghorpade cannot be regarded as holders of any
separate saranjam estate. The lands in their possession form part of the
Gajendragad saranjam which is held by Saradar Daulatrac Bhujangrao
Ghorpade,” Up to that time (i.e. from 1842 to 1928) the suit land had
remained in possession and enjoyment of the Kulkarni family of defend-
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ant No. 2. In 1929 the lands in the suit were sold by defendant No. 2 to
defendant No. 3, a stranger to the kulkarni family, for Rs. 8,000,

After the death of Daulatrao Bhujangrao in 1931 his son Bhujangrao
II applied that the whole of the saranjam should be resumed and regrant-
ed to him making suitable provision for the proper maintenance of the
junior members in accordance with . 5 of the Saranjam Rules, 18g83.
The application was opposed by other members of the family including
Bhujangrao Yeshavantrao who prayed that he and Daulatrao Malojirac
should be declared to be independent saranjamdars in regard to the
villages in their possession, or in the alternative the villages in their
possession should be treated as their private property. Government
directed in their Resolution in the Political Department, No. 8g6g,
dated June 7, 1932, that the saranjam should be formally resumed and
regranted to Bhujangrao Daulatrao, the eldest son of the deceased
saranjamdar, and it was further ordered that the shares held by the
junior branches “‘as potgi holders should be continued to them as at
present.” Against the decision the plaintiff and Bhujangrao Yeshvantrao
filed civil suit No. 23 of 1934. Thereafter, as a result of the negotiation
between Government and the plaintiff’'s representative Government
decided to recognise the junior branches of the family as de facto saran-
jamdars of the portion of the estate in their possession provided the
plaintiff withdrew the suit. The suit having been withdrawn Government
declared by their Resolution in the Political and Reforms Department,
No. 8gbg, dated February 25, 1936, as follows:—

“1. After careful consideration the Governor-in-Council is
pleased to confirm the decision in Government Resolution, Political
Department, No. 1769, dated March 17, 1891, and to declare that
the whole of the Gajendragad estate shall be continuable as an
inalienable and impartible saranjam on the conditions stated in
the said Resolution. Having regard however to the manner in which
different portions of the estate have been held by different branches
of the family, the Governor-in-Council, in modification of the orders
contained in Government Resolution, No. 8gbg, dated June 7, 1932
is pleased to direct that the portion of the said estate held by
Sardar Bhujangrae Daulatrao Ghorpade, Daulatrao Malojirao
Ghorpade and Bhujangrao Yashvantrao Ghorpade respectively,
shall henceforth be entered in the revenue records as de facto shares
in the said estate held by the said persons as representatives re-
spectively of the three branches of the Ghorpade family. Each of the
said de facto shares shall be continuable hereditarily as such as if
it were a separate saranjam estate in accordance with the rules
made for the continuance of the saranjam by the Governor-in-
Council in exercise of the powers referred to in the rules framed
under the Bombay Rent Free Estate Act, 1852 and s. 2 (3) of the
Bombay Summary Settlement Act {VII of 1863) and such special
orders as the Governor-in-Council may make in regard to the Gajen-
dragad estate as a whole or in regard to the said share. The recog-

- mition of the aforesaid shares shall not be deemed to amount to a
recognition of the estate of Gajendragad as in any manner partible
or alienable and shall notin any way effect the right of Government
to treat the said estate as an entire impartible and alienable Saran-
jam estate. ‘
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The Governor-in-Council further directs that the aforesaid shares
shall in no case be capable of sub-division and shall not in any way
be alienated or encumbered except in accordance with the rules and
orders referred to. above. The three shares referred to above shall
be continuable héreditarily to the three holders named above and
to such of their respective heirs as shall be male legitimate descend-
ants of the holders of the Gajendragad estate at the time of the
British conquest in accordance with the orders issued in paragraph
g of the Despatch of the Court of Directors No. 27, dated December,
12, 1855, and in Government Resolution (Political Department),
No. 1769, dated March 17, 1891. The holders of each of three shares
shall have the right to be consulted in the appointment of any village
officer in any village comprised in his respective share, but he shail
have no right to interfere with the management of the shares of the
other holders.”

The whole of the Gajendragad was thus divided into three separate
shares held respectively by the three named persons, and pursuant to
this order entries were made in the revenue records and the 60 acres
comprising the suit lands were entered in the name of the plaintiff,

The alienation of the suit land by defendant No. 2 in favour of defend-
ant No. 3 came to the notice of the main saranjamdar Sardar Bhujangrao
Daulatrao Ghorpade in 1933. He therefore applied to the Collector for
resumption and restoration of the land to him. Thereupon the plaintiff,
who was recognised by the resolution of 1936 as a saranjamdar of 1/3 of
the Gajendragad estate and to whose share the village of Kodaganur
had gone, applied to the Collector that the land in dispute should be
resumed and restored to him in preference to Sardar Bhujangrao, the
main saranjamdar. At or about the same time one Laxuman Rukmangad,
the officiating Kulkarni of the village of Kodaganur, applied to the
Collector that the land should be resumed and restored to him as it had
been originally assigned for kulkarniki service and alienated to a stranger
recently. There were several other similar alienations of lands belonging
to the estate which were standing for more than 60 years with the alien-
ees. (Government, to whom the matter was referred by the Commissioner,
Southern Division, passed the following order in their resolution in the
Political and Reforms Department, No. 8g69/2g51, dated October, 26,
937 —

“Government agree with the view of the Remembrancer of
Legal Affairs that the Saranjam lands which were alienated to
an outsider and which have been in his possession for more than
60 years cannot be claimed by the saranjamdar. The lands which
have gone in the possession of one who 1s a total stranger to the
saranjamdar’s family and who does not do any service to the family
should be resumed but the resumption should be by the levy of full
assessment which should be credited to Government and not to the
saranjamdar’s family for a long time and there is no obligation on
Government to pay the assessment to the Saranjamdar.”

Dissatisfied with these orders the plaintiff filed a suit against Govern-
ment and others for a declaration that as a de facto saranjamdar of a
share in the Gajendragad saranjam he was the owner of the suit lands
and for possession, and in the alternative, for a declaration that the
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suit lands were liable for contribution towards the remuneration of the
officiating kulkarni of Kodaganur and liable to pay judi of Rs. 15 a year
to the plaintiff. -

The trial Judge rejected Government contention on the question
of the Court’s jurisdiction under s. 4 (1} of the Revenue Jurisdiction Act
and partly decreed the plaintiff's claim by declaring that he was entitled
to recover judi from defendants Nos. 3 to 6 and that the suit lands were
liable to contribute in proportion to the potgi payable to the officiating
kulkarni.

Against this decision appeals were filed both by the plaintiff and Gov-
ernment, The High Court held that as the plaintifi’s claim was advanced
and rested upon a saranjam tenure, s. 4 of the Revenue Jurisdiction Act
was a bar to any relief being granted to the plaintiff against Government.
At the same time their Lordships were of opinion that the main questions
involved in this suit were very important for the general body of the
saranjamdars and they required to be judically considered. As those
questions could not be decided in view of s. 4 of the Revenue Jurisdiction
Act, their Lordships recommanded that Government should make a
szlgrence) to the High Court under s. 12 of the said Act. (See 47 Bom.

R. 214).

Government accepted the recommendation and, as suggested by the
High Court, submitted the following questions for decision:—

(1) Whether on February 25, 1936, being the date of the sub-
divisional grant of the Gajendragad estate, the saranjam tenure
in the 60 acres had been destroyed by the adverse possession of the
kulkarni and his pre-decessors-in-title?

{z) Whatever be the answer to question (1), what is the effect
upon the tenure of the 60 acres as it existed immediately before
February 235, 1936.

(@) of the 1936 Resolution and,

(8} of the 1937 Resolution?

H. C. Covagee with G. R, Mapsnavi, for the plaintiff.
S. A. Dgsar1, with 5. A. Kugr for the defendants.

C. K. DapuTary, Advocate General, with B. G. Rao, for the
Government of Bombay.

StonNe C. J. On March, 17, 1944, judgment was delivered in appeal
by my brother Divatia and myself, by which we held, that as the plain-
tiff's claim is advanced and rests upon a Saranjam tenure, s. 4 of the
Revenue Jurisdiction Act of 1876 is a bar to any relief being granted
to the plaintiff against Government relating to the suit lands, in so far
as they are classified to be granted or held as Saranjam. At the same time,
we pointed out, that the appeal raised a very important question so
far as the general body of the Saranjamdars is concerned and we have
intimated that Government might desire to have it judically determined
by making a reference under s. 12 of the Revenue Jurisdiction Act.
Accordingly, before passing any order, we gave an opportunity for a
reference to be made, and it is such reference which is now before this
Full Bench. The facts sufficiently appear from the judgments delivered
on March, 17, 1944, and arising out of what was then said Government
have referred to us the following questions:
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“(1) Whether on February 25, 1936, being the date of the sub-
divisional grant of the Gajendragad estate, the Saranjam tenure
in the 60 acres had been destroyed by the adverse possession of the
Kalkarni and his pre-decessors-in-title.

{2) Whatever be the answer to question (1), what is the effect
upon the tenure :of the 60 acres as it existed immediately before
February 23, 1936.

{a) as a result of the 1936 Resolution, and

{6} as a result of the 1937 Resolution”.

In its reference Government have concisely set forth the propositions
upon which it relies and it will be convenient to refer to these. They are
as follows:—

(1) That every Saranjam is held by the Saranjamdar as a life
estate,

(2} That Government have a common law right to resume it at
pleasure.

(3} That the law does not require Government to exercise that
right within a particular time.

{4} That land held on Saranjam tenure does not lose its Saranjam
character until the tenure is terminated; so long as the tenure
subsists, no possession of the land can be adverse to that tenure;
on the contrary it would be subject to the tenure.

(5) That the character of land held on Saranjam tenure does not
change by efflux of time.

{6) That no period of limitation being provided for the exercise
by the Government of their right to resume, such right is not
extinguished by éfflux of time.

(7) That the 60 acres of land in dispute were all along held on
Saranjam tenure, irrespective of whether the Saranjamdar or
the Kulkarni was in possession.

{8) That the R;esolution of 1936 formally resumed and regranted
the acres to Daulatrao Malojirao, the Plaintiff, Saranjam tenure
therefore continued.

(9) That by the Resolution of 1937 Government finally exercised
their common law right of resumption as they found that the land
had passed into the possession of non-Saranjamdar. Saranjam
tenure was therefore extinguished.”

The propositions are a substantial departure from the allegations
contained in the written statement filed by Government in the suit;
but this is immaterial, because Government has succeeded in this
appeal by virtue of the Court’s want of jurisdiction, and the issues now
before us are circumscribed by the reference. The contention now
advanced on behalf of Government is in substance that land held by
virtue of Saranjam ténure cannot be alienated to a stranger, because
the tenure is but an adjunct of and springs from the sovereign right,
and only subsists at all by virtue of the will and pleasure of the sovereign
power. It is therefore contended that the Crown’s paramount right to
the overlordship in the land is unassiable by adverse possession by a
subject for however long duration. We are indebted te Counsel for all
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the parties for the interesting debate which has taken place before us.
The principal authorities to which we have been referred are the cases
Shekh Sultan Sani ». Shekh Ajmodin ! and Raghorirao Laxmanrao.®
We have also been referred to the treatise written by Colonel Etheridge
in the year 1874 and which is contained as a preface to a book described
as “‘List of Saranjams”, and also to an admirable little book, “the Law
of Saranjams”, by Mr. N. H. Phadnis. An exatnination of the authorities,
in my judgment makes it clear, that the whole structure of Saranjam
tenure is founded in the sovereign right, which can only change by
conquest or by treaty. So founded, Jaghirs and Saranjams, with the feudal
incidents connected with them, are granted or withheld at the will and
pleasure of the sovereign power, and, if granted, the fixity of tenure is
always subject to interruption and revocation by resumption, be it
temporary or absolute in character. No incident normally applicable
to private rights between subject and subject can fetter or disturb the
sovereign will. Thus adverse possession by a private person for however
long duration is nugatory before a paramount resumption or re-grant.
But Mr. Coyajee on behalf of the appeliant, the Saranjamdar, submits
that even so the sovereign power has by its legislative constituent bound
itself by rules, and that even if historically the basis of the tenure was
the sovereign will and pleasure, the rules have created a new quality of
durability. In my previous judgment I referred to these rules as being
rules of convenience only and a further examination of them and their
origin confirms me in that view, These rules which were made on 18¢8
are made under r. 10 of schedule P to Act XTI of 1852 and under the second
sub-cl. to cl. (3) of s. 10 of Bombay Act VIII of 1863, Rule 10 in the
1852 Act is as follows:

“These rules shall not be necessarily applicable to jaghirs, and
saranjams or other tenures for service to the Crown, or tenures of
a political nature, the titles and continuance of which shall be
determined as heretofore under such rules as the Provincial Gov-
ernment may find it necessary to issue from time to time.”

And the sub-cl. in the 1863 Act provides:

“Lands granted or held as saranjam or on similar political nature,
shall be resumable or continuable in such manner, and on such terms,
as Government on political considerations, may, from time to time
see fit to determine.’”

It should be observed in passing, that there is a distinct contract be-
tween that sub-clause and the next one which provides that “lands held
for service shall be resumable or continuable under such general rules
as Government may think proper, from time to time, to lay down”
In my opinion the rules with which we are concerned cannot exhaust the
general power or prevent Government from making a decision or deter-
mination referential to a particular Saranjam without altering the rules
with regard to all of them. Accordingly in my opinion the answer to
question I referred to us is “No”, that is to say the Saranjam tenure
was not destroyed be adverse possession.
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It follows from this and from an examination of the Resolution of
1936, that question 2 (a) should be answered by saying that the Resolution
had no effect upon the nature of the tenure of the 6o acres. It is to be
observed that when examined the 1936 Resolution is not itself a re-grant,
for it provides that each of the said de facto shares of the existing grant
of the whole estate shall be continuable hereditarily as such as if it were
a separate Saranjam estate. It did not in fact change the nature of the
tenure of the 60 acres already existing.

Question 2 (b) causes at first sight a little difficulty, not because there
is now any doubt as to Government’s power to resume arbitrarily the
Saranjam or any part of it if it so thinks fit and to re-grant it in whole
or in part as Khalsa land, but as to the effect of the Resolution itself.
It is dated October 26, 1937, and is as follows:

“Government agree with the view of the Remembrancer of Legal
Affairs that the Saranjam lands which were alienated to an outsider
and which have been in his possession for more than 60 years cannot
now be claimed by the Saranjamdar. The lands which have gone
in the possession of one who is a total stranger to the Saranjamdar’s
family and who does not do any service to the family should be
resumed, but the resumption should be by the levy of full assess-
ment which should be credited to Government and not to the Sa-
ranjamdar as the lands have been lost, to the Saranjamdar’s family
for a long time and there is no obligation on Government to pay
the assessment to the Saranjamdar. The orders of the Collector of
Dharwar directing the assessment to be paid to the Saranjamdar
are hereby cancelled.”

This was based on the view which then prevailed with Government’s
advisers and which we have referred to in our previous judgment in the
quotation that: :

... the aliences who obtained possession in 1863 and 1870 at
execution sales have been in possession in contravention of the
rules or orders governing Saranjams and can claim to hold adversely
to Government. As these aliences have, by a lapse of 6o years,
acquired an indefeasible right to remain in possession, under s, 28
read with art. 149 of the Limitation Act, their indefeasible right has
now ripened into a preseriptive title. The Saranjam tenure of these
lands has been extinguished and Government cannot exercise their
common law right of resumption, although such right was exercis-
able at pleasure.”

But because Government gives a wrong reason for something it does,
the wrong reason does not operate to abrogate the operative part of the
Resolution, since it is not necessary for Government to give any reason
at all. The order of thé Collector referred to in the Resolution is dated
the 26th of August 1934, is in fact in two parts, by the first part he ordered
the resumption of the land by levy of full assessment and by the second
part he ordered that siich assessment be paid to the Saranjamdar. It is
the latter part of the order which is referred to in the last sentence of the
Resolution of 1937. Although this Resolution is not happily worded,
since the body of it is conched in words of future, whereas cancellation
of the Collector’s order is expressed as being “hereby cancelled”; it
does in my opinion operate to resume the Saranjam estate and accord-
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ingly in my opinion the answer to question 2 (b) should be thatasa
result of the Resolution of 1957 the 60 acres ware resumed by Govern-
ment by the levy of full assessment payable to Government and thereby
they ceased to be part of the Saranjam lands and become Khalsa lands,

Having thus finished with the reference before us, there is an out-
standing point on the appeal with regard to the position of the Kulkarni.
But Mr. Coyajee on behalf of the appellant the Saranjamdar is now
content to leave this question in the hands of Government. So we need
say no more about it.

There remains the question of costs. The order which is proposed is
that the appeal be dismissed with one set of costs to be paid to Govern-
ment, that the cross-appeal be allowed with one set of costs to be paid
to Government. As to the other defendants they will get from Mr. Coya-
jee’s client one set of costs on the appeal but they must pay their own
costs of the cross-appeal and of the reference, and Government will pay
its own costs of the reference.

MacgLIN J. I agree and have nothing to add.

Loxuk J. I agree and have nothing to add.
Per Curian—The order for costs will be as proposed above.

Answered accordingly
and
Appeal dismissed.

J.G. R.

Annex F. No. 28

DecIisioN IN RAMCHANDRA v. VENKATARAO BEFORE THE HIGH COURT
oF BoMmeay, 1882

Tae INpDiaxy Law REPORTS
BoMmBAY SERIES

7 Vor. VI. 1882
une 12.
APPELLATE CIvIL

Before Mr. Justice MELVILL and Mr. Justice KEMBALL.

RamMcHANDRA MANTRI {Original Defendant), Appellant, v. VENKATRAO
and B. M. MANTRI (Original Plaintiffs), Respondents. *

Saranjam—Jaghir—Grant of revenue—Grant of soil—Pensions” Act XXITT
of 1871—Evidence—Burden of proof—Impartibility—Primogeniture.

The grant in jaghir or saranjam is very rarely a grant of the
soil, and the burden of proving that it is in any particular case a
grant of the soil lies very heavily upon the party alleging it.

It is for the Government to determine how saranjams are to held
and inherited, and in cases where the Civil Courts have jurisdiction
over claims relating to saranjams in consequence of the non-appli-

1 Regular Appeal, No. 21 of r88o.
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cability of the Pensions’ Act XXIII of 1871 or otherwise, they
would be bound to determine such claims according to the rules,
general or special, laid down by the British Government. In the
absence of such rules the Courts would be guided by the law appli-
cable to impartible property.

Semble, that a saranjam is impartible, and on the death of the
eldest son descends to his son, in preference to his surviving brother.

This was an appeal from the decision of Rao Bahadur P. 5.
Binivale, Subordinate Judge (First Class) of Satara.

The materijal facts of the case are as follows:—

The plaintiffs and the defendant are members of the Mantri family,
the last head of which was one Vyankatrao, who died on the 1gth of
August, 1863. He left three sons, Narayanrao, Madhavrao and Bhas-
karrao. The first of these was the eldest, and was the father of the
defendant, Ramchandrarav; the second was the father of the plaintiff
Venkatrao; and the third is the plaintiff No. 2. The propositus owned
considerable property, moveable and immoveable, amongst which were
the villages of Bagni and Kameri in the Satara District, Kochre in the
Ratnagini District, and Pandharpur in the Sholapur District. The
plaintiffs alleged that they and the defendant were undivided and sued
for division in the Court of the First Class Subordinate Judge of Satara,
who was empowered by the High Court to try the suit. The defendant
contended, among other things, that he was a sardar exempt from the
jurisdiction of the ordinary Civil Courts by Regulation XXIX of 1827;
that the village of Bagni was impartible and descendable to the eldest
son only as being a grant in saranjam. He also contended that the grant
was a grant of the revenue, and not of the soil, and that without a
certificate from the Collector of Satara the Civil Court under the Pensions’
Act XXIII of 1861 no jurisdiction to try the suit. The Subordinate Jud-
ge, holding that a saranjam was necessarily a grant of the soil, awarded
the bulk of the plaintiff’s claim. The defendant appealed to the High
Court. .

Jardine and Hon. V. N. Mandlik for the appellant.—QOur contention
is that the grant of Bagni in saranjam was an alienation of the land
revenue and not of the soil of the village, and that a saranjam was
impartible. The evidence adduced shows that saranjams are grants of
revenue. The onus was on the plaintiffs to show that such is not the case;
and they have not discharged their onus. The leading case in support of
our ‘proposition is Krishnarav Ganesh ». Rangrav ! and is followed in
Vaman Janardan Joshi v. The Collector of Thana? and Ramchandra
Sakharam Vagh v. Sakharam Gopal Vagh ® and other cases. Saranjams
are of three classes, but as to impartibility there is no distinction between
them, They are all impartible, and descend to the eldest son and senior
representative of the family. Inverarity and Shantaram Narayan for
the respondents, the original plaintiffs. —We submit that the evidence
shows that the soil, and not merely the revenue of the village of Bagni,
was alienated; that the defendant was a sardar for rank and precedence
only, his name being included in the red portion of the Saranjam List,

1 4. Bom. H. C. Rep. 1, A.C.]J.
2 6 Bom. H. C. Rep. 191, A.C.].
* ILL.R. 2 Bom. 346. °
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and that the rulings cited as to the nature of a saranjam were consider-
ably modified by the ruling in Ravji Narayan Mandlik v. Dadaji Bapuji
Desai *. It is not invariably the case that a grant in saranjam is an
alienation of the revenue merely. The Pensions’ Act is, therefore, not
applicable to this matter, and no certificate of the Collector is required.

MerviLy, J.—This is an appeal from the decision of the First Class
Subordinate Judge of Satara, who has allowed the claim of the plaintiff
to a partition of certain ancestral immoveable property.

The suit was for a division of lands, situated in the villages of Bagni
in the Satara District, Kameri in the same district, Kochre in the Rat-
nagiri District, and Pandharpur in the Sholapur District. The plaintiffs
also demanded a share in certain moveable property alleged to be in
the defendant’s possession.

The defendant claimed exemption from the jurisdiction of the Civil
Courts, on the ground that it is a grant in saranjamn, and, as such, im-
partible; and he further contended that the claim thereto is barred by
the provisions of the Pensions’ Act of 1871. He alleged that, as regards
the villages of Kochre and Padharpur, the suit is defective for want of
parties. He claimed to be entitled himself to a share of certain property,
moveable and immoveable, in the possession of the plaintiffs. Finally,
he took a general objection te the whole claim as being barred by limi-
tation: but this objection was not seriously pressed, and has clearly
nothing to support it: for Venkatrav, the ancestor of the parties, and
the last holder of the estate, died in 1863, and the suit was brought in
1872. It is, moreover, admitted that there has never been any partition
between the parties and that each is in enjoyment of some portion of the
family property.

The objection to the jurisdiction is equally untenable. The defendant
has put in the Bombay Government Gazette of the 18th July, 187z,
which contains a “‘List of the Three Classes of Sardars’”, to which is
appended a note that ““the names in red ink are those of the Sardars for
Rank and Precedence only””. The defendant’s name is one of those entered
in red ink. It is clear therefore, that the Government did not intend to
grant to the defendant the privileges which belong to certain sardars un-
der Regulation XXIX of 1827; and, although it was contended that the
Governiment could not deprive a sardar of those privileges, when his
name has once been entered in the list prepared under the Regulation,
yet the answer to this is that there is no evidence that the defendant’s
name was ever entered in the list prepared and furnished to the Judge
under section iii, clause 2, of the Regulation. It was held in Maharajgir v.
Anandrav and another ? that a sardar, whose name is entered in red ink,
is not thereby exempted from the jurisdiction of the ordinary Civil
Courts; and we see no reason to dissent from that decision.

The principal contention in the case is in regard to the village of Bagni;
and, as respects this village, two questions arise, namely, first, whether
the claim is barred by the provisions of the Pensions’ Act, No. XXIII
of 1871; and, secondly, if it be not so barred, wheterh the village, being
admittedly a grant in saranjam, ig impartible.

The Subordinate Judge, before whom the case first came, decided
that the claim to Bagni, (and indeed the whole claim, though it is not

! I.L.R. 1 Bom. 523.
? 8 Bom. H. C. Rep. 25, A.C.J.
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clear how the same reason could apply to the whole claim), was taken
out of the cognizance of the Civil Courts by the Pensions’ Act, inasmuch
as he held that the grant of Bagni was a grant, not of the soil, but of the
land revenue only, and the plaintiffs had not produced the certificate
of the Collector, which is necessary to enable the Civil Court to deal
with a claim relating to a grant of land revenue.

The case came before the High Court in appeal, and on the 15th
January, 1879, it was remanded to the Subordinate Judge, in order that
the parties might havé an opportunity of giving evidence as to the real
nature of the grant, and of showing whether it was a grant of the soil,
or only of the revenue; it appearing to the High Court that the grant,
or continuance, of a Vlllage in saranjam does not necessarily, and in
terms, import either the one estate or the other.

The present Subordinate Judge has now taken the evidence offered
by the parties: but it does not appear to have influenced his decision. He
has disposed of the question before him in the same summary way as his
predecessor; and has come to an opposite conclusion on equally insufficient
grounds. The former Subordinate Judge held that a grant in saranjam
is necessarily a grant of land revenue, and nothing more: his successor
seems to hold that it is necessarily a grant of the soil. We cannot, without
some qualification, support either conclusion: but, we think, that the
former comes nearer to the truth than the latter.

In Krishnarav Ganesh ». Rangrav ! Westropp, C. J., said: “Sanadi
grants in inam, saranjam, jagir, wazifa, wakf, devasthan, and sevasthan
are, generally speaking, more properly described as alienations of the
royal share in the produce of land, i.e. of land revenue, than grants of
land, although in popular parlance and in this judgment, occasionally
so-called.” This observation has frequently been quoted with approval
and the principle involved in it was the foundation of the decision in
Vaman Janardhan Joshi ». The Collector of Thana ®, which has been
followed in many subsequent decisions. In Rowji Narayan v. Dadaji
Bapuji?z Westropp, C.]J., repeated his former observation as being
undoubtedly true, though he qualified it by adding that “if words are
employed in a grant, which expressly, or by necessary implication,
indicate that Government intends that, so far as it may have any owner-
ship in the soil, that éwnership may pass to the grantee, neither Gov-
ernment nor any person subsequently to the date of the grant deriving
under Government can be permitted to say that the ownership did not
so pass.”” He then added: “In the sanad in evidence here, whosoever
framed it, was apparently determined that no ambiguity should exist
as to what the force of the term ‘village’ might be; “and, in order to be
explicit, he added to the grant of the village in inam the words “includ-
ing the waters, the treés, the stones, (including quarries}, the mines, and
the hidden treasures therein.” Consequently in that particular case the
Chief Justice refused to hold the Pensions’ Act applicable; remarking
that “an enactment of a character so arbitrary as Act XXIII of 1871,
which purports to déprive the subject of his right to report to the
ordinary Courts of Justice for relief in certain cases, ought to be construed
strictly, and the Courts should not extend its operation further than the
language of the Leglsl?,ture requires””. But the principle that grants in

! I.L.R. I Bom. 523,
? I.L.R. I Bom. 523.
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inam are ordinarliy to be regarded as grants of land revenue, and nothing
more, is in no way weakened by the decision in that case.

If this principle be true as regards grants in inam generally it appears
to us to be specially applicable to grants in Jaghir or saranjam.

Of these two terms Colonel Etheridge says in the Preface to the List
of Saranjams, published by him as the same stood on the 1st August,
1874, “Under the Mahomedan dynasty such holdings were known as
jaghir, under the Mahratta rule as saranjam. If any original distinctive
feature marked the tenure of jaghir and saranjam, it ceased to exist
during the Mahratta Empire: for, at the period of the introduction of
the British Government, there was no practical difference between a
jaghirdar and a saranjamdar, either in the Deccan or Southern Mahratta
Country. The terms jaghir and saranjam are convertible terms in these
districts. The latter is now almost universally adopted. These holdings,
being of a political character, were not transferable nor necessarily
hereditary, but, as a rule, were held at the pleasure of the Sovereign.
On succession a nazrana was levied. When of a personal nature, they
were termed Zat Saranjam, when for the maintenance of troops Fouj
Saranjam.” ' .

Colonel Etheridge’s observation that jaghirs were not necessarily
hereditary, hardly conveys a correct idea of the fact. It would have
been more correct if he had said that jaghirs were not necessarily grants
for life only, but might occasionally be hereditary. This is how the fact
is stated by the Judicial Committee in Gulabdas Jajgivandas ». The
Collector of Surat! where their Lordships say that a jaghir must be
taken, prima facie, to be an estate only for life, although it may possibly
be granted in such terms as to make it hereditary. Similarly, in the Fifth
Report from the Select Committee on Indian Affairs (p. 86) it was said:
“With regard to the jaghirs granted by Mohamedans either as marks
of favour, or as rewards for public service, they generally, if not always,
reverted to the State on the decease of the grantee, unless continued to
his heir under a new sanad; for the alienation in perpetuity of the rights
of Government in the soil was inconsistent with the established policy
of the Mahomedans, from which they deviated only in the case of en-
dowments to the religious establishments and offices of public duty, and
in some rate instances of grants to holy men and celebrated scholars,”

The circumstance that grants of this kind were ordinarily of so tempo-
rary a nature, raises a presumption, even stronger than that which
existsin regard to inams generally, that the grants were ordinarily grants
of the land revenue, and not of the soil. And the best authorities on the
subject agree in so defining the nature of jaghirs and saranjams. Colonel
Etheridge, in the preface to which we have already referred, says: 1t
was the practice under former Governments, both Nahomedan and
Mahratta, to maintain a species of feudal aristocracy for State purpose
by temporary assignments of revenue, either for the support of troops
for personal service, the maintenance of official dignity, or other specific
reason. Holders of such grants were entrusted at the same time with the
powers requisite to enable them to collect and appropriate the revenue,
and to administer the general government of the tract of land which
produced it. Under the Mahomedan dynasty such holdings were known

I I.L.R. 3 Bom. 186.
* 7 Moore I. Apps. 555.
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as jaghir; under the Mahratta rule as saranjam.” Professor Wilson in
his Glossary defines saranjams as ‘‘temporary assignments of revenue
from villages or lands for the support of troops, or for personal service,
usually for the life of the grantee; also grants made to persons appointed
to civil offices of the State to enable them to maintain their dignity.
They were neither transferable, nor hereditary, and were held at the
pleasure of the Sovereign.” The term jaghir he defines as “a tenure com-
mon under the Mohamedan Government, in which the public revenues
of a given tract of land were made over to a servant of the State, together
with the powers requisite to enable him to collect and appropriate such
revenue, and administer the general government of the district”, Mr,
Steele (Hindu Castes, page 207) says: “Grants by the Native Government
in jaghir were either Fouj Saranjam, subject to the performance of
military service, or Jat Saranjam, personal jaghir. The subject of these
grants were the whole or particular portions of the revenues of villages
belonging to the Sarkar... Usually the grants depended on the pleasure
of the Sovereign, and the fidelity of the grantee... They were not,
in general, hereditary; sanads seldom exist; on the first grant it was
usual to give the grantee a khat or order addressed to the Government
officers of the district,”” Mr. Neil Baillie, in his Essay on the Land Tax
of India, says (page xliv) ““the jaghir is, properly speaking, an order upon
the khiraj of particular lands, which are said to be granted by way of
jaghirs. Two examples of it are given in the Appendix; and the terms in
which they are expressed are worhty of attention. In both a sum of
money, so many lakhs of dams is said to be bestowed out of a particular
pergunneh, the officers and inhabitants of which are directed to account
for their just rents and dues of the Divani (that is of the Civil Govern-
ment), to the agent of the jaghirdar, up to the sum specified, from which
they are fornidden to withhold or deduct a single dam.” He then goes
on to say: ‘‘Though the jaghir was, in form, an order for the payment of
the khiraj, there is no doubt that the jaghirdar was treated, in some
respects, as the zamindar, or holder of the land. Thus No. IV of the Ap-
pendix is a perwanneh, addressed to the agent of a jaghirdar, in which
he is required to do justice to a complainant; and though the purpose
of the jaghir was to make a provision, by an order on the revenue, yet
this was said to be by way of jaghir, as if some holding or taking of the
land itself was necessary to give due effect to this object. The jaghir is
thus sometimes treated as an estate in land, not only in the Regulations
of the Indian Government, but also in the decisions of the Courts of
Justice, and in this sense it is considered to be, essentially, an estate for
life. There is reason, however, to think this view of the jaghir to be
erroneous. As an order for payment of the Khiraj to a particular person,
it necessarily fell to the ground on his death, unless some other persons,
by name or description, were included in the grant. Such other persons
might be his children: and if a jaghir were granted to a man and his
children, there seems to be no just reason why it should not pass to them
at his death; much less is there any just cause for suspecting the genuine-
ness of a document constituting a jaghir, because it contains such words,
as seems to have been done in the case above alluded to.” We understand
Mr, Neil Ballie as expressing in this passage a clear opinion that, although
the etymology of the word jaghir has sometimes given rise to the idea
that the term involves a taking of land, or an estate in land, and al-
though a jaghirdar has been treated as having some of the powers of a
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land-holder, yet, in fact, the great is nothing more than an assignment
of land revenue. And the case of The East India Company ». Syed Ali *
shows that it was upon this ground that the Madras Government justified
the resumption of jaghirs, when it assumed the Government of the Car-
natic in 180I. At page 575 of the Report is the plea of the East India
Company, that “even when the language of the grants might seem to
convey a proprietary interest in the soil, the grantees confessedly possess-
ed no such interest, the subject-matter of the grant being a mere jaghir,
or portion of public land revenue, together with the Government powers
of collecting the same”.

The authorities which we have quoted (and none have been shown to
us which support a different conclusion) may, we think, be taken as at
least establishing that a grant in jaghir or saranjam is very rarely a
grant of the soil, and that the burden of proving that it is in any parti-
cular case a grant of the soil lies very heavily upon the party alleging it.
If it had not been that in the present case, in which there is no sanad, a
Division Bench remanded the case for the taking of evidence, we should
have been disposed to say that such a contention could not be made out
by any evidence except such a sanad as was produced in Ravji Narayen,
v. Dadaji Bapuji already referred to. As, however, other evidence has,
by the direction of this Court, been taken, we feel bound to consider it:
but we have no difficulty in coming to the conclusion that it not only
fails to discharge the plaintiffs from the burden which lies upon them,
but that it supports the defendant’s contention that the grant of the
village of Bagni was nothing more than the grant of the land revenue.
The evidence on the point is meagre, as was to be expected: but it shows
that the jamabandi of the village is made by the Collector, and that the
village officers are appointed and paid by the Government. It shows
(exhibit 313) that, if dry-crop land was converted into garden land, and
so became liable to a higher rate of assessment, the saranjamdar had
to obtain the permission of the Mamlatdar to levy the increased assess-
ment. There is nothing to show how the village was entered in the Gov-
ernment accounts previously to the year 1863—64, but the tharavbund
for that year (exhibit No. 62) shows the village to be described as “Khalsa
Ryatava land”, ie. land cultivated by Government tenants, and it is
stated that out of the assessment Rs. 0, 847-g-0 is to be continued to
the Inamdar. Further on, the amount (which is liable to deductions for
certain payments) is stated as Rs. 7,902.9.0, “Purbhara Juma Khurch”,
i.e., to be levied by the Inamdar without reference to Government. The
tharavbund for 1872-73 (exhibit Nol. 336) shows that the village was
ordered to be entered under the heading “Political”, and the dumaldar’s
{or saranjamdar’s) interest in it is stated as Rs. 6,610-g-0, payable in
cash. Some stress was laid by the plaintiffs’ counsel on the circurnstance
that in Colonel Etheridge’s List of Saranjams “‘the entire village of
Bagni” is entered under the leading ‘“‘Description of Saranjam”, while
in many other cases the entries show merely a grant of the whole or part
of certain ‘Amuls’, or items of revenue. We do not, however, think that
this difference in the mode of description indicates an intention on the
part of Colonel Etheridge to draw a distinction between the grant of the
soil in one case and the grant of the revenue in another. Having regard -
to the general description of saranjams, which we have quoted from his

1 7 Moore I. Apps. 555.
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Preface, it is very unlikely that he should, without any explanation,
declare that in certain cases there had been an ecxeptional grant of the
soil of a village. If he did intend to make such a declaration in case of
Bagni, we can only say that he appears to us to have had no sufficient
grounds for so doing. It is not suggested that he had any materials in
1874 which are not before us now; and we are quite unable, on the evi-
dence before us, to come to any other conclusion than that the plaintiffs
have wholly failed to prove that the grant of the village of Bagni was
anything more than a grant of the land revenue.

It follows that, in our opinion, the Pensions” Act is applicable; and as
the plaintiffs have failed to produce a certificate from the Collector,
their claim, so far as it'relates to the village of Bagni, must be rejected.

Some argument has; indeed, been addressed to us, founded on the
circumstances that certain lands in Bagni are described in the pleadings
as “sheri” lands, whicly are explained to be lands which were unoccupied
at the time of the grant, or in which tenant-rights have since lapsed. It
was contended that the saranjamdar might deal with the lands as he
pleased, and that, therefore, he is, as regards them, something more than
an alience of the land' revenue. But we are unable to appreciate this
argument. The saranjamdar may, of course, deal with all unoccupied
lands as may be best for the purposes of revenue, and may either cultivate
them himself or through tenants; but this is because he is entitled to
realise as much revenue as he can, and as best he can, and not because
he has a grant of the soil of unoccupied lands.

Our decision upon this preliminary peint of the application of the
Pensions’ Art puts it out of our power to give any decision on the second
question which we have mentioned as arising in regard to the village of
Bagni, namely, whether, the grant being one in saranjam, the plaintiffs
would be entitled to claim a partition of the village. As, however, the
case may go before a higher tribunal, it may not be out of place to offer
a few remarks upon this question.

The history of the manner in which Deccan saranjams were dealt
with by the Government of India and the East India Company, when it
succeeded to the Government of the Peishwa, is succinctly stated in
Colonel Etheridge's Preface. The correspondence cited by him shows
clearly enough that, when on the advice of Mr. Mountstuart Elphinstone,
then Commissioner at Poona, it was determined that all saranjams
granted prior to A.D. 1751 should be considered hereditary, this con-
cession was made, not as of right, but as an act of grace and State policy,
and the Government reserved to itself the power of determining, when-
ever occasions might arise, the nature and extent of its own bounty.
This reservation of the 'power of Government has been recognised in all
the legislation on the subject since Mr. Mountstuart Elphinstone, as
Governor of Bombay, framed his Code of Regulations. Section 38 of
Regulation XVII of 1827 provides that “land held exempt as jaghir
shall be liable to resumption and assessment under the general rules at
the pleasure of Government”. This is explained in clause 3, section I,
Regulation VI of 1833, which says: *“Jaghir or other lands held on service
tenure are declared to be resumable at the pleasure of Government,
under the forms laid down in Clause First, Section 38, Regulation XVII,
A.D. 1827”, it being understood that the expression used in the said
clause, viz, “under the general rules”, meant “such rules as Government
may think proper to issue from time to time”. Act XI of 1852, after
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providing for rules for adjudicating upon titles to exemption from pay-
ment of land revenue, says (Section 10): “These rules shall not be neces-
sarily applicable to jaghirs, saranjams or other tenures for service to
Government, or tenures of a political nature, the title and continuance
of which shall be determined, as heretofore, under such rules as Govern-
ment may find it necessary to issue from time to time.” So, in Bombay
Act IT of 1863, which was an Act to facilitate the adjustment of unsettled
claims to exemption from the payment of Government land revenue in
those parts of the Bombay Presidency which are subject to the operation
of Act XI of 1852, section 1, clause 2, says: “The excepted cases, to
which the authority of adjustment and guarantee vested in the Governor-
in-Council by this proviston shali not extend, are the cases of lands held
asfollows:—zxst. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0L
znd. Lands granted or held as jaghirs or saranjams, or on similar political
tenure.”

And the, lest any question should be raised (as was attempted to be
raised in the argument in this case}, whether the mere order of Govern-
ment that land should be entered in the accounts under the heading
“Political” is conclusive as to the political character of the grant, section
16 of the Act goes on to say: “Political tenure” is defined to be tenure
created from, or dependent upon, political consideration, the existence
of which shail be determined by the Government.” So, in Bombay Act
VIT of 1863, which is a similar Act relating to districts not subject to the
operation of Act XI of 1852, section 2, clause 2 provides that “lands
granted or held as saranjam, or on similar political tenure, shall be
resumable or continuable in such manner, and on such terrms as Gov-
ernment, on political considerations, may from time to time see fit to
determine’””; and section 32 contains a definition of the term “‘political
tenure”, similar to that which we have quoted from Bombay Act II of
1863. The Regulations and Acts which we have cited show beyond all
question that it is for the Government to determine how saranjams are
to be held and inherited, and that, if the Civil Courts had jurisdiction
over claims relating to saranjams, they would be bound to determine
such claims according to the rules laid down by the Government. It
would, therefore, be useless to refer, as in this case we have been referred,
to evidence tending to show, that under the Native Government, the
ancestors of the parties dealt with their saranjam villages as if they were
proprieters of the soil, and partitioned the villages among their families.
The questions which the Courts would have to consider would simply be,
what are the terms of the grant by which the British Government con-
tinued the saranjam? and what is the rule of succession laid down by
the British Government for saranjams in general, or for this saranjam in
particular?

In the case before us the saranjam was continued in the family of
Venkatrav Bhaskar, the father and grandfather of the parties, by a
Resolution of Government in the Political Department, No. 1819, dated
17th June, 1864; that Resolution is as follows:—

“The Honourable the Governor-in-Council is of opinion that it has
been satisfactorily shown that the villae of Bagni was held as a personal
saranjam by the family of Venkatrav Bhaskar for a century before the
introduction of British rule. It should now be pronounced a saranjam
of the first class, and be continued hereditarily to the representative of
the first British grantee, Venkairav Bhaskar.”



ANNEXES TO REJOINDER (F No, 28) 301

Unless it were an accident (and in so important a document this is
unlikely), that the singular word ‘‘representative’”, and- not the plural,
was used, the Resolution indicates that it was the intention of Govern-
ment that the saranjam should descend always to the eldest member
of the family for the time being, and should not be divided amongst all
the representatives of the last incumbent. That this was the view taken
by the Revenue authorities in 1865 may be gathered from an order of
the Revenue Commissioner, dated 13th September, 1865, of which we
have allowed a certified copy to be put in in appeal. It appears to be an
answer to a petition from Madhavrav, the second son of Venkatrav,
and father of the present minor plaintiff Venkatrav. Venkatrav’'s eldest
son, Narayanrav, had died during his father’s life-time, and thereupon
the saranjam had been continued to Narayanrav’s son, the present
defendant Ramchandrarav, and not to Venkatrav’s eldest surviving son,
Madhavrav. Madhavrav, having obtained a certificate of heirship or
administration to Venkatrav, {and no doubt he was properly recognized
as having the best right to administer such portion of Venkatrav’s estate
as was governed by the ordinary rules of inheritance or servivorship),
seems to have applied' to have the saranjam continued to him as the
senior representative. The reply of the Revenue Commissioner was as
follows:—

“Madhavrav Venkatesh Muntri is informed, in reply to his petitions
of the dates marginally noted, that the Alienation Settlement Officer,
5.D., has reported that the village of Bagni was decided to be continu-
able, as a first class personal saranjam hereditarily, to the representative
of the first British grantee Venkatrav; that on Venkatrav’s death it was
restored, in accordance with the saranjam rules, to Ramchandrarav,
the eldest surviving son of Venkatrav’s eldest son; and that the certificate
of heirschip granted to the petitioner by the Judge of Poona cannot divert
the succession of holding, which is a political one, from the representative
line., Under these circumstances, the Acting Revenue Commissioner,
5.D., sees no reason to interfere with the order of the Collector of Satara,
against which the petitioner complains.”

From this document it would appear that, under “‘the Saranjam rules”
an hereditary saranjam is considered by the Revenue authorities to
descend entire to the eldest representative of the last holder, and that,
if the eldest son pre-deceases his father, his son takes precedence of the
next surviving son of the last holder. If this be the rule, the defendant’s
title in the present case is established. During the hearing of this appeal
we caused a letter to bewritten to the Government, asking that we might
be favoured with a copy of the Saranjam Rules; and, in reply, we have
been informed that the only rule are those contained in the Preface to
Colonel Etheridge’s List of Saranjams, to which we have so repeatedly
referred. As the Regulations and Acts which we have quoted contemplate
that jaghirs and saranjams should be continuable under general rules
to be issued from time to time by Government, it seems strange that no
rules should be forthcoming, bearing the authorisation of the signature of
a Secretary to Government, We must, however, take it that Colonei
Etheridge speaks under the authority of Government when he says, in
the Preface to which we have been referred, that succession to saranjam
is restricted to lineal male heirs in the order of primogeniture; and that
the eldest son is the heir in the first instance. Colonel Etheridge says that
in saranjams of the second class, if the eldest son of the first British

|
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grantee dies before his father, but leaves a son, that son, on his grand-
father's death, is to be considered the second generation, and the whole
saranjam will be continued to him. But, curiously enough Colonel Ether-
idge does not say whether the same rule of succession would be applicable
to hereditary saranjams; and on this point, therefore, we are left without
any distinct rule. The rule to which the Revenue Commissioner referred
in 1865, as giving to the son of a pre-decessed eldest son a preference
over his uncle, is not forthcoming in the Secretariat; nor does Mr. Nairne
in his Handbook mention any such rule, except that which we have al-
ready quoted from Colonel Etheridge’s Preface, as applicable tosaranjams
of the second class. In the absence of a rule made by Government, the
Courts would, if they had jurisdiction in the matter, be obliged to decide
according to the ordinary rule of Hindu law applicable to impartible
property; and although, as stated by Mr. Mayne in his work on Hindu
Law (section 461), there is rather a want of authority as to the rule to
be adopted where an eldest son, who has never taken the estate, has died,
leaving younger brothers, and also a son, yet the Courts would probably
hold that the grandson took in preference to his deceased father’s eldest
surviving brother. In the present suit it is to be observed that the second
plaintiff, Bhaskarrav, who is Venkatrav’s only surviving son, does not
cliam the saranjam, to the exclusion of his nephews, as being himself the
eldest representative, but joins with one nephew in claiming a partition
from the other. It would, therefore, be a sufficient answer to the present
suit for partition, if the Court were merely to say that a saranjam is
impartible, and it would not be absclutely necessary to determine
whether the defendant, Ramchandrarav, as the son of Venkatrav's
eldest son, or the plaintiffi Bhaskarrav, as Venkatrav’'s only surviving
son, is entitled to be regarded as Venkatrav’s representative.

As regards the question of the impartibility of a saranjam, the rule
stated by Colonel Etheridge is in accordance with the orders conveyed
in a despatch from the Court of Directors, No. 27, dated 12th December,
1855. In paragraph zo of that despatch they say: “We agree with you
that saranjams should not be sub-divided, but that the holders should
be required to make a suitable provision for their younger brothers.”
A jaghir, to which service is attached, is certainly not divisible, but
descends to the eldest son: Hurlall Singh v. Jorasun Singh *, cited with
approbation by Lord Kingsdown in 6 Moore’s Indian Appeals, 125, and
Rajah Nilmoney Singh v. Nakranath Singh decided by the Privy Council,
1oth March, 188z. There is some evidence in the present case that the
saranjam was originally given for the maintenance of a body of horse,
and was, therefore, in 1ts inception a jaghir held for service. But inde-
pendently of this, and of any Government rule, the same principle would
probably be applied to all saranjams on the ground stated by Mr. Mayne
(Hindu Law, Section 393), that an estate, which has been alloted by
Government to a man of rank for the maintenance of his rank, is indivis-
ible, as otherwise the purpose of the grant would be frustrated.

The claim of the plaintiffs, so far as it relates to the village of Bagni,
being rejected, the remaining questions at issue between the parties are
not of an important character.

The plaintiff’s right to a share in the lands mentioned in the plaint as
situated in the village of Kameri in the Valva Taluka of the Satara

1 6 Calc. 5. D. 169, 204.
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District, does not appear to have been disputed, and the Subordinate
Judge’s ‘award of this share must be confirmed.

As regards the lands|in Pandharpur and Kochre, it is in evidence that
these lands have never; been divided, but that they are held jointly by
the parties fo the suit and other co-parceners. The income derived from
Pandharpur is said to be devoted to religious purposes, while the rents
and profits of the lands in Kochre are divided among the co-parceners.
If the plaintiffs desire that these lands should be divided by metes and
bounds, they must make all the co-parceners parties to their suit; but
they are not entitled to a decree for partition in a suit so defectwely
constituted as the present Nor can they recover anything from the de- °
fendant as mesne profits of the village of Kochre. It is not proved that
the defendant has received any profits from that village, which should
have been paid to the plaintiffs. On the contrary, as the Subordinate
Judge observes the evidence of witness No. g1, who was called for
the plaintiffs, shows that the plaintiff, Bhaskarrav and his deceased
brother Madhavrav have received their share of the proceeds, though
the accounts have not been made up for two or three years.

It is admitted that the house and other property at Poona, which is
mentioned in the plaint, is in the possession of the plaintiffs. The defend-
ant is entitled to a sharé in this property. We agree with the Subordinate
Judge in holding that the plaintifs have not proved that the defendant
has any moveable property in which they are entitled to share. On the
other hand, the defendant has endeavoured to show that there is a very
large quantlty of moveable property in the plaintiffs’ possession, which
ought to be brought into hotchpot. Although he raised an issue in regard
to the existence of this property, the Subordinate Judge does not appear
to have recorded any definite finding on the subject. The defendant relies
chiefly upon a documeént, exhibit No. 23z, which purports to be a
testamentary dlSpOSlthll of his property made by Venkatrav shortly
before his death. It enimerates all the estate belonging to Venkatrav,
and distinguishes thosé¢ portions of the moveable property which were
at the time in the possession of Madhavrav, Bhaskarrav and Ram-
chandradav, respectively. The defendant refers to this document as
showing tha.t at the time of Venkatrav’s death, Madhavrav and Bhas-
karrav had a much larger share than he had of the family jewels and
other valuables, and he argues that the plaintiffs are bound to account
to his for him proper share of this property. We are mot aware of any
rule of evidence by v1rtue of which the statements contained in the
document, exhibit No. 232, could, even if the document be genuine, be
admitted as esta.bhshmg the existence of property in the hands of the
plaintiffs. But, in fact, the document was constdered by the Subordinate
Judge tobea forged document : and we see no sufficient reason for dis-
senting from his conclusion. The account given by the witnesses (Nos. 260,
262, 263 and 2635) of the manner in which the document came into the
hands of the defendant at a late period of the suit is very unsatisfactory;
and, considering how much it was to the defendant’s advantage that
effect should be given to Venkatrav’s will, it is almost incredible that
for twelve years the witness No. 260, who was in the defendant’s employ,
should not even have informed his master of the existence of the will.

We have been referred to the evidence of a number of witnesses
(Nos. 178, 180, 183, 184, 187 to 192, and 194) as showing that the plain-
tiffs have, at some timel! lor other, been in ‘possession of valuable orna-
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ments and other moveable property. We have carefully perused the depo-
sitions of these witnesses; but we find that they are of too vague a
character to enable us to say with any certainty that the plaintiffs are,
or have been, in possession of any particular articles which are liable to
partition, or, if such articles exist, to determine their nature and value.
It is clear that, until the present suit was brought the defendant never
thought of claiming a share in the moveable property in the hands of
the plaintiffs; and it is not likely that he would have acquiesced, from
Venkatrav’s death in 1863 until this suit was brought in 187z, in such a
very unequal apportionment of the family jewels, &c., as he now alleges

* to have been made. On the whole, therefore, we are of opinion that the

Subordinate Judge properly declined to make a decree in regard to the
moveable property in favour of either party.

We amend the decree of the Subordinate Judge, and direct that the
defendant do deliver to the plaintifis two-thirds of the property in the
village of Kameri which is mentioned in the plaint, and that the plaintiffs
do deliver to the defendant one-third of the house and other property
at Poona mentioned in the plaint. The rest of the plaintiffs’ claim is,
for the reasons stated in this judgment, disallowed.

The plaintiffs must bear all costs throughout.

Decree varied,

Annex F. No. 23

DECISION IN SECRETARY OF STATE . LAXMIBAI BEFORE
THE Privy CoUXCIL, 1922

TueE Law REPORTS

INDIAN APPEALS, THE PrRIVY COUNCIL

Vor. L.—1922-1923

COUNCIL . . Appellant;

AND
LAXMIBAI AND ANOTHER . . . . . Respondents.

ON APPEAL FROM THE HIGH COURT AT BOMBAY

Saranjam—Grant of Revenue or of Land—Absence of Presumption—Right
of Resumption.

A saranjam may be either a grant of the soil, and the whole
revenue derived from it, or a grant of the royal share of the revenue
only. It must be determined In each case upon the facts what was

! Present: Lord Phillimore, Sir John Edge, Sir Lawrence Jenkins, and Lord
Salvesen.
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the quality of the original grant, although it may be that it is
ordinarily a grant of the royal revenue only.

Suryanarayana v. Patanna (1g18) L.R. 45 I.A. 209, and Chidam-
bara Sivaprakasa v. Veerama Reddi (1922) L.R. 49 I.A. 286 applied.

In the present case in which the plaintiff's ancestor appeared to
have been in possessmn of the land at the time of the original grant,
it was held, having regard to the language of the documents and to
other circumstances, that the grant was of the land; and that the
Government, exermsmg the right of resumption, was entitled to
gject the plalntlff ‘not merely to reasses the land. Although there
was a certain onus upon the Government to justify its dispossession
of the plaintiff, that was of little materiality, since a definite con-
clusion in fact could be drawn as to the quality of the estate granted.

Judgment of the High Cowrt (LL.R. 41 B. 408) reversed.

APPEAL {No. 50 of 192I) from a judgment and decree of the High
Court {December 22, 1916) reversing a decree of the District judge of
Dharwar (January 6, 1913).

The suit was brought by one Gururao, since deceased and represented
by his widow the first respondent, agamst the appellant, the Secretary
of State, and Vithalrao, the second respondent, to recover certain lands
forming part of the Hebli estate.

That estate had been granted by the Government of the Peshwa at
somé date prior to 1775. No sanad was in existence, but proceedings
before the Inam Commission of 1838, which contained certain records,
were put in evidence,

On the introduction of British rule the estate was enjoyed in two
moicties, one (which was not in question in the present proceedings) by
Lakshmanrao representing the senior branch of the family, and the
other by Ramchandrarao representing the junior branch. On the death
of Ramchandrarao in 1818 the estate was continued, a nazrana being
paid. Each of his two sons entered into separate enjoyment of a portion
of their father’s estate, and that was recognized by the authorities.
On the death of the elder son, which took place in 1842, the estate was
continued to his son Pandurangrao above mentioned, on payment of a
nazrana. In 1858 the Inam Commissioner decided under the Inam Rules
that the Hebli estate was granted as a saranjam, which is a political
tenure resumable by Government. In 1879 Pandurangrac executed a
document purporting to partition his estate among his four sons. Pan-
durangrao died in 18gg/and Government then resumed his estate and
bestowed it on the second defendant.

In 1907 Ramrao, a gra.ndson of Pandurangrao, filed a suit against the
Secretary of State cla.lmmg to be entitled to one-sixteenth share of the
saranjam, alleging it to be sarva inam and non-resumable, but his suit
was dismissed both in the District Court and by the High Court at Bom-
bay on appeal (see L1.R. 34 B. 232).

The present plaintiff was another grandson of Pandurangrao, and the
second defendant was the son of Pandurangrao’s eldest grandson. The
plaint alleged that thel Hebli estate was a sarva inam, granted to the
plaintiff’s ancestor, and that consequently the lands in suit were his
absolute property. By an amendment the plaintiff raised an alternative
case as follows: Sara.n]a.m grant is a grant of the revenue only and
the Government cannot resume the raitava rights which the plaintiff and




396 ANNEXES TO REJOINDER (F No. 20)

his ancestors have been enjoying from ancient times. And even if the
saranjam grant be of the soil, Government has no right to resume it.
And the estate in suit is partible.”

The District Judge dismissed the suit. He held that the estate was a
saranjam and not a sarva inam. In his view the saranjam was a grant
of the land revenue only, but he was of opinion that the right to hold
the lands was a part of the grant and that they were consequently resum-
able with the saranjam. He further held that under s. 4 of the Revenue
Jurisdiction Act (X. of 1876} the Court had no jurisdiction to hear the
suit, save so far as the plaintiff had acquired occupancy rights apart from
the grant; and he found that no occupancy right had been acquired,
The learned District Judge in the passage in his judgment which is
referred to in the judgment of the judicial Committee, said in relation to
facts appearing in the Inam Commission proceedings: “Now as Hebli
was in the possession of Balvantrao in 1757-8 and was resumed by the
Peshwa in 1761 and given in farm to Balwantrao, and was in the follow-
ing year included in the saranjam grant to others who were merely
directed to pay a certain cash allowance to Balwantrao, it seems clear
that under the original grant the right to hold the Jand was taken to be
a part of the saranjam and resumable with the saranjam.” He also found
that the documents showed that the nazrana had been levied not only
on the royal share of the revenue, but upon the entire revenue derived
by the saranjamdar, including that which he obtained in the same way
as an occupant of unalienated land. )

Upon appeal to the High Court the plaintiff abandoned his contention
that the estate was a sarva inam, but upon his alternative claim his
appeal was allowed. The appeal was heard by Bachelor and Shah JJ,,
the former concurring with the judgment delivered by the latter learned
judge. The proceedings are reported at I.L.R. 41 B. 408.

Shah J. in the course of his judgment said: “Now it is well established
that in the case of saranjam or jahagir (the terms being convertible)
the grant is ordinarily of the royal share of the revenue and not of the
soil and that the burden of proving that in any particular case it is a
grant of the soil lies upon the party alleging it: see Krishnarao ». Ran-
grac!; Ramchandra ». Venkatrao? and Ramkrishnarao v. Ndnarao ®...
On not a single occasion does the grant appear to have been made in
terms which would indicate a grant of the soil or which would indicate
that the grant had any relation to the occupation of the lands. The
grantees were in prior occupation of the lands and they were continued
in possession of the lands without any liability to pay the royal share of
the revenue. It is also a settled rule in this Presidency that in the case
of an inam, where the grant is merely of the royal share of the revenue
and not of the soil, resumption means only the discontinuance of exempt-
ion from payment of land revenue, and that interference with actual
occupation 1s not allowable. The Government Resolution of 1854 is
clear on the point. This Court has consistently taken the same view as
to inams: see Vishnu v. Tatia ¢, and Balwant Ramchandra v. Secretary of
State for India.” ®* He was of opinion that the decided cases supported

1 (1307) 4 Bom. H. C. (A.C.].) 1.
? (1882) I.L.R. 6B. 598, Go#6.

3 {1903) 5 Bom. L.IR. 683.

! {r863) 1 Bom. H.C. (H.C.R.) 22.
& {1go5) I.L.R. 29 B. 480, 498.
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the view that the right to the possession of the land in the case of a
saranjam grant of the royal revenue did not form part of the saranjam
but was independent. He considered that it was unsafe to infer from the
circumstances of the resumption and regrant by the Peshwa’s Govern-
ment that the original grant was of the soil.

1922. Nov. 6, 7. Sir George Lowndes K.C. and Kenworthy Brown for
the appellant. Having regard to the decisions of the Board in Suryana-
rayana ». Patanna ! and Chidambara Sivaprakasa ». Veerama Reddi?
it should not be presumed that the grant was only of the royal share of
the revenue; the nature of the grant should be ascertained from the
evidence. If, however, the grant was of revenue, the District Judge
rightly held that the saranjam included the right to the possession of
the land, and that that right could be resumed with the saranjam. The
view of the High Court proceeded upon a misapprehension of the judg-
ments in Ramchandra v. Venkatrao? and Ganpatrao Trinbak Patward-
han v. Ganesh Baji Bhat %, and upon the basis of “‘seri’ right : see Wilson’s
Glossary “Seri”, Rajya v. Balkrishna Gangadhao®, which was relied on,
does not touch the present case. A saranjamdar cannot, as seridar or
atherwise, become a permanent occupier adversely to Government.
The right as seridar is not independent of the right as saranjamdar, but
part of that right; it ceases upon resumption of the saranjam. The prin-
ciple to which s. go of the Indian Trusts Act (II. of 1882) gives effect
applies. If there is any presumption as to the nature of the grant it is
displaced by the evidence in this case. The history of the saranjam and
the terms ofrthe documents appearing from the proceedings before the
Inam Commission show that the grant was of the seil. The original
sanad, as there recorded, refers to grants of the land in inam with any
hidden treasures. That the documents showed a grant of the soil is
supported by the judgment of the Board in Shekh Sultan Sani v. Shekh
Ajmodin ¢; the sanad in that case is set out in Trimbak Ramchandra .
Ghulam Zilani, 7 On this point see also Vasudeo ». Collector of Puna®,
and Raoji Narayan Mandlik ». Dadaji Bapuji Desai. ® If the saranjam
was a grant of the soil it is clear that the Court had no jurisdiction.
(Ramrao Govindrao v. Secretary of State 1 referred to.)

. De Gruyther K.C. and Parikh for the first respondent. The burden of
proof was on the Government to establish that it had the right, not
merely to reassess the land, but to dispossess the plaintiff. There is a
presumption that a saranjam is a grant of revenue only; the decisions
in India to that effect are not touched by the recent decisions of the Board
referred to. The plaintiffs’ ancestors had been in possession since before
1775, at which period the Government had not any property in the land,
A saranjam is partible only by consent of the Government, but in the
present case there were divisions of the land without any consent. If

1 I.R. 45 L.A. 209.

? LR 49 LA, 286.

3 {1882) I.LL.R. 6 B. 598.

1 (1885) I.L.R. 10 B. 112.

5 (1g905) L.L.R. 29 B. 415.

§ (1892) L.R. 20 L A. 50.

? (1g909) I.L.R. 34 B. 32¢q.

& (1573) 10 Bom. H. C. 471, 474.
? {1875) I.L.R. 1 B. 523, 527.

10 (1gog) I.L.R. 34 B. z32.

27
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the grant was merely of the revenue the plaintiff has the right to possess-
ion, although the Government can reassess. The terms of the grant so
far as they appear from the record, do not show that the grant was of
the soil: see Elphinstone’s Report on Territories conquered from the
Mahrattas, pp. 22, 129. (Reference was also made to Etheridge's Nar-
rative of Bombay Land Commission, pp. 12, 15; and to the Inam Rules
(Bombay), 1898, rr. 5, 6.)

Sir George Lowndes K.C. in reply. The District Judge found that there
was no right of occupancy, and in the High Court it was not contended
that that finding was wrong .

Dec. 8 The judgment of their Lordships was delivered by Lord
SaLveEsgN. This is an appeal against a decree of the High Court of
Judicature at Bombay, dated December 22, 1916, which reversed a
decree of the District Judge of Dharwar, dated January 6, 1913. The
suit relates to a part of the Hebli estate, from which the plaintiff was
evicted by the Government on the death of his grandfather, Panduran-
grao. Their object in doing so was to prevent partition of what they reg-
arded as an impartible estate held under a grant of saranjam.

It is not necessary to recapitulate the facts, which have been very
fully stated in the judgment of the District Judge of Dharwar. or to
consider the majority of the points which were disposed of by him and
on appeal by the High Court at Bombay. The sole issue which remains
for determination is whether the saranjam grant made by the British
Government in favour of an ancestor of the plaintiff was a grant of the
royal revenue only, or was a grant of the land itself, or of the whole rev-
enue of the land coupled with a right to hold it. The learned District
Judge held that the original grant by the British Government was a
grant of the whole revenue of the land, and that this carried with it the
right to make the best possible use of unoccupied land. The High Court
at Bombay in reversing his decision held that the grant was one of the
royal share of the revenue only and not of the soil. In reaching this
conclusion it is impossible to resist the view that the judges of the High
Court were much influenced by their view that there is a presumption
that a grant of saranjam is a grant of royal revenue only, and accord-
ingly that the burden of proving that, in any particular case of saranjam,
it 1s a grant of the soil, lies upon the party alleging it. They relied upon
various cases cited and which at that time seemed te establish this prop-
osition. They had not, however, the benefit of two recent decisions of
this Board —mnamely, Suryanarayana v. Patanna !, and Chidambara
Sivaprakasa Pandara Sannadhigal v. Veerama Reddi?, in both of which
it was held that there is no such presumption.

In conformity with these decisions their Lordships are of opinion that
a grant of saranjam may be either of the soil and the whole revenue
derived from it, or a grant of the royal share of the revenue only. It
must be determined in each case upon the facts what was the quality
of the original grant, although it may well be that it is ordinarily a grant
of the royal revenue only. It may be that as the plaintiff was dispossessed
by the British Government in 19071 there is a certain onus upon the appel-
lant to justify his dispossession, but this becomes of little materiality
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when evidence is adduced irom which a conclusion in fact may be legit-
imately drawn. In the present case the oral evidence is of no value as
supporting the plaintiff’s case, and an inference must be drawn one way
or the other from the documents that have been produced in the case.
These have been examined in detail by the District Judge, and their
Lordships concur generally in the result of his analysis. It is plain that
the original grant was made in respect of political services; and while
it is no doubt possible that the grantees were at that time the owners of
the estate, and that all that the grant was intended to give them was a
release from payment of the royal share of the revenue, there is nothing
in any of the documents produced which suggests such a limitation. On
the contrary in one of the early documents founded on the grant was
made expressly of the Kasba Hebli with its hamlets and Watnahal, with
the Mahal jukath and Mokassa “with the whole of the dues and cesses
and hidden treasures, exclusive, however, of the dues of Huckdars and
Inamdars” !, and the language of the other documents is in similar
terms. It is significant also that in the deed of partition executed by
Pandurangrao in 1879, the property partitioned is described as the
Jahagir villages of Kasbe Hebli and Majre Watnahal and the Mouza of
Talvai and Kurdapur “obtained from the British Government ™. Through-
out the documents there is no suggestion that what was conveyed was
merely the royal share of the land revenue. They assume throughout
that the whole revenut of the lands was conveyed to the grantees, and
the amount of the nazarana which has been levied from time to time
appears to have been based on the yearly revenue of the estate, “there
being no suggestion (as the learned District Judge says) that revenue
derived by the holder as occupant, as distinct from saranjamdar was
not liable to nazarana.” All these considerations are sufficient, in their
Lordships’ opinion, to justify the inference that the original grant was
a grant of the soil.

1t is significant as bearing on the result at which their Lordships have
arrived, that the plaintiff in his original plaint nowhere maintained the
view upon which the learned judges of the High Court proceeded. His
main claim was that he was a full owner of the property in dispute, and
that the estate in question was granted as sarva inam hereditarily in
recognition of the services which his ancestors had rendered in assisting
the British in settling the country conquered from the Peshwas. This
claim was rejected by the District Judge and has now been admitted.
by the plaintiff to be untenable. As an alternative to this claim, based on
the grant by the British Government, the plaint proceeds as follows:
“Saranjam grant is a grant of the Revenue only, and the Government,
cannot resume the Raitava rights which the plaintiff and his ancestors
have been enjoying from ancient times. And even if the saranjam grant
be of the soil, Government has no right to resume it. And the estate in
. suit is partible.”

It is not clear what is meant by '‘raitava rights”, but the statement
sufficiently discloses that they are rights of occupancy only and not of

1 The extract is from the Appx. A to the decision of the Inam Commissioner,
that appendix consisting of “The substance of documents produced by the jaghir-
dara of Hebli in support of their claim to the village of that name, and to its hamlet
of Watnahal.”” This document was referred to as an original sanad of 24th Moharam,
AD. 1771-2.—AMT.
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ownership, and a claim of this kind was strenuously maintained in the
lower Court with regard to the occupation of lands which were unocc-
upied at the date of the original grant. This latter claim has now been
abandoned. In no part of the plaint is it péssible to find a claim that the
saranjam grant was a grant of the royal share of the revenue only.
Tt appears, however, that this point was argued, and it has not been the
practice of their Lordships to construe the pleadings too strictly, or to
exclude a plea, which was not embodied in the plaint, from being made
an issue in the case. The fact, however, that it did not occur to the plain-
tiff’s advisers to propound this contention on the evidence which he
adduced has a bearing on the question as to the proper inference to be
drawn in fact from that evidence.

As the case was framed, the jurisdiction of the Civil Courts in India
was apparently not ousted. But in the view which their Lordships now
take, the right of the Government to resume these lands could not be
questioned in the Civil Courts.

In the result their Lordships will humbly advise His Majesty that the
decree of the High Court at Bombay should be set aside and the suit
dismissed with costs, here and in the Courts below.

Solicitor for appellant: Solicitor, India Office.
Solicitor for first respondent: E. DaLcaDo.
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DECISION 1IN SECRETARY OF STATE v. GIRJABALI BEFORE
THE Privy COUNCIL, 1627
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Vol. LIV, — 1026-1027

SECRETARY OF STATE For INDIA IN )

CouxciL (defendant) I} Appellant

an
GIRJABAL (plaintiff) Respondent
ON APPEAL FROM THE Hicu CoURT oF Bompay

Saranjam—~Grant of Revenue—Saranjamdar taking Possession on Deter-
mination of Khatedar's Interesti—Resumption of Saranjam—Extinction
of Saranjamdar's Interest.

Where land included in a saranjam grant of the revenue of
villages has passed into the possession of the saranjamdar upon
the khatedar’s family becoming extinct, or through his default
in paying the revenue, the saranjamdar’s right therein ceases upon
resumption of the saranjam. On the death of the saranjamdar the
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Government is entitled to resume not only the revenue, but also
all rights and benefits which the grantee has secured by virtue of
the grant.

Quaere, whether a saranjamdar can create in favour of third
persons rights which do not terminate upon resumption of the
saranjam,

Ganpatrav Trimbak Patwardhan v. Ganesh Baji Bhat (1885)
I.L.R. 10 B. x12; Hari Sadashiv v. Shaik Ajmudin (1886) I.L.R.
11 B. 235; and Gururao Shrinivas v. Secretary of State for India
{rg16) I.LL.R. 41 B. 408 (reversed on the facts (1g922) L.R. 50
I.A. 49), disapproved in law.

Judgment of the High Court reversed,

APPEAL (No. 116 of 1925) from a decree of the High Court {August 135,
1924) varying a decree of the District Court of Nasik (February 28,
1G20).

The suit was brought by Shivdevrao (since deceased, and represented
by his widow, the respondent) for a declaration of his right to possession
of certain lands in the village of Manmad. Shivdevrao was the adopted
son of Raghunathrao, who died in 1889g. Raghunathrao was the holder
of"a saranjam grant originally made by the Peishwa to his ancestor
of certain villages, including Manmad; the grant was not of the land
of the villages, but of the royal share of the revenue. Upon the death
of Raghunathrao the Government had resumed the saranjam. The
Commissioner had held that on the lapse of the saranjam the lands
in suit became the property of the Government, who were entitled to
assess them accordingly and to possession in default of payment.

The primary contention in the plaint was that the lands in suit were
not included in the saranjam, but were part of lands purchased from
the village patils in 1755 by Raghunathrao’s ancestor; the plaintiff
contended that the Government was estopped from denying the mirasi
rights of the family, and was barred by adverse possession. He further
contended, however, that if, as was held by the Commissioner, the
lands in suit had passed into the possession of the saranjamdars through
the khatedar’s family becoming extinct, or on failure to pay the revenue,
nevertheless he was entitled to possession.

The facts more fully appear from the judgment of the Judicial
Committee.

There were concurrent findings by both Courts in India:

{r.) against the alleged title by estoppel and by adverse possession,

(2.) that the lands were not included in the sale deed of 17355,

(3.) that the lands in suit originally belonged to khatedars or mirasi
tenants, and on their interests coming to an end, the saranjamdar had
assumed possession and caused his name to be entered upon the village
papers.

The District Judge held that in the circumstances above stated
certain decisions of the High Court were conclusive that the saran-
jamdar could give himself the occupancy rights, and that these survived
the resumption of the saranjam. He held however that as Raghunathrao
had two brothers, the plaintiff's right extended to a third only of the
lands claimed.
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Cross-appeals were preferred to the High Court. While the appeal
was pendmg the decision of the High Court in Gururao Shrinivas ».
Secretary of State®, upon which among other decisions the District
Judge had relied, was reversed by the Privy Council®. The learned
judges who heard the appeal (Shah A.C.J. and Fawcett ].)} considered
however that the view expressed in that case by the High Court on
the basis that the saranjam in question was a grant of the revenue
only was not affected by the reversing judgment in the Privy Council
in which it had been held that the grant was of the land itself. They
accordingly affirmed the view that the rights created by the saran-
jamdar in his own favour survived the resumption of the saranjam,
Fawcett J. however stated that had the matter been res integra, he
would have decided otherwise; in his view the saranjamdar having
obtained occupancy rights merely by virtue of being saranjamdar,
those rights could not survive the saranjam. The learned judges rejected
the view of the District Judge that the plaintiff was entitled to a third
only of the lands in suit and gave him a decree for the whole.

1927. May 3, 5, 6, 9, To, 12, 13. Sir George Lowndes K.C. and Ken-
worthy Brown for the appellant. By r. 5 of the rules made in 1918
under Act XI. of 1852, a saranjam is a life estate only, consequently
all interest under the grant ceased on the death of Raghunathrao.
A saranjamdar cannot, whether as khatedar or otherwise, acquire any
permanent right against Government in the saranjam lands. He is
precluded from doing so by the principles enacted by s. go of the
Indian Trusts Act, 1882. Gururao Shrinivas v. Secretary of State for
India !, which was relied on below, was reversed on appeal to the
Privy Council: Secretary of State for India » Laxmibai* The decision
of the Privy Council was on the ground that the grant was a grant of
the land, not (as the High Court had held) a grant of the revenue;
the present contention, though argued on behalf of the appellant, was
not dealt with. The decision however was that the interest of the
saranjamdar ended; a fortiori it ends where the grant is of the revenue
only. Ganpatrav Trimbak v. Ganesh Baji3, which was followed in
Hari Sadashiv ». Shaik Ajmudin 4, is against the appeilant, but it was
decided upon a misunderstanding of the judgment in Ramchandra e.
Venkatrao®, Further, the judgment appealed from relied on decisions
as to inams, but there are essential differences, statutory and otherwise,
between a saranjam and an inam; an inam is a heritable estate whereas
a saranjam is an estate for life. The judgment of the Privy Council in
Laxmibai’s case® shows that the inam rules do not apply to a saranjam;
if they applied that would have been conclusive of the case. [Reference
was made also to Vishnu w». Tatia?; Shekh Sultan Sani v. Shekh
Ajmodin®; Ramkrishnarao ». Nanarao?; and Bom. Reg. XVIL of
1827, 85. 40, 41.)

I.L.R. 41 B. 408.

L.R. 50 1.A. 49.

(1885) LL.R. 10 B. 112,

(r886) I.LL.R. 11 B. 235.

(1882) I.LL.R. 6 B. 598.

L.R. 50 LA, 4¢.

(1863) 1 Bom, H. C. {A.C.].} 22.
(1892) L.R. 20 L.A. 50.

{1903} 5 Bom. L. Rep. 983, 087,
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Dre Gruyther K.C. and E. B. Raikes for the respondents. The onus
of proof was wrongly placed upon the plaintiff; it was upon the Govern-
ment to prove the title of .the Government: Hanmantrav v. Secretary
of State for India !. That being so the possibility that the plaintiff's
predecessors acquired title under the sale deed of 1755 cannot be
excluded, and the findings to the contrary do not operate as concurrent
findings. But even if the lands were originally taken possession of by
the plaintiff’'s predecessor as saranjamdar the right to possession
continues. Under the Mahratta system of land tenure, which was
continued by the British in 1826, the person bringing land under
cultivation obtained a permanent and heritable title, subject to the
payment of a standard rent: see Elphinstone’s Report, 1821, republished
1838. The plaintiff’s predecessors have been recorded as khatedars since
1820 for a large portion of the land in suit, and in land acquisition
proceedings they have been treated as owners. The Government thereby
recognized them as mirasidars, and is estopped. The saranjamdar was
not i the position of a trustee. The rent being a standard rent there
was no conflict of duty. Government can resume only what it granted
—namely, the revenue; it is not material that the revenue is paid by
the saranjamdar as khatedar. That view is strongly supported by the
decisions of the Bombay High Court: Ganpatrav Trimbak ». Ganesh
Baji?; Hari Sadashiv ». Shaik Ajmudin?; Rajya v. Balkrishna Gan-
gadhart; Balvant Ramchandra u. Secretary of State for India®;
Gururao Shrinivas v. Secretary of State for India®. The reversal of
the last named decision by the Irivy Council did not affect its authority
on the guestion now at issue. There is no distinction material to this
case between a saranjam, an inam, or a jaghir: Raghojirao ». Laksh-
manrao ’, There being no distinction between a saranjam and an inam
the decision in Vishnu v. Tatia ® applies, establishing that the resumption
was not a resumption of possession but of the revenue. [Reference was
made also to Bom. Reg. XVII. of 1827, ss. 1, 2, 3, 6, 7, 12, 15, I7;
and Bom. Act V. of 1879, ss. 45, 48, 52, 54. 50, 72, 85, 217.]

Sir George Lowndes K.C. replied.

July 26. The judgment of their Lordships was delivered by Lord
SinHA. This is an appeal against a decree of the High Court of Bombay,
dated August 15, 1924, which varies the decree of the District Court
of Nasik, dated February 28, 1920, and made in Civil Suit No. 5 of 1914.

The suit arose under the following circumstances:—

Manmad village, now grown to an important railway junction, was
held by the Vinchurkar—one of the lesser Mahratta chiefs—together
with many other villages in saranjam grant from the Peishwa, the
then ruler of the country. The last holder of the entire saranjam was
the late Sardar Raghunathrac Vinchurkar, commonly known as An-
nasaheb, who held it from 1836 till 1889, when he died. On his deathbed

! {1900) I.L.R. z5 B. 287, 28q.
ILL.R. 10 B. 112.

ILL.R. 11 B. 235.

{1503) I.L.R. zg B. 415.

(r908) I.LL.R. 32 B. 432.

LIL.R. 41 B. 468.

(rg12) L.R. 39 L.A. zo02.

(1863) 1 Bom. H. C. (A.C.].) 22,

e
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he adopted as a son the plaintiff Shivdevrao, but the Government
refused to recognize the adoption, and in 1892 re-granted half of the
saranjam to the late Sardar’s brothers and their sons and resumed
the other half, which included Manmad village. The adopted son,
though thus excluded from any share in the saranjam, would still be
entitled to the private as opposed to the saranjam property of his
adoptive father. Between 18g2 and 1913 there were disputes between
Government and Shivdevrao Vinchurkar as to certain lands in Manmad
(the subject-matter of the present suit) which he claimed as his adoptive
father's mirasi or private property by virtue of a sale deed of 1755,
These are five plots in the village site (described as A to E in the plaint)
and six plots of agricultural lands within the village limits but not
forming part of the village site, and described asplots F to K in the plaint.

These disputes led to an erder by the Commissioner of Revenue
G.D. on April 9, 1913, whereby it was held that the lands in dispute
were not covered by the sale deed relied upon but “must have passed
into the possession of the Vinchurkars by forfeiture of lands through
the khatedar’'s (i.e. modern occupancy tenant) family being extinct or
through default in the payment of land revenue™. The Commissioner
held that on the lapse of the saranjam to Government these lands
also became the property of Government, who thereupon became
entitled to levy not merely the Government revenue assessed thereupon,
but the actual ground rent in respect of the plots included in the village
sites, the tenants being liable to pay these rents to Government and
not to the Vinchurkars; and, further, that in respect of the other plots,
i.e., the agricultural lands, Government as owner was entitled to recover
from the Vinchurkars not the assessed Government revenue, but the
market rent, which was considerably larger, and in default of payment
the Vinchurkars were ordered to be evicted.

This order of the Commissioner was in due course given effect to,
and Shivdevrao Vinchurkar instituted the present suit for declaring
the Commissioner’s order illegal and for recovery of possession of the
first five plots and an injunction against the threatened eviction in
respect of the other six plots, and for mesne profits in respect of both.

In his plaint he based his title primarily on the sale deed of 1755
above mentioned, by which the then Patils of the village conveyed
half of their rights to the ancestor of the Vinchurkar. He also relied
on adverse possession “‘for over 150 years”, and claimed that by virtue
of certain admissions at different times on the part of various Govern-
ment officials, Government was estopped from disputing the mirasi or
private rights of the Vinchurkar family. But he alleged as an alter-
native basis of his title, and apparently in view of the Commissioner’s
finding, that “even if perchance the Court comes to the conclusion
that the right of mirasi ownership ... did not pass to the plaintiff's
ancestors under the sale deed of 1755 A.D., but that the property in
suit must have gone into the possession of the plaintifi's ancestors by
reason of the extinction of the khatedar’s family or by reason of its
resumption for arrears of assessment, still no manner of right whatever
has accrued or accrues to the defendant in law over the said property.
The said property is in law of the absolute personal and mirasi ownership
and vahiwat of the plaintiff and his ancestors.”

By his written statement the defendant denied all these allegations
of fact and submissions of law by the plaintiff, and contended that
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the lands in suit were held by the plaintiff’s ancestors as saranjamdars
and all saranjam rights, including the right to hold lands that had
passed into his possession and enjoyment by the death of the khatedars
without heirs or by forfeiture, had lapsed on the death of Annasaheb
and had heen resumed by Government (except as to one-half not now
in question).

On the question of title by adverse possession and by estoppel, both
the District Judge and the High Court held against the plaintiff, and
their Lordships see nc reason to differ from them.

Of the remaining issues the first was as follows: Does the plaintiff
prove that he (i.e., his ancestors) purchased the suit land by a sale
deed of 1755 A.D.?

The District Judge held that the construction of the deed in question
presented some difficulty, for “it is in archaic language, and deals
with a state of affairs to which no one now has the key”, but on a
review of the whole evidence, including village papers and accounts,
he came to the conclusion that the lands sold by that deed did not
include the lands in suit, and he found the first issue in the negative.

The High Court accepted this.

Notwithstanding this concurrent finding, some argument was ad-
dressed to their Lordships to prove that some, though not all, of the
lands in suit are, in fact, covered by the sale deed of 1755. After careful
consideration, their Lordships see no reason to differ from the finding
of both the Courts in India on this point.

Issue No. 2 was to the following effect:—

Does the plaintiff prove that his ancestors became owners of the
suit lands either through forfeiture or through extinction of the khate-
dar’s line?

The concurrent finding of both Courts on this issue appears to their
Lordships to be that the lands in suit originally belonged to khatedars
or mirasi tenants, and on their interests coming to an end in the manner
mentioned the saranjamdar caused his own name to be put in their
place in the khatas or village papers, and assumed possession of those
lands.

The only other material issue remaining to be considered is issue
No. 6—namely, Was the suit land included in the half of the saranjam
resumed by the Government? This was intended to raise the question
whether as an effect of the resumption, the Government was entitled
to oust plaintiff from the possession of those lands. The answer depends
on the legal effect of the finding on issue No. 2.

Both the Courts below have answered it in the plaintiff’s favour,
the District Judge, on the ground that he was bound by the decision
of the High Court in Gururao Shrinivas v. Secretary of State for India !
(then under appeal to this Board and subsequently reversed), and the
High Court on the ground that the judgment of this Board on that
appeal?, though it reversed the above decision of the High Court,
had not decided this particular point, with regard to which the High
Court was of opinion that decisions of that Court had established the
law in the manner contended for on behalf of the plaintiff. One of
the learned judges, Fawcett J., expressed his personal dissent from

1 I.L.R, 41 B. 408.

? L.R. 50 ILA. 49.
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that view of the law, but considered himself bound by previous decisions
of the High Court.

It is necessary, therefore, to consider what are the incidents of a
saranjam grant, and how far the same can be gathered from statutes
or judicial decisions, in the absence of the deed of grant.

But before doing so their Lordships think it necessary to deal with
two points argued by Mr. De Gruyther on the respondent’s behalf:—

1. That the onus of proof has been wrongly placed on the plaintifi,
who, having been dispossessed, was entitled to succeed unless the
Government affirmatively proved its own title to the lands in question,

The plaintiff accepted the onus on the issues as they were framed.
Evidence was gone into on that basis, and the parties proceeded to
trial evidently on the assumption that the plaintiff could derive title
only in one or other of the ways mentioned in paras. 2 and 3 of the
plaint. But for that, the procedure might have been different in many
respects, and it appears to their Lordships too late to raise any such
question at this stage,

Their Lordships would [urther observe that no basis of title other
than those mentioned in paras. 2 and 3 of the plaint has up to the
last been suggested on behalf of the plaintiff.

2. The second point was that the village papers, kept by the village
officials, having entered the name of the Vinchurkar as khatedar in
respect of the lands in suit, this must be taken to have been acquiesced
in and accepted by the Collector on behalf of the Government, and
it amounted in effect to a new agreement for a permanent tenancy,
which remained unaffected by the subsequent resumption of the saran-
jam. This is a new case not suggested till the Jast moment, and even
if their Lordships were inclined to entertain it (which they are not)
it seems to have little foundation in fact. The position of the saran-
jamdar enabled him to have complete control over the management
of the village and the village officials, and there is no reason to assume
that these entries, or the papers themselves, were in any way brought
to the cognizance of, or acquiesced in, and much less sanctioned by
the Collector.

It is no doubt correct to say, as Shah J. does, that “the fact that
the saranjamdar is in a sense a life tenant does not alter the ordinary
incidents of a grant by way of saranjam.”

But what those ordinary incidents are, must be ascertained, when
there is no deed of grant forthcoming, from (a) the evidence, if any,
in the case; (b) from legislative enactments; and (¢} from judicial
decisions, Failing all these, there would be nothing else but general
principles of law to apply.

Now we find from Wilson’s Glossary that amongst the Mahrattas
the term “saranjam'’ was applied specially to a temporary assignment
of revenue from villages or lands for the support of troops or for personal
military service, usually for the life of the grantee; also to grants made
to persons appointed to civil offices of the State to enable them to
maintain their dignity, and to grants for charitable purposes. These
were neither transferable nor hereditary, and were held at the pleasure
of the Sovereign. They were divided into two classes—namely, (a)
grants of revenue only, i.e., of the royal share of the produce of the
lands comprised in the grant, and (b) grants of the soil 1tself. It would
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seem to follow from the nature of saranjams that whether they were
grants of the soil itself or of the revenue only of specified lands, they
could not and were not meant to interfere with rights in those lands
existing previously to and at the time of the grant. If and so far as
there were occupancy tenants on those lands, they would retain their
right of possession (whether it can be called ownership or not is im-
material}) but subject to paying the assessed land revenue (i.e., the
royal share of the produce} payable before the grant to the Government
and after the grant to the grantee. On principle, the grantee would
not, unless specially authorized, be able to convey a title larger than
his own. He could not convey a permanent title to any portion of the
land, either by sale or by lease. Such sale or lease might be good as
against himself but would be void as against the grantor.

In the case of a grant of the soil itself, it has been decided by this
Board that, on the grant coming to an end, the Government representing
the original grantor is entitled to resume actual possession: Secretary
of State for India in Council ». Laxmibai 1. But is is urged that in the
case of the other kind of grant, Government can take back only what
it granted—namely, the royal share of the produce; in other words
assess the land revenue payable in respect of the land, but it cannot
interfere with the possession of the grantee. This would be quite
consistent with principle, if the grant made the grantee a charge-
holder pure and simple. But if the grant also conveys by implication
or otherwise the right to take possession of the land itself under certain
circumstances, it is difficult to hold that though the charge might
come to an end the possession taken under and by virtue of that charge
should still continue, or, as Fawcett J. put it, that the incident should
survive the grant.

There is no legislative enactment which is applicable in the circum-
stances of this case. The Saranjam Rules of 1898 do not apply proprio
vigore, as this saranjam was resumed in 1892, and even if they can
be held to be merely declaratory of the previous law, they do not
throw any light on the question under consideration.

As regards judicial decisions, those with regard to inams do not
seem to be necessarily applicable. The word inam is sometimes vaguely
applied to all grants of revenue-free land, without reference to perpe-
tuity or any specific conditions. But it would be unsafe to apply to
a peculiar grant like the Mahratta saranjam rules which were held
applicable to grants in perpetuity.

Shah }. refers to what he calls 2" “‘long course of decisions’’ in Bombay
as establishing two propositions. The first is admittedly overruled by
the above mentioned decision of this Board in Secretary of State v,
Laxmibai. His second is that in the case of a saranjam grant of the
royal share of the revenue, it is open to the grantee to make the best
use of the grant for his own benefit, i.e., to appropriate the lands to
his own use, subject to the payment of the royal share of the revenue
and to create rights of occupancy in his own favour or in favour of
third parties. .

On examination it appears that there are only three decisions which
directly bear on the point—namely, Ramchandra ». Venkatrao?;

' LR. 50 T.A. 40.
? ILL.R. 6 B. 548.
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Ganpatrav Trimbak Patwardhan v. Ganesh Baji Bhat!; and Har
Sadashiv ». Shaik Ajmudin 2 ‘

In the first of these cases Melwvill J. said 3: “The saranjamdar may
deal with all unoccupied lands as may be best for the purposes of
revenue, and may either cultivate them himself or through tenants.”
And it was observed by Batchelor J. in Balvant Ramchandra ».
Secretary of State* that since the judgment of Melvill J. in 1882 the
law in Bombay has always been that a grantee of the revenue is entitled
to make such profit as he can out of the unoccupied lands.

But this is very far from holding that the right to make such profit
survives the grant and continues after the grant has been resumed.
This construction was, however, placed on the words of Melvill [.
quoted above in I.L.R. 1o B. 11z, where Sargent C.]., after quoting
the passage from Melvill J.’s judgment in I.LL.K. 6 B. 508, paraphrased
it as follows: “‘or, in other words, that the saranjamdar may acquire
occupancy rights which ... remain unaffected by the resumption of the
saranjam, except as to the assessment thenceforth payable to Govern-
ment”’.

These observations were not necessary for the decision of that case,
and their Lordships are unable to agree that the language of Melvill J.
in I.LL.R. 6 B. 598 bears the meaning or has the effect attributed to
it by Sargent C. J.

The same observations would apply to the case in LL.R. 11 B. 235,
The Government was not a party to either of these cases, and the
lands in dispute were held on the evidence in both cases to be the
private property (sheri lands in the one case and mirasi lands in the
other) of the grantee. Their Lordships are therefore unable to hold
that there is any long course of decisions in the High Court of Bombay
laying down with regard to saranjams of this nature the broad rule
enunciated by Shah J.—that the grantee would be entitled to create
in his own favour occupancy rights in lands unoccupied at the time
the grant was made or held by others then but forfeited on one ground
or another during the subsistence of the grant.

The question whether he could create such rights in favour of third
persons by virtue of the powers of management above referred to
does not arise in this case, and their Lordships refrain from expressing
any opinion upon the point. But their Lordships hold that he could
not create such rights m his own favour and that when the saranjam
was resumed, the Government became entitled to resume not only the
land revenue, but also all the rights and benefits that the grantee had
secured by virtue of his grant.

Their Lordships will humbly advise His Majesty that this appeal
should be decreed with costs and the plaintiff's suit dismissed with
costs in both the Courts in India.

Solicitor for appellant:  Solicitor, India Office.
Solicitors for respondent: T. L. WiLson & Co.

! 1L.LLR. 10 B. 112.
? I.LL.LR. 11 B. 235.
3 LL.R. 6 B, 598, Go8.
¢ I.LL.R. 32 B. 43z.
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Annex F. No. 31

EXTRACT ON WATAN, FROM DANDEKAR,
“TuE Law oF Lanp TENURES”, 1912

Tue Law oF LAND TENURES
(in THE BomBaYy PRESIDENCY.)

by
Goral Krisuva DaNDERAR, B.A.LL.B.
1912
Vol. I.

WATANS.

Next in order come for consideration the service tenures, generally -
known as Watans in the Bombay Presidency, Watan was mentioned in
Bombay Reg. I of 1823 and Bom. Reg. XVII of 1827 as a tenure recog-
nised by the custom of the country.

In India, at least in the Bombay Presidency, hereditary service-public
or private-was the rule, and it was customary to remunerate the services
by cesses and taxes or by interests granted or
conferred in lands. The offices the duties of which
were rendered hereditarily appertained not only to villages but also
parganas or didtricts, and were useful not only to Government but also
to the village community. In this connection it is interesting and desir-
able to have some idea of the constitution of the village community of
former times. The inhabitants of a village were divided into several
classes which resulted from private interests and conventional formsc.l.

; The two principal divisions were the cultivators an
Village officers. the oﬂice—I]:)-earelPs. The latter were called the balutedars
and alootedars in the Deccan and the Southern Maratha Country, and
Wuswaeeyas in Gujrat. The office-bearers were required to render certain
services and were entitled to certain huks and perquisites from the
villagers. Even if the villagers declined to employ the services of the
office-bearers the former were bound to pay the latter their huks. The
village staff, in some places called the village community, were public
servants of the village and had to discharge certain duties. The duties
they had to perform were in some cases useful to Government, the
services they were remunerated by some interest in land created or
conferred by the State, and some perquisites or payments from villagers
direct, called the paranhara huks.

As there were the village officers useful to Government such as the
Patel, Matadar (in Gujrat), Kulkarni, Mahar &c. so
there were the Pargana (district officers} useful to
Government. They bore different names in the different parts of the
Presidency, such as Deshnukh, Deshpande, Sirdeshpande, Sirdeshmukh,
Sirdesai, Nadgavda, Madkarni, Dehatkulkarni, Mujmoodar, &c. As they

Hereditary service.

District officers.
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were the officers not only of the individual vitlages but of Parganas, that
is, groups of villages, their remunerations were natually of considerable
extent and value. They held and even now hold entire villages in Inam-
inams of the district officers in the Southern Maratha Country were and
are called desgat or deskat inams. The lands were and are called Chavrat
lands, probably because their dimensions were mentioned not in highas
but in Chahoors {a Chahoor being a land measure containing 120 bighas
or from gb to 102 acres).

The following, among others, were the duties which the district here-
ditary officers had to perform in old times:-—To frame an abstract of the
Jamabandi settlement of each village and of the mahal or pargana; to
countersign receipts for cash transmitted from the several villages; to
prepare summary statements of all collections and balances; to keep a
register of the villages of his district specifying the tenure and the man-
agement of each; to keep a register of inam villages and lands; to keep a
register of pensions, warshasans, devasthans, of mirasdars and other
heriditary occupants; to keep a register of lands given on Cowls (leases);
to prepare a general statement of the population of his pargana; to write
any papers ordered by the Mamlatdar when his leisure would permit; to
examine the village accounts and to report any defects; to assist in the
* preparation of the population returns and their divisions, and to ex-
amine, verify and attest the registers of births, deaths and migration in
their villages.

Besides these there were a number of hereditary officers rendering
service to Government, such as the potdars weighing and assaying public
money, the Shetias or the bazar masters, ghatpandes-officers in charge of
toll-offices at Ghats, and others. Some persons had to serve hereditarily
in the Salt and Custom Departments as tolats (weighers of salt). Even
now at some places they have to work persenally or to supply some hands
to discharge their duties and are remunerated by some hereditary cash
allowances.

Thus hereditary Officers may roughly be divided into (1) those of a
pargana or district and (2) those of a village; the latter being sub-divided
into (3} those useful to Government and (4} those useful to the village
community. Officers useful to Government are useful (5) in police and
revenue concerns, or (6) in concerns other than policy and revenue.
Officers in police and revenue concerns have been sub-divided into
{7) superior officers and (8) inferior officers. Hereditary viilage officers
useful to village community are either (g} those who actually render
service or {10} those who have ceased to render any service, and cannot,
therefore, be said to be servanis at all.

The expressions “watan”, “watandar” and “hereditary ofﬁceg” werg

. never defined before 1874, 1827 and VI of 1833 an
Meaning of Watan. Act XTI of 1843 conside7rably dealt with hereditary
officers, their rights, liabilities and remuneration. Watan meant, and
even now is understood in the Ratnagiri District to mean ancestral,
hereditary property. It was not and is not, according to this meaning,
connected with any idea of service and the remuneration therefor, The
words “Watan”, ““Watandar”, *“Heriditary Office’” and “'Hereditary Off-
cers’” are for the first time defined by Bombay Act I1I of 1874, and are
understood, since the introduction of the said Act, in a technical sense.

In old times all hereditary servants whether of a pargana or of a
village, and whether they rendered service to Government or to the
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village community, were regarded as hereditary officers. Act XI of
. 1843 recognized only the hereditary servants
Hereditary office. rer?dering gservice tjc/; Government as here-
ditary officers under the AXT. Under the Act of 1874 the circle
of the hereditary officers has become more limited. Hereditary offi-
cers under that Act mean persons hereditarily holding any office for
the performance of .duties connected with the administration or
collection of the public revenue or with the village police, or with the
settlement of boundaries or other matters of civil administration. In
short, hereditary servants rendering service to Government in police and
revenue concerns are the only hereditary officers under the Act of 1874.
Hereditary officers rendering service to the village community are not
within the definition. Accordingly carpenters, barbers, washermen, Kazis
and others are not recognized as hereditary officers. The pargana officers
such as, Deshnukhs, Deshpandes, Majmudars, Nadganaudas (although
their services have ceased to be demanded) and the village officers, such
as the Patel, Gauda, Matadar, Kulkarni, Mahar &c. are the only officers
or servants falling under the definition of “‘Hereditary Officers” under the
Watan Act.

The hereditary office and its remuneration together constitute the
watan. Both the remuneration and the office go hand in hand. A person
having an hereditary interest in a watan is a watandar. He must be the
actual owner or holder of a watan, or must be a person having a vested
interest in the watan. A person having merely a spes successionis—a
mere right to succeed—is not a watandar. Thus during the life-time of a
watandar his wife or daughter is not a watandar, because they have a
mere chance to succeed.

Gradually steps were being taken to settle the questions relating to the
duties and services of hereditary officers and their emoluments. Practi-
cally the first step in that direction was the abolition of some of the direct
-cesses and taxes, Kalee imposts, that is, cesses and taxes on cultivated
lands and Pandhree imposts, that is, cesses and taxes on trades and
professions stand abolished from 1839 and 1844 respectively. The next
step was to limit, as far as possible, and at least as far as Government was
concerned, the rule of hereditary service. This is to a certain extent
apparent from comparing the circles of hereditary officers under Act X1
of 1843 and Bombay Act III of 1874. Besides, sometime about the
year 1362, commissions were appointed for making enquiries as to
district hereditary officers in Gujrat, and Deccan and the Southern
Maratha Country. The reports made by the
commissions were printed for Government in
1865-60 in Government Selection No. 174 new series. Settlements were
effected with the Pargana Watandars under which Government remit-
ted, or agreed not to enforce the liability for service on condition of
taking annually a fraction of their remuneration from the Watandars.
The Gujrat settlements are generally known as the Pedder’s settlements;
and the settlements in the Deccans and the Southern Maratha Country
are known as Gordon's settlements. The settlements have been confirmed
by the Act of 1874. By reason of the settlements the pargana officers
have ceased to render their usual services, but their watan properties
continue as watan properties in matters of alienation and succession
except in exceptional cases.

Service Communication,
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On account of civilisation, liberty of action and other causes of similar
nature the services of some of the balutedars or wussaweeyas (hereditary
village artisans) have ceased to be demanded. Government too does not
want to force the services of those artisans on unwilling customers.
Consequently at the time of Surveys Government increased the Joodi or
quit-rent on their original service inam lands. Their lands have become
their ordinary private property without any obligations as to service
and not liable to pay anything in excess of the fixed Judi {quit-rent)
and local cess.

Settlements were also effected with holders of inam lands or villages
rendering service to village communities, such as village astrologers
(Joshis), Village priests (Upadhyayas, Jangam etc.). Under the settle-
ments the office-holders agreed to pay Chauthai (one fourth) or, any
other fraction of the assessment as quit-rent over and above the old
{mamul) Judi or quit-rent. Government recognised the title of the office-
holders and guaranteed the continuance of their inams as long as their
services were required to the community. The settlements not only did
not affect but affirmed the rights of the village community for services
from those hereditary officers. Their inams are service tenures, their
offices hereditary offices, but not under Watan Act of 1874. The incum-
bants have no interest in the property beyond life.

Thus were settled the questions relating to the services and the emolu-
ments of hereditary officers except the village hereditary officers falling
under Bombay Act 11T of 1874, an Act declaring and amending the law
as to hereditary officers. Before that Act there were no regular enquiries,
and binding decisions arrived at. The Collector had, no doubt, under
Regulation XVI of 1827 to record in a book, kept for that purpose, the
land and allowances attached to hereditary district or village offices. The
duties and the respective rights of hereditary officers inter se were not
determined, Under the Act of 1874 it became one of the duties of the
collectors to prepare and keep watan-registers in
forms prescribed by Government from time to time,
The Act provided for the preparation and keeping of two registers, one
register of lands and allowances in consideration whereof liability to
perform service exists, and another of lands and allowances in respect of
which no such liability exists. In the register of lands and allowances in
consideration whereof liability to serve existed and exists the Collector
had and has to specify: :

{a) The area of the lands, the names of the occupants, the survey number
and assessment, the quit-rent, if any, leviable, and the net revenue
alienated by Government, the amount and nature of the cash or
other allowances, the source from which they are payable, and the
land and allowances assigned for the remuneration of officiators.

{8} The names of the heads of families and of the representative wa-
tandars.

Watan Register.

(c) Whether the service is performed by one representative watandar or
otherwise; if by several in successive periods, the order in which they
are to succeed each other.

(d4) The proportional share of the watan possessed by each head of
family.

{e) The number of officiators required to perform the duties.
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Bombay Act IIT of 1874 also made it the duty of the Collector to
determine, which was necessary for the preparation of the Watan Regis-
ter, the custom of the watan as to service and what persons shall be
recognised as representative watandars and to register their names, The
Act prescribed certain rules and principles which had to be followed in
determining the above matters. As the Civil Courts were competentto
try all matters of a civil nature and as the Collector was also empowered
e ar . . to decide certain matters, naturally a
Jurisdiction of the Civil Courts. question arose as to the jurisdictiox? of
the civil courts in such matters. The Collector and the Collector alone
can admit any members of Watan family to the class of representatives
capable of officiating under the Act of 1874. This he would have to do on
an investigation made by himself according to his own Judgment, not
according to the views taken by the Civil Courts. The Act seems to
exclude, by direct implication, any right on the part of the civil courts
to declare that persons are eligible to serve as hereditary officers falling
within the scope of the Act. The Civil Courts have no jurisdiction to
register any person as a representative watandar or to direct that he
should be so registered by the Collector.

The Collectors proceeded with their work, have determined the customs
of watans as to service and have determined as to what persons in a
watan family or what persons in the different branches of watan family,
if divided, shall be recognised as the representative watandars and
already registered their names.

Thus the questions as to service and the emoluments (consisting of an
interest in land or cash allowance or other perquisites) of all the heridit-
ary officers have been settled and put at rest.

When no watan exists, it is declared lawful for Government to create
Creation. 0% and in so doing to assign such property of Government

*  as to Government may seem fit. The Collector may combine
two or more watans held for the performance of similar services in the
same village or parts of the same village.

The titles and continuance of the tenures for service to Government
are to be determined under such rules as Government may
find it necessary to issue from time to time. The rules now
in force concerning the resumption and continuance of lands held for
service were issued by His Excellency the Governor in Council in 1902
and slightly amended in 1g04.

The most important matters in considering the subject of watans
Liabilitv for Service are the performance of service and the remunera-

¥ *  tion therefor. All watandars of whatever denom-
ination whose liability to serve has not been commuted are legaly bound
to render such service as has been customary or as is required by law.
That was also the law in old times as one finds in Bom. Reg. XVI of
1927. The duties appertaining to any hereditary office under the Watan
Att shall be performed by the representative watandars, or by their
deputies or by substitutes and by no other persons. The person actually
performing the duties of any hereditary office for the time being is called
the Officiator. Every representative watandar whose duty it is to offi-
ciate shall, if a fit and proper person, perform the duties of the hereditary
office himself on being so required by the Collector, but may be permitted
by the Collector to appoint a deputy.

Continuance.

28
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Underage, overage, want of certain amount of education, lunacy,
imbecility, and general bad character are, among
others, the general grounds which render a person
unfit to officiate. Females are disqualified to act.

It was and even now is the practice for the watandars to appoint
. gumastas (dupties). In old times hereditary gumastas were
Deputies. 5, some cases appointed and they were denominated as
watani gumastas. Before the passing of Bombay Regulation XVI of
1824 the creation of a permanent deputyship coupled with an assign-
ment of a part of the watan propertv was permissible, valid and binding
on the successors. The practice of appointing deputies was in 1848
strongly depreciated by the Local Government. It was stated at that time
that the institution of pargana watans must have had in view te provide
a body of public servants of a permanent character, who, from the
constant residence and employment in their villages or districts would
acquire and perpetuate a knowledge of the minutest details. The very
object of the institution is lost by their being allowed to sit at home at
ease, doing all their duties by employing deputies—men removable at
their pleasure, and who can take no permanent interest in their work.
It iz only in cases of nonage, or mental or bodily infirmity that the
regulations recognized the right to employ deputies by other than
females. After the passing of Bom. Reg. XVI of 1827 appointment of
deputyship and assignment of property 1s not valid and binding against
the successors of the watandars making the appointments. What was
said by the Local Government as to pargana officers must apply also to
hereditary village officers.

During the suspension of an officiating representative watandar or
Substitut deputy, and during any vacancy, the duties shall temporarily

ubstitute. 1,6 performed by a substitute, whether a watandar or not,
appointed by the Collector,

It may be mentioned here, though the matter is not of much impor-
tance, that when there is a service commutation settlement effected with
respect to any watan no service which ordinarily appertained to the
watan has to be performed.

Watan property being property held, acquired or assigned for provid-
ing remuneration for the performance of the duty appertaining to an
hereditary office is, in a sense, a trust property and mmust always be
forthcoming for providing remuneration to the officiator. The Collector
was and is empowered to assign a certain portion of the watan property
for the remuneration of the officiator. The portion so assigned is liable to
be decreased or increased as circumstances require. From the nature of
things there ought to be some provision preventing the dissipation of the
said property by alienations.

Watan properties were alienable before 1827. In that vear for the
first time restrictions came to be imposed upon
the established right or practice of alienation.
The restrictions came to be re-stated in 1874, The language in which the
restrictions were expressed in 1374 was vague and ambiguous and had to
be amended in 1886 by Bom. Act V of 1886,

The restrictions on alienations now stand in the following way,
namely:

Disqualifications.

Alienation of Watans.
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(1) Without the sanction of Government it shall not be competent

{a) to a watandar to mortgage, charge, alienate or lease, for a period
beyond the term of his national life, any watan, or any part
thereof, or any interest therein, to or for the benefit of any
person who is not a watandar of the same watan;

{b, to a representative watandar to mortgage, charge, lease or
alienate any right with which he is invested as such under the
Watan Act.

(2) In the case of any watan in respect of which a service commutation
settlement has been effected either under section 15 of the Watan
Act or before that section came into force, the above clause shall
apply to such watan, unless the right of alienating the watan without
the sanction of Government is conferred upon the watandars by the
terms of such settlement or has been acquired by them under the
said terms.

Watan property assigned as remuneration of an officiator and the
profits of Watan property so assigned shall not be alienated ot assigned
to any person whatever without the sanction of Government, and are
not liable to process of Civil Courts.

To supplement the prohibitions against alienations provisions are
made empowering the Collector to interfere in cases of alienations
contrary to the prohibitions.

There are three ways by which he may proceed. He may submit him-
self to the jurisdiction of the civil courts by
bringing a suit; or if the alienation is or is
going to be effected through the process of any civil court, he may send
a certificate of a particular kind; or he may himsel{ make an inquiry,
declare an alienatton null and void and restore the watan property to
the person entitled.

When the Collector has formally issued a certificate the Civil Court
shall, on receipt of the certificate, remove any attachment, or other
burdens then pending, against the said watan, or any part of profits
thereof, and shall cancel the decree or order complained of so far as it
concerns the said watan or any part or profits thereof.

Collector’s interference, when it is not by a suit in the civil courts, is
not affected or governed by any laws of limitation. But it is to be borne
in mind that the Collector cannot interfere where the alienation does not
offend against the provisions containing the restrictions on alienations.

The fact that the Collector may take an action for restoration of the
Watan property does not prevent the person entitled thereto from
seeking remedies in, or enforcing his rights through civil courts.

It has to be remembered there that the lands or other properties
forming remuneration of the village officers rendering service to the
village community are not alienable beyond the officiator’s life time.

Hereditary offices whether religious or secular were treated by the
Hindu text-writers.as naturally indivisible; but modern custom whether
or not it be strictly in accordance with the ancient law, has sanctioned
such partition as can be had of such property, by means of a performance
of the duties of the office and the enjoyment of the emoluments
by the different coparceners in rotation. It may be stated gener-
ally, and not with reference to any species of watan, that watans are

Collector’s interference.

Partition.
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ordinarily partible, and impartibility is merely an exception which may
be established by a family custom.

When a watan is broken up into two shares or takshims, those shares
or takshims do not constitute separate watans, A watan by the partition
thereof is not split up into two distinct watans.

There seems, however, one peculiarity about division of watans, and
it is that the Collector is not bound to recognise any subdivision which
he considers to be contrary to any custom of the watan as to service
determined by him,

In the Bombay Presidency watans are heritable. They are not here-
Inherit ditary in the fullest sense of that expression. The personal

DRCAANCE.  Jaw of watandars is slightly afiected by positive enact-
ments. The important deviation from the personal law is the case of
females other than widows of the last male holder of the watan. The
special provision about succession now is that every female member of
a watan family other than the widow of the last male owner, and
every person claiming through a female shall be postponed in the order
of succession to any watan, or part thereof or interest therein devolving
by inheritance after Bom. Act V of 1886 came into force, to every male
member of the family qualified to inherit such watan, or part thereof, or
interest therein, Tt has to be remembered that this special rule of succes-
sion has been held applicable even to watans settled under Gordon’s or
in the case of properties to which Summary Settlements were applied,
because in such a case there is the previous decision by Government that
they are not watan lands (service lands). Being private (non-watan)
properties they are not subject to the special rule of succession laid down
by Bom. Act V of 1886.

In watans the ordinary law of adoptions, where by the personal law
Adonti adoptions are permissible, remains unaffected by the Watan

OPUOnS.  Act, The Act only requires a notice of adoption to be given
to the Collector. This general rule as to adoption is subject to specific
agreements in particular cases between watandars and Government
whereby the ordinary rights as to adoption have been curtailed.

When a representative watandar dies it is the duty of the Patel and
village accountant to report the fact to the Collector; and the Collector
shall, if satisfied with the truth of the report, and subject to the law as to
succession register the name of the person appearing to be the nearest
heir of such watandar as representative watandar in place of the watandar
so deceased, Civil Courts possess the jurisdiction to declare a person as
the nearest heir of a deceased representative watandar, This jurisdiction
is affirmed by S. 2 of Bom. Act III of 1910 which substituted a new
section for 8. 36 of the Act of 1874. To a suit for a declaration that the
plaintiff is the nearest heir of a deceased representative watandar
brought for the purpose of getting an entry made by the Collector
modified, the Collector is not only not a necessary party, but such a suit
cannot be brought in the Civil Courts against Government or the Collec-
tor, That was the case law before 1876 and is now the positive law under
the Revenue Jurisdiction Act of 1876.

It is now the settled law that the Civil Courts have power to declare a
Jurisdiction of Civil courts.  BETS°R to the status of watandars. Bombay

* Act ITT of 1874 in giving the Collector

Jurisdiction to pronounce whoe amongst the watandars shall be represen-
tative does not give him jurisdiction to determine who, in disputed
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cases, shall be watandars within the definition given in the Act. A parti-
cular mode of dealing between persons whose relative status is un-
questioned does not extend to the determination of a question as to the
status itself, and where the question is as to the plaintiff's right to rank
as a watandar in a watan, the jurisdiction of Civil courts over the dispute
does not admit of serious doubt. Generally to the same effect are the
provisions of S. 4 ¢l (a) of the Revenue Jurisdiction Act (X of 1876)
which bar the cognizance of the Civil Courts in cértain'matters connected
with watans.

Watan properties are like other properties subject of the law of limita-
Ad ) . tion. The restrictions on alienations of watans do

VErse possession. ¢ prevent the operation of the Statutes of limita-
tion. The plea of adverse possession is available in respect of watan
lands as well as in respect of other immoveable properties. It is a settled
principle that in matters of limitation and res judicata a succeeding
watandar, except in some cases, claims under his predecessor. Adverse
possession for twelve years during the life-time of one holder of service-
watan lands is a bar to succeeding holders; so also adverse possession
commenced in the life-time of one watandar avails as against the sub-
sequent watandars and will not be stopped by his minority at the death
of such preceding watandar.

A watan estate might be extinguished in more ways than one: such as,
Extinction by surrender, escheat, forfeiture and others. A watandar

*  may relinguish his watan, but he must, if the wants to

relinquish, relinquish both the office (its duties) and its remuneration or
emoluments. He cannot retain the property and relinquish the service or
refuse to do it. Relinquishment of watan property does not relieve the
watandar from his obligation to render service. A watan being as ser-
vice-inam (an inam held conditionally on the performance of certain
services] is liable to resumption or forfeiture if the services are not
required at all, or, being required, the watandar refuses to render them.

A watan is liable to be forfeited for conviction by certain Criminal
Courts of the watandar for certain offences.

Annex F. No. 32

GOVERNOR (GENERAL’S INSTRUCTIONS TO ELPHINSTONE
14TH JULy, 1818

(ExGLisH RECORDS OF MARATHA HisTorY, VOL. 13. Page 430.)

The wisdom and justice of taking for the basis of the new system of
administration the existing institutions of the country except when they
are inconsistent with reason and equity and of avoiding any innovations
not indispensable for the removal of gross corruptions and abuses, are
incontestable and the earnest desire shewn for the conciliation of all
classes of inhabitants, the preservation of their just rights and the sec-
urity of their persons and property, the abolition of the farming system
and all the intolerable grievances resulting from it and the introduction
of a moderate and equitable assignment, the abolition of odious and
unjust taxes and the establishments of the ready means of access to
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redress through the medium of institutions founded on models known
to and respected by the people, together with the vigorous administrat-
ion of the police through the same channel as were employed by the
ancient Government, all these objects are provided for by your instruct-
ions to the provincial collectors and are calculated to render the British
Government equally popular and just,

- - - - - . . . - - .

Page 435.

All the Jageerdars will be feudatories of the British Government with the
exception of two or three whom it may be expedient to place in that
relation to Rajah of Sattarah.

Annex F. No. 33
BomBay Lanp REVENUE CODE 1879, S. 88, S. 8¢ AND SCHEDULE F
GRANT OF SPECIAL POWERS TO HOLDERS OF ALIENATED LANDS,

8s. ) . It shall be lawful for the Governor in Council at
Governor in Council any time to issue a commission to any holder of
may, by commission, alienated lands, conferring upon him all or any

confer on holders of - .
alienated lands of the following powers in respect of the lands

power specified in such commissien (namely) :—
{a) ) to demand security for the payment of the land-
to demand security revenue or rent due to him, and, if the same be

for land-revenue; not furnished, to take such precautions as the

Collector is authorized to take under sections 141

to 143;

{b) _ to attach the property of persons making default
to attach defaulter’s in the payment of sech land-revenue or rent, as
property; aforesaid:

(cl to fix from time to time the time at which, and the

to fix time at, and
instalments in,
which revenue due
shall be paid;

instalments in which, the land-revenue or rent
due to him shall be payable;

(@) to exercise the powers of a Collector under sections
to exercise Collector’s 63 and 66
powers;

(e} to recelve notices of relinquishment under section
to receive notices of =4, and to determine the date upto which such
relinquishment; notices shall be received as in that section prov-

ided;
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() ~ to take mcasures for the maintenance and repair of
to arrange for repair boundary-marks in the manner provided for
of boundary-marks; Survey-officers in section 122:

Provisio provided that the powers contemplated in clauses

(c) to (f) shall be conferred only on holders of
lands to which a survey-settlement has been
extended under the provisions of section 216.

89. Every such commission shall be in the form of
Form of such Schedule F, and shall be liable to be withdrawn
commission. at the pleasure of Government; and a commiss-

ion may, if the Governor in Council see fit, be
issued to one or more agents of a holder of
alienated lands as well as to the holder in person.

Schedule F.

ForM oF COMMISSION T© BE ISSUED TO A HOLDER OF ALIENATED LAND
OR VILLAGES OR HIS AGENT, UNDER SECTION 89

Seal.

The Governor in Council of Bombay, by virtue of the powers vested in
him by the Bombay Land-Revenue Code, is pleased to confer on you
{jagirdar, etc., or agent, etc., as the case may be) power to

in {or in respect of) the villages and lands specified in this
commission, in the manner prescribed in (or in section
of the said Code).

The villages and lands over which the power thus conferred upon you

extends are as follows:—

(Here enter the description.)

The within delegated power is vested in you during the pleasure and
subject to the recall of the said Governor in Council.

(Signed.)
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Annex F. No. 34
DEcisioN IN RAGHOJIRAO v, LAKSHMANRAO BEFORE THE PRIvy COUNCIL
IGII-IQI2
Tue Law REPorTS, INDIAN APPEALS, THE PrRIVY COUNCIL
VOL. XXXIX IQII-1QIZ2

SHRIMANT RAJE BAHADUR RAGHOJIRAO SAHEB Defendant
and
SHRIMANT RAJE LAKSHMANRAO SAHEB Plaintiff

ON APPEAL FROM THE HiGH COURT AT BoMBAY

Grant of Lands by Sanad-Construction-Lands attached to Deur.

By a Government sanad dated October 10, 1861, “the title of Raja
Bahadur of Deur together with the lands attached to Deur” were
granted to the father of the appellant and respondent and his heirs
in succession whether begotten or adopted in perpetuity:—

Held, having regard to the circumstances under which the sanad
was given, the whole of the lands forming the Bombay estate com-
prised therein having been prior to the grant jagir and as such
imnpartible, and the Government, its successors and officials, having
from the date of the grant and for a long period of time treated the
whale of the Bombay estate as the appanage of the title, that
according to the true construction of the sanad the expression
“lands attached to Deur” meant the whole of the said Bombay
estate. Accordingly the appellant succeeded thereto as the elder son
on the death of the grantee in 1881.

Appeal from a decree of the High Court (November 14, 1907} affirming
a decree of the Subordinate Judge of Poona (December 7, 1904).

The question decided was as to the impartibility, as alleged by the
appellant, the defendant in the suit, of certain property consisting of
villages, lands, houses, and cash allowance in the districts of Poona,
Ahmednagar, and Sholapur, in the Presidency of Bombay.

The respondent plaintiff and the appellant were half-brothers and the
only surviving male representatives of the Nagpur branch of a family
known as the Bhonle family, the history of which is sufficiently given in
their Lordships’ judgement.

Raghoji I1I., the last ruling Prince of Nagpur, died without issue on
December 11, 1853. Thereupon the Nagpur State lapsed to the British
Government and its possessions were annexed. The Government further
declared the Bombay estate the subject of appeal to have lapsed, though
as a matter of grace a small portion was allowed to remain with the
widows for their lives.

In 1855 the widows adopted Janoji Bhonle—the father of the present
litigants—as the son of the deceased Raghoji I1I.; but this adoption not
having been officially sanctioned conferred no rights on him. After the
Mutiny the Government of Bombay, while declining altogether to revive
the Nagpur Raj, proposed to recognize Janoji to a limited extent, to
confer on him the title of Raja Bahadur, and to release to him and his
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heirs the vatans, &c., situated in the Collectorates of Poona, Ahmednagar,
and Sholapur, and in the Satara territory, being the Bombay estate of
the late Raja, which had lapsed as stated. The Government of India on
February 7, 1861, sanctioned this course and proposed that the title
should be that of Raja of Deur. A sanad was issued on October 10, 1861,
bestowing on Janoji and his heirs the title of Raja Bahadur of Deur and
the Deur lands, or the lands of Deur, or the lands attached to Deur:
which expression {it was contended) meant the whole of the Bombay
estate of the Jate Raja. It was admitted that all the lands comprised in
the sanad formed the special appanage of the Rajaship of Deur and were
impartible, and that they were not restricted to the village of Deur. But
it was contended on behalf of the respondent that they did not include
more than the holdings in the district of Satara.

On the death of the Raja in 1881 the Court of Wards managed all his
possessions until the appellant came of age in 1893. In 1900 the respondent
sued for a partition of the Bombay estate. The appellant pleaded that
the whole of it was impartible by custom, also {from the nature of its
tenure, because it had been granted to his remote ancestor with the title
of Sena Saheb Subha on his appointment to high military office and had
been inherited as impartible property attached to that office and title
and liable by family usage to the rule of primogeniture ; and because under
the British grant it had been attached to the new title.

The Subordinate Judge decreed in favour of the appellant so far as
concerned the lands in the district of Satara, which he held constituted
the entire appanage of the appellant’s title of Raja, but in favour of the
respondent for partition of the other properties in question. He was of
opinien that according to the coriginal tenure, as well as to the terms of
the new grant made by the British Government, those properties were
both heritable and divisible. He said: “There is nothing in the foregoing
history of the property and the family drawn out from the old records
to indicate that the properties in the districts of Poona, Ahmednagar, and
Sholapur were ever indivisible saranjams and descendible only to the
eldest son of the last holder by rule of primogeniture. It is true that some
of these villages have been referred to as jagirs in the old records alluded
to above; but that fact per se is not sufficient to make them impartible,
more especially as the British Government, in regranting them, has
expressly made them not only heritable, but also divisible, inasmuch as
in the resolution releasing this property the Government of India distinct-
ly declared that all possessions are to be continued hereditarily to Janoji
and his heirs without further inquiry. The resolution contemplates
continuance to Janoji’s heirs (mark the word heirs in plural) and not
to the eldest son as the representative or the head of the family. The use
of the plurals ‘heirs’ indicates that it was the intention of Government
that these properties should descend to all the sons of Janoji, and the
same intention was made clear even after the death of Janojiin Exh. 37.”
Dealing further with the contention that the estate was impartible
before 1853, the Subordinate Judge considered that, as against the
appellant’s plea, weight should be attached to the following circumstances,
namely, that the territories of the Nagpur State had been divided on
three different occasions, and the conduct of the appellant in allowing a
partition of the estate in other parts of India militated against his
present plea. And as to the effect of the British grant the Subordinate
Judge held that the property in the Poona, Ahmednagar, and Sholapur
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districts in question in the suit did not form part of the appanage of the
Raja Bahadur of Deur.

The High Court held the construction of the earlier documents that
the villages in question were held before 1853 as jagirs, and were there-
fore impartible, and further held that the decision of the Judicial Com-
mittee in Culabdas Jugjivandas v. Collector of Surat ! and other author-
ities established a presumption that being jagirs they were not hereditary
holdings. “We do not think”, they added, *“that the circumstance that
the grant was generally or even usually continued to the senior living male
of the family is of itself adequate to rebut the presumption.” On the
other hand they considered that since the regrant of 1861 the villages
were clearly hereditary. They further held that, as to such of the holdings
as constituted under the regrant “an appanage of the Rajaship”, it was
clear that they remained impartible as before and descended as such by
the rule of primogeniture. But as to the Poona, Sholapur, and Ahmed-
nagar grants the High Court agreed with the Subordinate Judge that
they were part of the general family property and as such liable to
partition among the coparceners. They were not included in the special
saranjam assigned by the Government as an appanage of the title, but
on fhe regrant were made heritable and lost their character of impar-
tibility.

Kenworthy Brown, Lowndes, and G. P. Dick, for the appellant,
contended that the Bombay estate the subject of appeal was proved to
be impartible by custom and also by reason of the nature of its tenure.
The revenue records in evidence classify all the villages in the Bombay
estale as saranjams, which expression 15 merely the equivalent of jagir
and connotes impartibility. Various official documents in evidence refer
to the whole Bombay estate as the impartible appanage of the Deur
title. There was no presumption under the circumstances that the
villages were not heritable up to 1853 as being jagir when Raghoji 111.
died. Gulabdas Jugjivandas v. Collector of Surat * was referred to and, it
was contended, did not govern this case. On the evidence the Subordinate
Judge was right in holding that the estates in question were heritable up
to 1853 and the High Court was right in holding that they were impartible.
They were also shown to be by custom subject to the rule primogeniture.
They did not become the partible lands of the appellant’s family by
virtue of the terms of the regrant by the British Government in 1861.
The lands were held after the regrant on the same tenure as previously
thereto, subject to the same incidents, and were so treated both by
grantor and grantee. It was not shown to have been the intention of
the regrant that they should become partible, but there was evidence
that they continued to constitute the appanage of the Raja. Reference
was made to Krishnarav Ganesh v. Rangrav?®; Beer Pertab Sahee v.
Rajender Pertab Sahee ?; Mutta Vadagandha Tevar v. Dorasinga Tevar *
the Inam Commissioners Act (XI. of 1852) and rr. 3 and 6 made under
that Act; and Sultan Sani v. Ajmodin?.

De Gruyter, K. C., Ross, and G. K. Gadgil, for the respondent, con-

L (1878) L.R. 6 Ind. Ap. 54; 1.LL.R. 3 Bomb. 186.
? (1867) 4 Bomb. H. C. A.C.]. 1, 7, 0.

3 (1867) 12 Moo. Ind. Ap. 1, 35.

4 (1881) L.R. 8. Ind. Ap. g9.

5 (18g2) L.R. 20 Ind. Ap. 50, 51, 52.
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tended that there had been concurrent findings of fact that the Bombay
estate under appeal was partible and not impartible property. The sanad
of 1861 read with the list drawn up by the Inam Commissioner in 1858
shews that it was the lands in the Satara district alone that were regranted
as saranjam. The lands of Deur or attached to Deur as specified in the
sanad meant lands within the district of Satara and did not extend
beyond that district. Reference was made to Sultan Sani v. Ajmodin®;
Altchison’s Treaties (1863 ed.), vol. iii, pp. g3 and g4; Inam Commissioners
Act (XI, of 1852); Bombay Act II, of 1863; Vinayak Wainan v. Gopal
Hari 7, shewing that grants on iram tenure by the Peishwa were con-*
sidered to be lhable to partition; Adrishapa v. Gurushidappa ®; Nairne’s
Handbook of Revenue for the use of Revenue Officers, p. 490; Rules
revised by the Government of Bombay in Bombay Gazette, May 19,
1895; Mutta Vadaganadha Tevar v. Dorasinga Tevar?; Gopal Hari v,
Ramakant *; Krishnarav Ganesh v. Rangrav'; Ramchandra v. Ven-
katrao 1; Ramkrishna Rac v. Nanaroo ?; Gulabdas Jugjivandas v.
Collector of Surat **; Baden Powell’s Land System of British India, vol,
i, bk. iv. (ed. 1892}, pp. 299, 303.

Kenworthy Brown in reply.

The judgment of their Lordships was delivered by Lord Snaw oOF
DuxrFERMLINE. This appeal is made against a decree of the High Court
of Justice at Bombay, dated November 14, 1go7, which affirmed a
decree of the Subordinate Court of Poona, dated December 7, 1904.
The plaintifi (respondent) and the defendant (appellant) are brothers. The
main object of the suit is contained in the first prayer of the plaint, and
is to have it declared that the whole of the immovable and movable
estate mentioned in the schedule annexed to the plaint belongs to these
two brothers as equal owners thereof. The elder brother, the defendant
appellant, is Raja of Deur, and the claim is resisted by him upon the
ground that the various properties referred to had been succeeded to by
him, under the law of primogeniture, as an appanage to the title of Raja
canferred upon him by a sanad issued under the hand of the Governor
General, Earl Canning, in the year 1861.

The properties are situated in the districts of Poona, Ahmednagar,
Satara, and Sholapur, all in the Presidency of Bombay. They include
five mouzahs or villages, together with various watans, hakks, and cash
allowances, set forth in the schedule. It was a matter of agreement in
the High Court that the main question in the case should be treated
as one applicable to the villages or mouzahs, and that when the question
of partibility or impartibility should be settled in regard to them, the
remaining items in the schedule should follow that decision.

Of the mouzahs mentioned, that of Deur is situated in Satara. In the
course of the proceedings it has been admitted that the property in the
Satara district is an appanage of the title of Raja of Deur, is impartible,
and is succeeded to along with the title and position of Raja accordingly,

L.R. 20 Ind. Ap. 50, 57.

(1go3) L.R. 30 Ind. Ap. 77, 78, 790.
(1880) L.R. 7 Ind. Ap. 162.

(1896} I.L.R. 21 Bomb. 458, 460.

4 Bomb. H.C.A.C.]. 1.

(1862) I.L.R. & Bomb. 508.

{1903} 5 Bombay Law Reporter, 933.
L.R. 6 Ind. Ap. 34.
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that is to say, by the rule of primogeniture. It is submitted by the
appellant that the same result should have followed with regard to the
rest of the properties in dispute. The question in the case is whether that
submissicen is correct,

The whole of the properties are, as stated, within the Bombay Presi-
dency. This fact throws light upon the construction of many of the
official minutes, despatches, entries, and others, referred to in the case,
and appears to be one of cogency. It can hardly be denied that the lan-
guage used in ail these official documents for a period of about fifty

*years is at least ex facie language applicable to the possessions of the
Raja in the Bombay Presidency as a whole.

Points of great historical interest are naturally suggested by a review
of the pedigree put in by the parties. The records of the Bhonle family—
the Rajas of Nagpur—are bound up during a long period of time with
many stirring adventures and achievements in the course of the Maratha
ascendency and its decline, The position of the family was one of great
note from the middle of the seventeenth and during the whole course
of the eighteenth and the first half of the nineteenth centuries. The
possessions of these Rajas were extensive, stretching throughout many
portions of the Central Provinces, the North-West Provinces and Berar,
as well as of the Bombay Presidency.

The last of the Rajas of Nagpur, Raghoji I11., held the title, estates,
and rights from the year 1817 till his death in 1853. The forfeiture of
1818 followed by the treaty and free gift of 1826 need not be referred to,
the facts of ownership and possession being substantially as stated. He
died without issue. He himself was an adoptive son of one Pursoji Bhonle,
and with his death in these circumstances the Bhonle dynasty of Nagpur
came to an end. It is an admission of parties that in that year the title
of Raja of Nagpur lapsed and that the estates and rights of the deceased
Raghoii 111, fell to the British Government.

The widows of Raghoji, however, adopted Janoji in the yéar 1835.
He survived till 1881, leaving behind him the two sons who are contes-
tants in'the present case.

During the Mutiny of 1857 a female member of the family, the Rani
Baka Bai, appears to have powerfully and loyally assisted the British
cause and to have rendered services worthy of official recognition. She
was the widow of a former Raja of Nagpur, namely, Raghoji II., and
she was anxious for the continuance in the family of the title of Raja
and the attachement to it of such property as would mark and maintain
its dignity. The Government of the day declined to restore the Nagpur
title, but was willing to create—by sanad issuing from the Governor-
General—a fresh Rajaship. The title pitched upon was derived from
Deur, a small village in the Satara district of the Bombay Provinces. It
is manifest from the official documents issued that it was one of the
objects of the Government to make such a provision—in land and reve-
nues accompanying the title—as, though small and umimportant if
viewed relatively to the ancient Nagpur possessions, would still be
sufficient to gratify, so far, the desire of Baka Bai, and to support in
becoming dignity the newly created title.

! That Maharani Bakabai Saheh was loyal towards the noble Government and
the good behaviour and loyalty of that family during the Mutiny has been moved
and verified.
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It is accordingly important to note what were the exact terms of the
sanad under the hand of Earl Canning, Governor-General. It is dated
October 1o, 1861. The Subordinate Judge of Poona has closely examined
it and the translations. As stated by the learned judge, it is written in
Urdu, and its text is translated as foilows, it being super-signed by
Lord Canning and bearing the seal of the Government of India:—

“Sanad granted by His Excellency the Viceroy and the Governor-
General of India in Council to Raja Janoji Bhonle Bahadur conferring
upon him the title of Raja Bahadur of Deur.

“Whereas it has been proved and verified; in recognition thereof
the title of Raja Bahadur of Deur together with the lands attached to
Deur has been conferred upon and given on this auspicious occasion,to
that Meherban himself and his heirs in succession whether begotten or
adopted in perpetuity and the sanad thereof has been executed, It must
be deemed incumbent that in return of this gift and kindness you will
always remain loyal to the noble British Government and you will look
upon this sanad (sic} a perfect one.”

The point of the case is, what meaning is to be given to the words
“lands attached to Deur”? Are these lands limited to the village of Deur
itself? Or do they extend to the possessions in the Satara district? Or
do they cover the possessions as a whole which lay within the Presidency
of Bombay?

Neither party to the case maintains that the grant should be confined
to the lands in the village of Deur alone; and it is conceded by the
respondent that other lands in the Satara district must be held fo be
included. This concession is perfectly reasonable, for otherwise the lands
attached to Deur if confined to the village of Deur itself, would reduce
the maintenance of the dignity of the Raja almost to a shadow.

But the mere inclusion of the Satara lands also reaches a very incon-
siderable total. These lands are worth over Rs. 3000 per annum. The
villages, lands, and others in the whole of the Bombay Presidency,
mentioned in the plaint, yield a total revenue of over Rs. 12,000, and
it would appear from this that if all these lands were dealt with as lands
which were attached to Deur by the sanad they would form, taken
together, a fund for the maintenance of the dignity of the Raja which
could not be said to be over ample. But if the lands attached to Deur are
confined to those in the Satara district alone, then the result of such
a construction of the sanad is to set up this Raja with an appanage of
about Rs. 3000 per annum for the support of his dignity and trtle. Their
Lordships are not surprised to learn that during all the years since the
sanad, in many of which the Court of Wards have had possession, and in
all of which the Government have had cognizance of the facts, no one
apparently until the institution of this suit ever thought of maintaining
that the possessions attached to the position of Raja were of the slender
proportions described. Upon the contrary, they have throughout been
deait with as those within the Bombay Presidency at large.

As mentioned, the properties of the former Rajas were situated not
only in the Bombay Presidency, in which their extent was very limited,
but in the Central Provinces and Berar. A large donation or stipend of
Rs. 120,000 per annum was enjoyed by the late Raja Janoji at the time
of his death. After that event, in 1881, the Government of the day had
to consider the question of the allowances to be made to his successors,
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namely, his two sons. A pension amounting to Rs. go,000 was fixed, and
in the despatch of February 1o, 1882, by the Assistant Secrctary to the
Chief Commissioner, the grounds are explained of the distribution of this
pension. ““The two sons”, it is said, "“will succeed to the landed property
of the late Raja in the Central Provinces and Berar, and to the person-
alty in equal shares, This is in accordance with the Hindu law and Mara-
tha custom. The elder son will succeed to the title of Raja of Deur and
to the estate in the Bombay Presidency, which goes with that title. The
value of this estate is, however, comparatively small, the bulk of the
landed property of the late Raja being situated in the Central Provinces
and Berar. There will not, therefore, be much difference in the private
income of the two sons should they hereafter separate.” This passage is
quoted as an indication of the view which is repeatedly exhibited in
the documents with regard to the attitude of the Government, from
whom the grant by way of sanad proceeded. This interpretation was
undoubtedly that the Raja of Deur should take the estates in the Bom-
bay Presidency, which were comparatively small, as an appanage of
the title; that these should accordingly follow the rule of primogeniture;
whereas the larger and more important estates in the Central Provinces
and Berar should be partible equally between the two sons.

Contemporanea expositio as a guide to the interpretation of docu-
ments is often accompanied with danger, and great care must be taken
in its application. But in the present case their Lordships do not feel
themselves able to reject the assistance which it affords, The sanad upon
which these important rights are founded is a document of a general and
informal character, It admittedly is capable of a variety of constructions.
The extreme literal construction—its confinement to the single village
of Deur—is adopted by neither party. And when the ambiguity covers
the geographical and pecuniary extent of an admittedly ambiguous grant,
their Lordships think it legitimate to observe what was the footing upon
which the grantors, namely, the Government and its successors and
officials, from the date of the grant and for a long period of time, pro-
ceeded.

It may be pointed out that since 1881, namely, since the death of
Janoji, the question of partibility was, of course, practically and sharply
raised, and the fact is that the whole of the income derived from the
estates in the Bombay Presidency, amounting to about Rs. 12,000 per
annum, has been uniformly treated as the exclusive income of the elder
son, namely, the present appellant. This was done both while he and
his brother were wards in the Court of Wards and at other times. That
Court managed the possessions of the appellant until he came of age in
1893. Again in 1895 the Court of Wards re-entered, by request of the
Raja, into possession and management for a time. In 189y the younger
brother came of age, the property in the Central Provinces and Berar was
divided equally, and the Bombay estate was treated as impartible and
continued with the Raja as an appanage of the title. In the opinion of
their Lordships, this throughout was a correct course: and the present
suit the object of which is to diverge from that course, is not in accor-
dance, with the rights of parties.

In one view, what has been said might appear to be sufficient for the
disposal of this case. But in the judgments of the learned judges of the
Courts below, and in the arguments addressed to their Lordships,
further considerations were urged as assisting towards a conclusion



ANNEXES TO REJOINDER {F N0. 34) 427

and falling to be dealt with. There can be little doubt that the whole
of the lands in issue were originally jagir lands, and the legal position of
such property quoad succession, and the competency or incompetency
of assisting the construction of the sanad of 1861 by such considerations,
were much discussed. There are three points with reference to the position
of property such as that now in suit which stand logically clear of each
other, and with regard to which there has been a certain element of
confusion. These three points are, first, was the land impartible? Secondly,
did the law of hereditary succession apply to it? And thirdly, was it
subject to the law of primogeniture?

The Subordinate Judge, after referring to the fact that some of the
villages are referred to as jagirs in the old records, is of opinion that
“that fact per se is not sufficient to make them impartible”. If this be
stated as a conclusion with regard to the jagir tenure in general, their
Lordships cannot agree with it; but, upon the contrary, they are of
opinion that the following statement in the judgment of the High Court
is correct, namely, “The grants were manifestly grants in jagir of the
ordinary character, that is to say, they were personal and not hereditary,
and were resumable at pleasure. Being personal and temporary, they
were necessarily impartible.” This accurately distinguishes between
partibility as such, and any consequence, whether in the direction of
hereditary or primogenital succession, which may be supposed to flow
from such a fact. The impartibility of jagir lands is in truth entirely
separated from the idea of succession by the fact that the impartible
lands were held together as a unit in the hands of one man who was
rendering personal service to the Government of the day. It may be
that upon his death a fresh grant, again to one man, and again in
return for personal service, was made; and it may also be that the one
man selected was in the ordinary case the eldest son; but these matters
of practice were not cunsequences of law, and the impartibility and unity
which attached to personal service were not related to, but, on the
contrary, were distinct from, the idea of succession by force of law to the
impartible lands.

It is at this point that the case appears to have been confused and
encumbered by a plea put forward by the appellant to the effect that
the lands in question were not only impartible and hereditary, but were,
by custom, subject to the law of primogeniture. Once granted that the
lands were jagir and impartible as such, a custom of the kind alleged was
not a subject for proof, because such a custom would have been radicaily
inconsistent with the personal and non-transmissive character of a grant
in jagir. Their Lordships agree in holding with the Courts below that this
case accordingly cannot be decided on the custom alleged.

All that remains on this issue, consequently, is the fact that prior to the
regrant by Earl Canning the lands had been formerly jagir. But this
term implied no grant of the soil, but a personal grant only of the revenue
to the grantee. The Marathi equivalent to the term jagir, namely, saran-
jam, came in course of time to be applied to the lands; and no doubt it
was also a fact in the history of the property that the senior living male
of the family had in the ordinary case succeeded to it.

In those circumstances, it is interesting to observe what was the
delivery order issued with reference to the lands which were the subject
of the sanad. This forms a not unimportant item to that contemnporanea
expositio to which reference has been made. Much importance—and,
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in their Lordships’ opinion, too much importance—has been attached
in the judgments of the Courts below to the distinction between the term
inam and saranjam. The importance has reached this point, that the
learned judges treat the lands of Satara referred to in one or two of the
documents as saranjam, by way, as they apprehend, of distinction from
the other lands which are treated as inam. In their Lordships’ views, the
terms are mutually exclusive in the sense indicated. The latter term,
namely, inam, is one of mere generic significance, applicable to a Govern-
ment grant as a whole. But in the next place it is a very striking fact
in this case that in the initial delivery order now being referred to (as
indeed in many of the subsequent documents) the rights in the Bombay
Presidency are dealt with comprehensively and as covered, not by one
name, but by all, or at least many, of the names applicable to land and
revenue rights. In the Mamletdar's order, for instance, of March 19,
1862, applicable to the village of Mouje Devi Nimbgay, one of the proper-
ties in Ahmednagar, the matter is treated of in this way. The village
“is a jagir to the Bhonles and as a village was placed under japti (attach-
ment); the revenue of the same was received for being credited in Govern-
ment records”. Then follows the definite statement: “But the watan,
inam, saranjam, hakks, &c... have been entered in the name of
Janoji...”” Therefore certain definite orders are given pursuant to the
Government resolution, “directing the said village, vatan, &., to be
delivered” into the charge of Janoji’s managers. It would therefore
accordingly appear that the term saranjam was not in point of fact
confined to the lands of Satara. This ground of the judgments of the
Courts below accordingly disappears.

A matter of much significance must now be dealt with, On the death
of Janoji in 1881 the question of partibility or impartibility,—there
being two sons of that Raja,—became matter for definite consideration
and regulation. What light is thrown upon the case by the conduct at
and after this juncture of the Government, including the Court of Wards,
which was charged with the correct distribution of these two sons shares?
Upon this head their Lordships do not conceal that they have viewed
with some dissatisfaction the conduct of certain parts of the plaintiff's
case. On May 6, 1882, an important letter was written by Mr. Lawrei,
manager of the estates, to the Deputy Collevtor, “Satara, Sholapur,
Ahmednagar, and Poona”. That is to say, this letter was addressed to
the persons acting as Collectors in reference to all the estates within the
Bombay Presidency which were the subject of issue in this case. He
forwards his appointment by the Deputy Commissioner of Nagpur as
manager of the estate of the late Raja’s minor sons: and then there
follows his passage, or what was supposed to have been this passage, as
the document was produced in the suit: I have the honour to request
you to be so good as to cause mutation of names to be made for all vil-
lages held by the late Raja in your collectorate in favour of his two sons,
Raja Raghojeerao Bhonle (only for Satara} and Laxmanrao in equal
shares with my name as manager.” So stated, this document would
appear to suggest that all the properties except that of Satara were
partible; and this would have been an important adminicle of evidence
to that effect. The document however, has a history. It is deposed to in
the evidence of the plaintiff’'s own witness Abaji Belaji. Interlineations
and remarkable alterations occur in the document, and the witness
confesses, "'l cannot say why and by whose order the words ‘only for
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Satara’, ‘two’, the ‘s’ added to the word ‘son’, and the words ‘and
Laxmanrac in equal shares with my name as manager’ were written”
As the document stands it suits the plaintiff's case; but it appears to be
legitimate, and, indeed, proper and just, to read, the document without
the doubtful and inexplained interlineations and alterations. So read,
the letter is as follows: *‘T have the honour to request you to be so good as
to cause mutation of names to be made for all villages held by the late
Raja in your collectorate in favour of his son Raja Raghojeerao Bhonle.”
The letter is addressed to the Collector, not of Satara alone, but to the
Collectors of Satara, Sholapur, Ahmednagar, and Poona, and it would
read, accordingly appear to demonstrate that, at the important time
when the administration of the deceased Raja Janoji's estate was taken
up by Government, all the estates in the Bombay Presidency were
treated, without exception, as an appanage to the title of Raja.

It is right that a further reference should be made to a cognate topic.
It would rather seem that the learned judges of the Court below have
been induced to treat as authentic various entries in the Collector’s
books which were not the entries as originally made, but were entries
subject to “correction’; a correction made upon an ex parte application
on behalf of the plaintiff. This application was preferred and apparently
granted, behind the back of the defendant, and during the course of this
present litigation. The date of the suit was August 22z, 1goo, and on
August 5, Igo1, a memorial was presented to the Governor in Council at
Bombay with the statement: “This is forwarded to the Chief Secretary
by letter of the 13th August, 1go2.”" It is plain from a perusal of these
documents thaf certain registers, including in particular the register
of the Collector of Ahmednagar, together with certain despatches, had
been the subject of investigation on behalf of the plaintiff, and that that
investigation had revealed facts which were considered to be contrary to
his interests. The application admits that in these documents the Coliec-
tor of Ahmednagar had “‘been directed to treat the villages referred to
in the petition as impartible saranjam’. Then the letter proceeds:
“The villages of Devi Nomgaon, Jat Deola, and Jalapur, in the Ahmed-
nagar district, were up to 1864 regarded as inams and saranjams, and
the deshmukhi and other hakks as wattans, as contradistinguished from
saranjams. There was and is no room for asserting that they were ever
treated as impartible saranjams held on political tenure.” This remark-
able document winds up thus: “In view of the facts and arguments
above set forth, you will be pleased to issue orders to correct the Land
Revenue Register by expunging that portion of it in which” the villages
“are specified as political saranjams’. The facts and arguments here
referred to are simply those which have been urged in the present liti-
gation. The one fact outstanding from the whole of these proceedings
is that the argument now preferred, to the efiect that the Satara property
and that alone was treated as saranjam, while the other properties were
throughout treated as inam, is contrary to what is admitted to have been
the original entries in the books referred to. In these circumstances, if
appears to their Lordships to be quite unsafe to place reliance upon a
denomination of these lands dependent upon a ‘‘correction” which
appears, or is alleged, to have been made while the case was sub judice,
and upon an ex parte representation. Their Lordships think that the
original state of the records before the so-called corrections were made
was that alone to which a Court of law should have looked. This would at

29



430 ANNEXES TO REJOINDER (F NO. 34)

least be the safe and ordinary rule, and there do not appear to be any
facts in the present case to ground an exception to it. It is not for their
Lordships to pronounce upon the procedure by which such “corrections”
of official documents and records can be possible in those districts in
circumstances such as are here disclosed.

Various difficulties are presented by reason of expressions which
appear in despatches from those in authority in the Central Provinces,
In those despatches language is used which would appear to signify that
the lands attached to Deur in the Bombay Presidency were the Satara
lands alone. The language is not clear, and it had reference to a matter
lying beyond the jurisdiction of the writers.

Difficulties also arise with regard to the terminology emploved in some
of the entries in which saranjam is applied to Satara and inam to the
" other districts, whereas in others there appears to be an application of
both terms to the same lands and in various districts.

Their Lordships, upon the whole, have had little difficulty in coming
to the conclusion that too restricted an application has been made by the
Courts below of the term “the lands attached to Deur”. They think
the expression extends to the whole scheduled lands in the Presidency
of Bombay. They will humbly advise His Majesty that the judgments
of the Courts below should be reversed, that the lands referred to in this
suit are impartible, that they are attached as an appanage to the title
of the Raja of Deur, and that the suit be dismissed with costs here and
below.

The respondent will also pay the costs of a petition for further docu-
ments which was before the Board on February 24, 1911,

Solicitors for appellant: SPEECHLY, MumMFoRrD and CRAIG,
Solicitors for respondent: LATTEYS and HART..
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Annex F. No. 35

DEcisION IN SHEKH SULTAN SANI v. SHEKH AJMODIN
BEFORE THE PRIVY COUNCIL, 1891

THE Law REporTs, INDIAN APPEALS, VoL. XX 18g2-93

Pages 50-69.
SHEKH SULTAN SANI, Plaintiff ;
AND
SHEKH AJMODIN, Defendant.

AND THE REVIVED APPEAL.
ON APPEAL FROM THE THE GOVERNOR IN COQUNCIL OF BOMBAY.

Grants by Treaty-Savanjam and Inam Tenures-Political Tenure—Juris-
diction of Civil Tribunals.

Held, with regard to both the saranjam and inam tenures in suit,
that having been originally granted by treaty to be held on a
political tenure, they had continued to be so held, with the result
that they were resumable at the pleasure of the Government.
Such right of resumption had been recognized by legislation (see
Bombay Act. VII of 1863). It accordingly rested with the Govern-
ment to regrant the same at its discretion on the death of their
holder, and it was not within the competency of any legal tribunal
to review its decision.

APPEAL with the permission of the Government of Bombay from a
judgment of the Governor in Council, termed a resolution in the Political
Department (z5th of April, 1887), varying a decision of the Court of the
Agent for Sardars in the Deccan at Poona (8th of June, 1886). The
proceedings were held under Bombay Regulations on XXIX of 19z7. The
suit was brought to set aside the acts of the Bombay Government, which
upon the death of Shekh Khan Mahomed, a sardar of the second class,
had recognised as his successor the Respondent, and had placed him
in possession of certain saranjams or jaghirs and inam lands held by
Khan Mahomed up to his death. The Plantiff claimed to be entitled to
them as son and heir of the deceased, and also general devisee under
his will. The fact of the will was undisputed.

The Agent for the Sardars held that the Plaintiff was the only son of
Khan Mahomed, and as such was entitled to share in all his property in
respect of which the Court was competent to pass any decree. As to the
saranjams he considered that they were completely at the disposition
of the Bombay Government, and that the Government would not be
bound to respect any decree which he might pass. As to the other prop-
erty he decreed to the Plaintiff that share to which he was entitled as

! Present: Lord Hobhouse, Lord Macnaghten, Lord Hannen, Sir Richard.
Couch, and Lord Shand.

LC.¢
1891
June 18,
24, 25,
{uly 1.

Nov. 19.

19,
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only son by the Mohamedan law. On appeal the Governor in Council
held that the Plaintifi was not the son of Khan Mahomed, and that as
regards the larger part’of the property claimed Khan Mahomed had, by
virtue of certain proceedings of the Bombay Government, been deprived
of any heritable or descendible estate. It was admitted, however, that the
Plaintiff was the devisce of Khan Mahomed under his will, and effect was
given to this will in his favour, to the extend permitted hy Mahomedan
law, in respect of all property of the testator which was not affected by
the above-named proceedings of Government.

‘The material portion of the resolution of the Bombay Government
was as follows:—

The great mass of the property which forms the subject of the suit was
held by Khan Mahomed’s ancestors under grants of old date, which
merged into a regrant under the agreement concluded with Shekh Mira
Waikar, dated the 3rd of July, 1820, which will be found at page 374
of the 4th vol. of Aitchison’s Treaties. By this agreement the “Jaghirs
& c.”, were restored to Shekh Mira, and the “Inam villages, watans,
and other allowances' were continued to him. Upon Khan Mahomed's
death, the Government, in accordance with the decision already referred
to, resumed the jaghir or saranjam and after a while regranted it to the
Defendant, Ajmodin. There is no doubt whetever that the Government
had a perfect right to do this, and that its action cannot be questioned.
It is settled law that the Government may resume jaghirs or saranjams
whenever it pleases, and that the civil Court cannot question such
action. Even therefore if the resumption of a saranjam were wholly
unjustifiable, it would be none the less valid; but certainly no resump-
tion could be more justifiabie than one made as a punishment to the
Saranjamdar for palming off upon Government a spuricus son as his heir.
This has hardly been disputed; and the argument at the Bar has been
mainly directed to the question whether the resumption and regrant to
Ajmodin of the inam, as distinguished from the saranjam can be upheld
as an act legally within the competency of Government. Now, it cer-
tainly appears from the old Sanads that the inams were originally held
on a somewhat different tenure from the saranjams. They seem to have
been granted for maintenance and as a reward for past service, rather
than on condition of future service. The same distinction may perhaps
have been intended, though it is not very clear in the agreement of the
3rd of July, 18z0. It is also evident that, after it had been determined
to resume the saranjam Government did not for some time contemplate
a resumption of the inam, but rather intended that all claims to the inam
should be adjudicated on the usual course by the ¢ivil Court. But in 1876
Government finally determined to resume the inam, and regrant it to
Ajmodin: and the question is, not whether this determination was con-
sistent with the advice of all its officers, or with its own previous views and
opinions, but whether its action was within the powers vested in it by
law, Now, looking to the provisions of Sched. B, rule 10 of Act XI. of
1852 to sect. 1, clause 2, and sect. 16 of Bombay Act II, of 1863, and to
sect. 2, clause 2, and sect. 32 of Bombay Act XVI. of 1863, it must, in the
opinion of the Governor in Council, be held that Government has the
power to tesume on political considerations, any property which is held
on political tenure; and that it is for Government to determine in every
instance whether the tenure is political. This being so, the question is
whether Government did, in 1876 resume the inams of the Waikar family
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on the ground that they were held on political tenure. Now, the decision
of Government is contained in its Resolution No. 6836, of the 6th of
November, 1876, which in its preamble sets forth a memorandum of the
alienation settlement officer, containing his opinion that “‘as Government
have sanctioned the adoption” {i.e. of Ajmodin) “‘the whole estate, intact,
saranjam and inam, as restored after the war under the treaty of 3rd
of July, 1820, is continuable as a guaranteed estate to the adopted son
as the head of the family, and should be entered in the accounts accord-
ingly, the same as all other treaty estates of mixed saranjam and inam”’;
and then the resolution is passed in the following terms: “The suggest-
ions of the alienation settlement officer are approved, and should be
carried out.” So that Government adopted the view of the alienation
settlement officer, and that view clearly was that, under the terms of the
treaty of 1820, and other similar treaties, a mixed estate of saranjam
and mam is all held on the same political tenure, and ought to pass
tntact to the person whom Government may recognise as the head of the
family. This view may have been right or wrong {and looking to the terms
of the treaty of the 3rd of July, 1820, the Governor in Council would
find it difficult to say that it was wrong) ; but, at any rate, as it was adopt-
ed by Government as the ground of its action, it does not appear open
to any Court to dispute it.

The facts of the case and the proceedings are stated in the judgment
of their Lordships.

Doyne, for the appellant, contended that the Agent for Sardars in
the first instance was wrong in rejecting the claim relating to the saran-
jams, though right in his ruling as regards the inams and the other prop-
erty. But the Government on appeal deprived him of everything except
what it considered to be within the disposing power of Khan Mahomed.
He contended, with regard to the saranjam properties, that they had
been recognised and confirmed as hereditary estates of Shekh Mira by
the Government of the East India Company 1n 1819 and 1820. Reference
was made to the treaty of the 25th of September, 1819, Aitchison’s
Treaties, vol. 6, No. 2 arts. 1, 7, between the company and the Rajah
of Satara; and to an agreement made with Shekh Mira II., dated the
3rd of July, 1820, ibid. vol. 6, p. 78. It was contended that therecafter the
Government did not pessess or retain any- power to alter the right of
succession to those properties according to the rule of primogeniture,
As regards the resolution of the Government of the sth of April, 1860,
to the effect that, even if Khan Mahomed should leave a legitimate son,
the saranjams will not be continued to him, it was contended that it and
all subsequent proceedings of the Government in derogation of that
son’s right of succession were beyond the scope of theGovernment’s
authority and illegal. Reference was made to Ramchandra Mantri v.
Venkatrao Mantri !, and Premshunkar Raghunathji v. Government of
Bombay 2 Saranjams no doubt, are resumable at the pleasure of the
Government, unless the Government has by its own act made them
hereditary: see Dosibhai v. Ishwardas Jagjiwandas®.

As regards the inam tenures and other private properties of Khan
Mahomed which were not comprised in the resolution of the s5th of April,
1860, they, on his death, descended by law to his heir or heirs-at-law,

! Ind. L. R. 6 Bomb. 568.
? 8 Bemb. H. C. R, (A.C.].) 195, 2o01.
* Law Rep. 18 Ind. Ap. 22.
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and the Government could not by its resolution of z7th of March, 1874,
recognising the Respondent as the head of the family, to whom the
saranjam should be continued, affect the rights of those who were entitled
to the inams by the ordinary law of inheritance. Reference was made to
the Inam Act XI of 1852; Bombay Act IT of 1863, sect. 2; Madhavrar
Manohar v. Atmaram Kashar * .Reference was also made to a judgment
on the evidence in the former case: Gujju Lal ». Futtehdal®, and to
Naranji Bhikhabhai ». Dipa Umed®. Upon the guestion of legitimacy
the evidence was sufficient to establish the Appellant’s case, regard being
had to the strength of the presumptions in its favour according fo
Mahomedan Law: see Ashrufood Dowla Ahmed Hossain Khan ». Hyder
Hossein Khan 7, Nawab Muhammed Azmut Ali Khan ¢. Mussumat Lalli
Begum 8,

Finalay, 0.C., and Mayne, for the Respondent, contended that on the
evidence the Appellate Court was right in holding that the Appellant
had not made out his title as son and heir to Khan Mahomed. The law
of inheritance applicable to this case is as laid down in Gulabdas Jug-
jiwandas ». Collector of Surat?, recognised in Dosibhai ». Ishwardas
Jagjiwandas ®. The Appellant’s right, however, to both saranjams and
inams depends, in the first instance, on the treaty of 3rd of July, 1820,
which was of political character, is not subject to interpretation by the
Civil Courts, but was within the exclusive interpretation of the executive
authority. The Government recognise that treaty as conferring only a
life tenure as to both saranjams and inams. The tenure of those was of a
political character. The title was as Government grantee; and although
the grantee’s son succeeded at his death, the son's title was not by right
of descent, but the Government selected him because of his descent.
What the Government did, having conquered the territory, was to parcel
out the tenures between the Rajah of Satara on the one side, and the
jaghirdars on the other. To the latter their titles were guaranteed, and
the rajah had his title to the raj subject to respecting the title of the
jaghirdars. The result was that the jaghirs and the inams were to be
enjoyed as before by holders whose title was personal and military in its
origin. They obtained no more than life tenures. Saranjams,moreover,
are by their own character, and by the law and customs of India, at the
absolute disposal of the Government. The particular saranjams in this
case are shewn to have been held on a political and not an hereditary
tenure. The same principle applies to the inams, which both before and
after the treaty of 1820 were held for life only; and the Court of Directors
in the transaction of 1842 had no intention to alter the character of
either the one or the other. Reference was made as to political tenures
to Act. XI of 1852, and to sects. 10 and 11 of Sched, B; to Bombay Act
11 of 1863, Sects, 1, 16 (¢); Act VII, of 1863, sect. 2 clause 3; sect. 32 (c).

Doyne, replied.

The Judgment of their Lordship was delivered by Lord Hannen:—

The Plaintiff, Sultan Sani, claims to be the son of Shekh Khan Maho-
med, who died on the 31st of December, 1872, and as such son to be

4 Ind. L. R. 15 Bomb. 519.
& Ind. L. R. 6 Calc. 171.

$ Ind. L. R. 3 Bomb. 3.

7 11 Moore’s Ind. Ap. ca. 94.
8 Law. Rep. g Ind. Ap. 8.

* Law, Rep. 6 Ind. Ap. 54.
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entitled to certain properties alleged to have been held by Khan Mahomed
by a tenure known as saranjam, and certain other properties alleged to
have been held by a tenure known as inam. The nature of these tenures
will be considered presently. .

The Plaintiff also claimed the property as devised to him under the
will of Khan Mahomed.

The suit was on in the Court of the Agent for Sardars, a tribunal created
in 1827 (Bombay Regulation XX1X. of 1827) for the trial of suits against
certain Deccan sardars, an appeal being given to the Governor in Council
of Bombay and, from him to the Queen in Council.

In this suit the Plaintiff sought to recover possession from the Defend-
ant Ajmodin (the predecessor of the present Respondents) of the saran-
jam and inam lands of which (as the Plaintiff alleged) the Defendant had
been put into wrongful possession by the Bombay Government after the
death of Khan Mahomed.

In answer to this suit it was contended by the Defendant that the
Plaintiff was not the son of Khan Mahomed; and, secondly, that the
tenure of the lands claimed was such that the Government was entitled
on the death of Khan Mahomed to resume them and assign them to
whom it pleased.

The title of the Plaintiff under the will of Khan Mahomed was not
disputed as to the property of the testator over which the Government
had not such a dispesing power.

The Agent for Sardars held (the 8th of June, 1886) that the Plaintiff
is the son of Khan Mahomed, but that the saranjams were completely at
the disposal of the Government. As to the other lands, which he distin-
guished as inam, he held that the plaintiff was entitled under the Maho-
medan law aso recover as only son of the testator.

On appeal to the Governor in Council, His Excellency in Council held
that the Plaintiff was not the son of Khan Mahomed, and that the Gov-
ernment had power not only to resume the saranjam, but also the so-
called inam property, and to assign them to whom it pleased.

c Fmr’? this decision the present appeal is brought to Her Majesty in
ouncil.

The Agent for Sardars and the Governor in Council have both held
that the saranjam lands were of such a tenure that the Government was
entitled to resume them and to regrant them to whom it pleased. Their
Lordships propose to consider this question in the first instance.

“Saranjam” is stated in Wilson’s Glossary to be an “‘assignment of
lands or their revenue by the State for the support of troops.”

“Mokasa’’, a word which will be found in several of the documents
hereinafter referred to, appears to have a meaning nearly equivalent to
that of saranjam. It is defined as “villages or lands, or a share in the rule
over them and revenue arsing from them, granted on condition of
military service or in inam’’.

“Inami’” is stated by Wilson to mean “‘grants of land held rent free, and
in hereditary and perpetual occupation”.

The history of the property to which this suit relates is as follows:—

In 1708, one Shekh Meeran (or Mira) was in the service of the Rajah
of Satara. For assistance rendered to the rajah ‘“‘he received the inam
village of Pasarni, a pension of Rs. 1,800 monthly, and was raised to the
rank of a commander of sixty horses, for the maintenance of which he
held mokasa amals (meaning ‘share of revenue’) to the amount of
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Rs. 40,000. The pension ceased with the first Shekh Meeran, and the
mokasa has since fallen off to about Rs. 18,000, which with Pasarni, is
still enjoyed for the performance of service to the Rajah of Satara with
ten horsemen.”

This is given on the authority of Lieutenant-Colonel Briggs, formerly
resident at Satara. The date does not appear.

The property thus granted was situated in the districts of Satara,
Poona, and Khandesh.

The earliest document relating to the property is of the date of 1709
A.D. This document is headed, “Body of horse under the control of the
State”, and it runs thus: “Body (of horse under) Shekh Mira; saranjam,
total as in last year (as per) mandatory letters”; and it includes nine
mokasa villages and the inam village of Pasarni.

The next documents dated 1715 A.D., and is also headed “Body of
horse under the control of the State, Body (of horse) Shekh Mira””, and
is as follows: “the letter of command dated 18th meon Saval (regarding)
the village of Pasarni, Samat Haveli, Prant Wai. A deed of inam was
formerly given about the grant of this village as inam to the aforenamed
person, together with all rights and cesses, the present and future taxes,
and together with sardeshmukhi. The deed having been burnt, new deeds
have been prepared and given.”

In 1718 A.D. a document headed, “Saranjam for the Body of horse
under the control of the State ... in the charge of Shekh Mira”, includes
and comprises “village of Pasarni, inam village,” also “inam lands in
Kasha Wai (called) Katban, the place of residence of the afore-named
person, are granted in inam’’.

Katban appears to have been granted to Shekh Mira (date uncertain,
1715}, “to him and his son, grandson, &c. from generation to gener-
ation”’.

The grant of Pasarni was confirmed in 1752 by the mother of the then
Rajah of Satara to Shekh Kahn Mahomed, I., the son of Shekh Mira,
in the same terms.

In a document described as the Peshwa’s diary of 1763 A.D., it is
recorded that “Mokasa villages, &c., have heen continued by the Gov-
ernment from former times to Shekh Khan Mahomed in the service of
Government. They are in the same manner confirmed.”

Amongst the properties enumerated and “the whole village of Pasarni,
Samat Haveli, Prant Wai, together with the deshmukhi and sardesh-
mukhi (rights} being inam.”

In 1785 A.I)., in the diary of the Peshwa, is registered: “the sanad
for continuing the saranjam to Shekh Mira Waikar’, 1.e., Mira II., and
the saranjam 1s thus described:— A saranjam (consisting) of amal (shares
of revenue), of mahals, and of single villages, as also inam villages and
lands, were continued from former times to Shekh Khan Mahomed
Walad Shekh Mira, for the support of troops. He having died, the saran-
jam and inam villages and lands have as before been confirmed upon
his son Shekh Mira, for the support of troops.” Then follows an enumer-
ation of the properties, which includes the mokasa lands and inam villages
and lands, amongst these latter being the whole village of Pasarni,
Samat Haveli, Prant Wali.

It is to be observed that this document clearly includes the inam villages
and lands with the mokasa as parts of one saranjam for the support of
troops.
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When the power of the Peshwa was overthrown, Shekh Mira IT was
in possession of this saranjam. A portion of the conquered territory was
placed under the Government of the Rajah of Satara, with whom a
treaty was entered into on the z5th of September, 1819, by which it was
provided that the Possessions of jaghirdars within the Rajah’s territory
were to be under the guarantee of the British Government, which engaged
to secure the performance of the service due to the Rajah according to
established custom.

Separate agreements were entered into with several jaghirdars, of
whom Shekh Mira I11. was one. The agreement with Shekh Mira 1., which
was made on the 3rd of July, 1820, thus commences:— “These jaghirs

&c., were formerly held by you as a personal and military jaghire; but

having come into the possession of British Government along with the
rest of the country, they are now restored, in consideration of the
antiquity and respectability of the family, to be held as formerly in
personal and military jaghirs.” :

The 7th Article stipulates the “without orders from Government no
extra troops are to be levied, and none assembled for the purpose of
making war on any one. In matters of family disputes concerning rela-
tionship and such like, no appeal to arms can be permitted, but the case
is to be represented to the Agent of the British Government, who will
communicate with the Government of His Highness, and whatever
decision is given must be reckoned binding.”

This agreement does not specify the jaghirs to which it relates. The
sth Article is as follows:—*“Whatever inam viltages, watans, and other
allowances have hitherto belonged to Shekh Mira Waikar within the
territories of the British Government or of His Highness, shall be contin-
ued, and whatever items of revenue belonging to His Highness’s Govern-
ment may be within the jaghir, shall be continued to be paid.”

There are no words in this agreement having reference to the descend-
ants of Shekh Mira, and it distinctly states that the jaghirs are to be
held ‘as formerly in personal and military jaghirs”. This agreement
must be regarded as the root of the title (whatever it may be), which was
acquired by Shekh Mira IT.

With regard to the expression contained in some of the sanads pre-
viously cited of the grant being to the person named, “his son, grandson,
& c., from generation to generation” it has been observed by many
writers of authority on this subject, that they de not, as might be
supposed, impart a fixed hereditary tenure. Colonel Etheridge, in his
preface {0 the narrative of the Bombay Inam Commission, quotes the
language of Sir Thomas Munro, in a minute of the 15th of March, 1822,
in which he states that the “terms in such documents (sanads) for ever,
from generation to generation or in Hindu grants, while the sun and
moon endure, are more forms of expression, and were never supposed,
either by the donor or receiver, to convey the durability which they
imply, or any beyond the will of the sovereign”; and in a subsequent
minute of the 16th of January, 1823, Sir Thomas Munro shews that
while the seizure of private property by the native princes would have
been considered unjust by the country, jaghir grants were not regarded
by the people in the light of private property (Etheridge, p. 14).

Their Lordships entertain no doubt that the engagements entered into
by the English Government with the Rajah of Satara and with the several
jaghirdars, did not impart any greater fixity of tenure than had been



438 ANNEXES TO REJOINDER (F No. 35)

previously enjoyed by those jaghirdars under the native rulers, and that
their jaghirs were liable to resumption at the will of the Government,
although from reasons of political expediency the English authorities
wonld not be disposed to add to the distrubance and confusion attending
a conquest, by dispossessing the holders of property to any greater extent
than was necessary for safety.

Thus, on the death of Shekh Mira II, in 1827, the saranjam which he
had enjoyed was continued to his son Shekh Khan Mahomed II., but
the character of his tenure was distinctly stated in the document by
which possession was given to him: "“Your father Shekh Mira Waikar
died this year, and the saranjam in his possession was thereupon placed
under attachment by Government. A petition having now been submitted
by you, it has been decided to continue the saranjam to youn as before,
for service to be rendered by you. The attachment has therefore been
removed, and ... this sanad has been issued to you. The amount which
is always paid from the Government treasury on account of the mokasa,
which forms part of the saranjam shall therefore continue to be paid
to you. As regards the alienated lands, you should take them back in
your possesston and enjoy them in accordance with past usage, end in
accordance with the agreement passed by you to Government you must
continue to honestly and faithfully perform the service.”

This last clause apparently relates to lands which had been alienated
by Shekh Mira 1I, but which, as the Government pointed out, he had
no right to do.

There were the terms on which Shekh Khan Mahomed II. acquired
the position of jaghirdar under the Rajah of Satara. He accepted that
position as the gift of the British Government, which had decided to
continue the saranjam to him. In this document there is no reference to
the descendants of Khan Mahomed, and the grant is made for service
to be rendered by him, and is in its terms personal. One of the'questions
to be determined in this case is whether, on the death of Khan Mahomed,
the Government had or had not the same power of deciding to whom
it would grant this saranjam, which it had exercised on the death of the
previous holder in favour of Khan Mahomed. In making that grant the
Government was, no doubt, influenced by the fact that Khan Mahomed
was the son of the previous jaghirdar, and that it was politically expe-
dient to continue the possession of the saranjam in the same family, but
there is nothing to shew that the Government recognised any right of
succession in the son; the language of the grants in the cases both of
Shekh Mira II. and Shekh Khan Mahomed IT., points in the opposite
direction. The practice of re-granting jaghirs to the sons of preceding
jaghirdars naturally had the effect of leading sons to expect to succeed
their fathers, and when this practice was long continued in one family,
the original character of the holding became obscured. This process has
been commented on by many writers on the subject in India. In the
Hon. Mauntstuart Elphinstone’s History of India, it is said (5th edition,

. p. 82): “Notwithstanding all these precautions, the usual consequences
of such grants (jaghir) did not fail to appear. The lands had from the
first a tendency to become hereditary, and the control of the Government
always grew weaker in proportion to the time that had elapsed from the
first assignment. The original principle of the grant, however, was never
lost sight of, and the necessity of observing its conditions was never
denied.” In the present instance, there was but the one re-grant to
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Khan Mahomed since the original grant to Shekh Mira, and in the re-
grant the character of the holding as saranjam (or jaghir) derived from
the dgcision of the Government in the applicant’s favour was expressly
stated.

In 1834 an inquiry arose as to the tenure of certain jaghirs in Khandesh,
and as to that of Shekh Mira. Mr. Warden, the Deputy Agent, writing
to Mr. Saville Marriott on the 3rd of January, 1834, says: “Shik Meera
Waeekar was a Satara feudatory chief, serving the Raja with a few horse,
and holding a saranjam for his life in Khandesh, T have referred to his
sunmd or title deed, and find that his estate was clearly a life grant, the
customary provision for the continuance of it by inheritance to be found
in the sunnads of all hereditary saranjamdars, being omitted, and the
usual form of life grants adopted,”

What document Mr. Warden refers to does not appear; possibly it
was the sanad of 1785,

In the course of the inquiry arising out of Mr.. Warden's report, Mr.
Elphinstone, who had been engaged i the settlement of the Deccan in
1818-19, was referred to by the Court of Directors for his advice, and he,
in the year 1838, recommended that all jaghirs “granted by the Mogul
Emperor or the Rajahs of Satara should be hereditary in the fullest
sense of the word”, and with regard to Shekh Mira, he stated that his
impression was that Shekh Mira's ancestor commanded a Mogul fort
at the time of the first conquest by the Mahrathas, and surrendered on
terms, one of which was the receipt of an hereditary jaghir. If this be
so ““we can have no right to resume his lands unless we can annul the
agreements of former Governments’’; and he added that a reference to
his secretary’s list of jaghirdars, prepared in 1818-19, would settle the
question.

Upon reference to this list (transmitted the 25th of October, 1819,
which is headed, “Mr. Elphinstone’s list of saranjams”) Shekh Mira’s
name appears. He is there stated to belong to the class of sirdars, or
great chiefs. It is stated that he made his submission the 28th of March,
having left the Peshwa at least a month before; that he is an old jaghir-
dar of the Shohoo Rajah, and under the heading “‘Decision’ is written:
“To have all his jaghirs except those in the Nizam's country on account
of his early submission and ancient family.” And under the heading,
“For what period recommended”, is written, ‘“Hereditary’'.

It has been seen, however, that this recommendation was not acted
upon at the time, and that the grant which was in fact made to Shekh
Mira did not contain any language importing that the grant was of an
hereditary jaghir.

In consequence of the advice of Mr. Elphinstone, the Court of Direc-
tors, in a Despatch of the 26th of October, 1842, directed that all jaghirs
in “Class” I. of Mr. Mill’s list which bears date anterior to 1751, be as
Mr. Elphinstone recommends, hereditary in the fullest sense of the word,
together with those of which the dates are unknown, but which are
known to be ancient. The latter class, though small, includes the three
resumed jaghirs of Shekh Meera, Sumsher Bahadur, and Eshwant,
Rao Dabhary. The first of these, already restored to the son of the last
holder, but for life only, ““must be considered hereditary™. :

It is to be observed with regard to this direction that it recognises
that the jaghirs of Shekh Mira have been restored to the son of the last
holder (that is, to Shekh Khan Mahomed IT., son of Shekh Mira I1.),
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but for life only, and that the time for taking any action with reference
to the succession would not arise in the ordinary course of things until
the death of Khan Mahomed. No fresh grant was made to Khan Maho-
med, and his rights must depend upon the grant which had in fact been
made to him on the death of his father. It remained for the Government,
when the necessity should arise, to determine to whom it should re-
grant, or in whom it should recognise a right of succession to the jaghirs
then possessed by Khan Mahomed.

This was the state of things down to 1857, when one Shaikh Sultan
Inamdar presented a petition to the Assistant Inam Commissioner. At
Satara complaining that, although he and others shared in the inams
held by the family of Khan Mahomed, their names were purposely
omitted by him {Khan Mahomed) in a genealogical table, which he
produced before the Mamletdar of Wai in a certain ingquiry afiecting
those shares, while a son of one Manik Dewtia was mentioned in it as
his (Khan Mahomed’s) son.

This petition was forwarded to the Magistrate of Satara who directed
an inquiry into the charge thus made against Khan Mahomed of putting
forward the child of another man as his own.

This inquiry was conducted by the first Assistant Magistrate Lieute-
nant Sandford (afterwards Sir Herbert Sandford), whom the Governor
in Council describes as a magistrate of great experience and intimate
knowledge of the people and politics of Satara. With him was associated
in the inquiry Gopalrao Hurry, of whom the Governor says that he was
an officer held in high estimation, who was afterwards raised to several
important judicial posts.

This inquiry appears to have been a preliminary investigation with
a view to considering the expediency of instituting criminal proceedings
against Khan Mahomed, and those supposed to have assisted him in
putting forward a supposititious child as his own.

This inquiry was conducted in a judical manner, the witnesses were
examined on oath, and Khan Mahomed was offered the opportunity of
cross-examining the witnesses who deposed against him, and he pro-
duced many witnessess in his defence.

In the result Lieutenant Sandford and Gopalrao Hurry concurred in
reporting that the charge had been established, and that the child put
forward by Khan Mahomed as his son, namely, the present Plaintiff, was
not his child, but the child of Manik.

The report of Lieutenant Sandford and the evidence taken by him were
transmitted by the Magistraie of Satara to Mr. Ellis, described as the
Acting Revenue Commissioner for Alienations, and were by him for-
warded to the Government at Bombay.

Mr. Ellis concurred in the view of Lieutenant Sandford, and he depre-
cated putting Khan Mahomed, and the others concerned on their trial,
and for reasons which he gave, he did not recommend the confiscation
of his saranjam, but suggested that the name of Khan Mahomed be
struck off the list of sirdars, and that he be deprived of all the honorary
privileges enjoyed by persons of his rank, the only exception in his
favour being the retention of the arrangement then in force, whereby
a portion of his saranjam was assigned to his creditors, and the balance
allowed to him for subsistence.

In a subsequent letter of Mr. Ellis to the Secretary to Government,
dated the 16th of April, 1858, he suggested that the Government should
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declare that even if Khan Mahomed “should leave a legitimate son, the
saranjam will not be continued to him”, ‘

This recommendation was ultimately, on the sth of April, 1860,
adopted by the Government, and communicated in a letter of that date
to the Revenue Commissioner for Alienation, Captain T. A. Cowper.

This resolution was communicated to Khan Mohamed, who thereupon,
on the zznd of QOctober, 1860, petitioned the Governor in Council to
review the proceeding.

The petition was referred to Mr. Inverarity, the Collector at Satara,
who on the 21st of March, 1861, reported that he was not of opinion that
Khan Mahomed had succeeded in shaking the validity of the evidence
which had been brought forward, and that he did not recommend that
a fresh inquiry be granted.

And on the 8th of April, 1861, Mr. Forbes, the Acting Secretary to the
Government, informed Mr. Inverarity that, on a review of all the circum-
stances of this case, His Excellency the Governor in Council was of opin-
ion that no reasons had been advanced by Khan Mahomed which would
justify the grant of a fresh inquiry, and that the decision which he
appealed against must therefore, be regarded as final.

Communication to this effect was directed to be made to Khan Maho-
med.

In 1863, Khan Mahomed again appealed to the Governor in Council,
and his memorial was referred to the Duke of Argyll, Secretary of State
for India in Council, who, on the 26th of Qctober, 1871, declined to
reopen the case.

Khan Mahomed died on the 31st of December, 1872. It then became
necessary to determine to whom his saranjam should be granted. Amongst
the candidates was Shekh Ajmodin, the present Respondent, a descend-
ant of Shekh Abdul Khan, the half-brother of Shekh Mahomed II.

This led to a resolution of the Government, dated the 23rd of October,
1873, “That the Agent for Sirdars should be requested to investigate
judicially, and after due notice to all parties concerned, whether Shekh
Ajmodin is under Mahomedan law the legitimate successor to the
headship of the family, either by adoption or descent.”

Baron Larpent, the Agent for Satara, in pursuance of the resolution
of the 23rd of October, 1873, prodeeced to investigate judicially the
questions referred to him after due notice to all parties concerned.
Amongst the parties who appeared before him were Sultan Khan Sani,
claiming to be the son of Khan Mahomed.

On the 28th of November, 1873, Baron Larpent made his report. The
important passages are as follows: ““The fourth issue remains for decisions
viz., Is Ajmodin, under Mahomedan law, the legitimate successor to the
headship of the family of Sahik Khan Mahomed? I think that there can
be no doubt he is not. As I have already said, Shekh Khan Mahomed
left a danghter, and she has sons, and these sons are nearer the head of
the family than the son of a daughter of Shekh Abdul Kadar. The deci-
sion as to who should be recognised by Government as head of this family
does not, in my opinien, rest on a consideration of who may be the next
of kin to Shekh Khan Mahomed under Mahomedan law. Government
appears to me to have decided in their letter, No. 1497 of the 5th April,
1860, that Shekh Khan Mahomed’s branch should forfeit all right to
succeed to the estate. Paragraph 6 is as follows: ‘Shaik Khan Mahomed
will not probably have another son of his own loins, but the Right
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Honourable the Governor in Council concurs with Mr. Ellis in consider-
ing that the Waikar should be told that even if he have a son, that son
will not be allowed to succeed... The forfeiture was imposed on account
of the fraud practised by Shekh IKhan Mahomed. His name also was
struck off the list of sirdars, and although subsequently the name was
re-entered, for certain reasons the order of forfeiture was not rescinded.
It appears to me, therefore, that any property, the succession to which
Government has the power to regulate, should go to Shekh Abdul Kadaris
heir, Ajmodin, both on the grounds of the former decision, and because of
the great wrongs which Khan Mahomed inflicted on his brother.”

On the 27th of March, 1874, the Government confirmed Baron Lar-
pent’s report in the following terms:—

“Resolution.—The proceedings of the Agent for Sirdars are approved,
and for the reasons given by Baron Larpent, Shekh Ajmodin should be
recognised as the head of family, to whom the saranjam should be contin-
ued. To avoid disputes the allowances for maintenance of the widows of
the decesased Shekh Khan Mahomed, and Shekh Abdul Kadar, and of
any others who have a claim for maintenance on the estate, should be
settled by order of Government after receiving the recommendation of
the Agent.

“The allowances now paid to Shekh Rakmodeen and to Rahimanbee,
under Government letter, No, 1293, of the 28th of March, 1861, should
be continued.”

And on the 18th of June, 1874, Lord Salisbury, as Secretary of State
in Council, expressed the Government approval of the above resolution
in these terms:—

“Inreply to the letter of Your Excellency’s Governinent in this depart-
ment, No. 17, of the 4th of May, 1874, in which you report the death of
Khan Mahomed Waikar, and the nomination by you of his kinsman
Ajmodin, a lineal descendant of the first British grantee, as the head of
the family, to whom the saranjam should be continued, I have to inform
you that I see no objection to this arrangement. Shekh Khan Mahomed’s
fraud in endeavouring to obtain the succession of a supposititious child
having been punished by the exclusion of his own progeny from the
succession, Her Majesty’s Government can only express their hope that
the branch of the family now installed may prove itself worthy of your
selection.”

In pursuance of these resolutions the whole of the jaghir and inam
incomes were made over to Shekh Ajmodin, and the Agent, and the
administrators of the estate which had been taken into the hands of the
Government, called on all persons to acknowledge him as owner. On the
6th of October, 1876, Colonel Etheridge, the Alienation Settlement
Officer, reported as follows:—

“He (Colonel Etheridge) is of opinion that as Government have sanc-
ioned the adopticn, the whole estate intact, saranjam and inam as restor-
ed after the war, under the treaty of the 3rd of July, 1820, is continuable
as a guaranteed estate to the adopted son (Ajmodin) as the head of the
family and should be entered in the accounts accordingly, the same as
all other treaty estate of saranjam and inam.”

On the 6th of November, 1876, Colonel Etheridge’s report was confirm-
ed by the Government in the following Resolution:—

“The suggestions of the Alienation settlement Officer are approved,
and should be carried out.”
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Thus it appears that the Government, on the death of Khan Mahomed,
resumed the saranjam held by him, and re-granted it to Ajmodin, on the
ground that the Government has the right to resume jaghirs. It is not
to be supposed that this right would be exercised capriciously, but
assuming it to exist, it would not be competent for any Court to review
this decision of the Government on the ground that the reasons upon
which it proceeded were erroneous. This Board, therefore, does not feel
called upon to express any opinion upon the question whether the
spurious birth of Sultan Sani has been established. Their Lordships,
however see no reason to doubt that the inquiry by Lieutenant Sandford
was conducted in a judicial manner, and that full opportunity was given
to the accused to cross-examine the witnesses called against him, and
to call witnesses in his favour. The good faith of Lieutenant Sandferd
and his coadjutor, Gopalrao Hurry, has not been called in question, and
the various persons whose duty it has been to consider the findings of
those officials have arrived at the conclusion that there was no ground
to set aside those findings. Their Lordships are of opinion that the ques-
tion to whom a saranjam or jaghir shall be granted upon the death of
its holder is one which belongs exclusively to the Government, to be
determined upon political considerations, and that it is not within the
competency of any legal tribunal to review the decision which the Gov-
ernment may pronounce. This principle is clearly expressed, not for the
first time, in Bombay Act VII, of 1863, sect. 2, clause 3, and is recognised
in cases where the question has been raised.

Thus far as to the saranjams claimed by the Appellant. It has been
contended that a different question arises with regard to the inams.
Their Lordships, however, are of opinion that no distinction can be drawn
between the inam and the other property in question. As has been pointed
out, the sanads of 1785 included the inam villages and lands with the
mokasa as parts of one saranjam for the support of troops. The effect
of the treaty of the 3rd of July, 1820, was to continue to Shekh Mira the
whole of the property, including the inam as a personal and military
jaghir. This was done by the Government on political considerations,
and the tenure thereby created was political. This was the view taken
by the Government in 1876, when it adopted the report of the Alienation
Settlement Officer, that “the whole estate intact, saranjam and inam,
as restored after the war under the treaty of the 3rd of July, 1820, is
continuable as a guaranteed estate to the adopted son” (Ajmodin) *“‘as
the head of the family”.

Their Lordships, therefore, concur in the opinion expressed by the
Governor in Council that a mixed estate of saranjam and inam was
granted by the treaty of July, 1820, to be held on the same political
tenure, and passed intact to the person whom the Government might
recognise as the head of the family, and that it is not competent for any
court of law to dispute it.

In this view of the case it is unnecessary to consider the various other
questions which have been discussed on the argument of this appeal.

Their Lordships will humbly report to Her Majesty that the decision
of the Governor in Council be affirmed. The Appellant must pay the
costs of the appeal.

Solicitors for Appellant: BrounTt, LvncH, & PETRE.
Solicitors for Respondent: Burtow, YeaTEs, HarT, & BURTON.
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Annex F. No. 36

Dec1sion 1N THE BARODA SarRan]AM CASE, BEFORE THE
HIGH COURT OF BoMBAY, 1928

INDIAN LAaw REPORTS
BomBay SerIEs, VoLuME LITI, 1929

APPELLATE CIVIL

Before Siv Charles Fawcett, Kt., Acting Chief Justice, and Mr. [ustice
Murphy

}3]25 16 SHRIMANT SAYAJI MAHARA]J GAIKWAR OF BARODA REPRE-
SENTED BY THE SAR SUBHA OF THE BARODA STATE (ORIGINAL DEFEND-
ANT No. 1), APPELLANT ». MADHAVRAO RAGUNATHRAO
DHAVALE AND OTHERS (ORIGINAL PLAINTIFF AND DEFENDANTS Nos. 2
TO 7}, RESPONDENTS L

Saranjom—Grant whether Inam o Saranjam—Jurisdiction of Crvil
Courts—Saranjam grant of Royal share of revenue—Grant by Saran-
jamdar of sotl together with wmirvasi rights thevein—Resumption and
regrant of Saranjam by DBritish Governmeni—Resumpiion operative on
marasi rights—Grantee takes the estate free from alienations by previous
holders— Alienation of mirasi rights by the Saranjamdar in favour of
stranger—Evidence of reswmplion—Indian Evidence Act (I of 1872),
section gI—Civil Procedure Code (Act V of 1908), section 86—Indian
Limitation Act (1X of 1908), sections 3, 13, and Article T42—Deduction
of time taken up in obtatning cevitficate to sue from Government of India—
Residence out of British India—Exclusion of time.

In the year 1728, Shahu Maharaj, the Raja of Satara, granted a village
in British India to Pillaji Gaikwar under a Sanad under which the village
was to be continued as Inam to Pillaji’s family from generation to gener-
ation. The grant was of the royal share of the revenue. In 1863 the then
Maharaja Khanderao Gaikwar granted the village to L; this grant was
in terms a grant of the soil including the mirasi rights in the lands in suit.
On L’s death in 1879, he was succeeded by his son and grandson, M and
R respectively. R leit two widows; C being the senior widow, her name
was entered as occupant of the lands, whereupon the Baroda State
contested the entry and succeeded in 1904 in getting it removed and the
name of the Gaikwar entered instead. In October 1905, C adopted the
plaintiff. The Baroda State succeeded in recovering possession of the
suit lands in 1906-07. On July 25, 1910, the plaintiff applied under section
86 of the Civil Procedure Code to the Government of India for permission
to file a suit against the Gaikwar in connection with these lands and got
the permission on November 15, 1920. He filed the present suit on June 2,
1922, to recover possession of the lands in suit. The trial Court decreed
the plaintiff’s claim. Defendant No. I appealed to the High Court:—

1 Appeal No. 244 of 1925 from the original decree passed b. V. C. Sane,
Joint First Class Subordieate at Poona, in Suit No. 593 of 1922,
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Held, (1) that the grant to the Gaikwar was one of Saranjam subject
to the restrictions that apply to the grant of that nature and that the
mere use of expressions such as grant of land “for ever” or from “gener-
ation to generation” in the grant did not prevent the grant being one
of Saranjam, nor was the use of “Inam’’ instead of “Saranjam’ in the
grant conclusive;

{2) that primarily it is for the Government to decide in any particular
case whether a political tenure such as Saranjam exists as enacted in
Bombay Act IT of 1863, section 16, and Bombay Act VII of 1863, section
32, and that the Civil Court cannot interfere with that decision;

Ramchandra v. Venkatrao * and Shekk Sultan Sani v. Shekh Ajmodin e,
followed:

(3) that the grant by Khanderao Gaikwar in 1862 being a grant of
the soil which covered the mirasi rights in the lands in suit, the Govern-
ment would be entitled to resume these rights as part of the Saranjam
estate:

Secretary of State for India v. Girjabai 3, followed :

(4) that the alienation of the mirasi rights in the lands in suit was not
valid and binding on any successor of the then Saranjamdar inasmuch
as it was an alienation to a stranger which conferred no benefit on the
Saranjam estate and was not acquiesced in by the holder:

Madhavrao Hariharvao v. Anusuyabait, Sakharam v. Trimbakras®
and Madhavrao Raste v. Inam$, referred to;

{5) that the act of resumption was not a matter which was required
by the law in force in British India to be reduced to writing under section
g1 of the Indian Evidence Act, nor was there any law in the Baroda
State where resumption was made, requiring the act of resumption to
be reduced to writing;

(6) that the plaintiff was not entitled to deduct the time spent in
obtaining a certificate under section 86 of the Civil Procedure Code to
file a suit against the Gatkwar in view of the express provisions of section
3 of the Indian Limitation Act:

Rupchand Makundas v. Mukunda Mahadev?, distinguished, and
Domun v. Shubul Koolall®, Deutsch Asiatische Bank v. Hira Lall Bardhan
& Sons?, referred to;

{7) that section 13 of the Indian Limitation Act must be read consist-
ently with sections 85, 86 and 87 of the Civil Procedure Code so far as
a Sovereign Prince or a Ruling Chief is concerned: such a Prince or Ruling
Chief can be held to reside in British India within the meaning of that
section, in so far as he actually carries on his business through his
representatives in British India:

1 (r88z) 6 Bom. 598 at p. 610.
2 (18g2) 17 Bom. 431 at p. 456.
? (1927) L. R. 54 LA, 359.

4 (r916) 40 Bom. 606.

% (1920) 23 Bom. L. R. 314.

$ (rgz5) 50 Bom. 195,

7 (1914) 38 Bom. 656.

3 (1868) 10 W. R. 253.

? {1918) 46 Cal. 5206.

30
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Atul Kristo Bose v. Lyon & Co. 1 and Poorno Chunder Ghose v, Sas-
soon t, not followed in regard to the case of a Sovereign Prince or Ruling
Chief; .

(8) that the suit was barred under Article 142 of the Indian Limitation
Act, in view of the fact that the suit was filed more than 12 years after
dispossession.

This was an appeal from the decision of V. G. Sane, Joint First Class
Subordinate Judge of Poona, in Suit No. 593 of 1g22—Suit to recover
possession with mesne profits.

The village of Davdi in the Poona District was in the year 1728 A.D.
conferred by Shahu Maharaj, the Raja of Satara, upon the then Gaikwar
Pallaji under a Sanad, Exhibit 180, which was worded as follows:—

“New Inam has been granted to Pillaji bin Gaikwar who is under
the control of Rajeshri Khanderao Dabhade Senapati. Because he
is a devoted servant of Swami (King), it is considered necessary to
support him and the King has been pleased with him and has granted
a new Inam of below-mentioned village to be enjoyed in lineal
succession from generation to generation:—

1 Mouje Davdi Tarf Chakan together with Kul Bab and Kul
Kanu exclusive of Hakdars and Inamdars.

* * % * * #

It was a grant of the royal share of the revenue. The lands in suit,
viz., Survey Nos. 1, 2, 3, 81, 8g, 100, I0I, 340, 343, 368 and 309 situate
in the said village of Davdi were in the possession and enjoyment of the
Gaikwar family from about 1834 to 1854.

In 1862 the then Gaikwar Khanderao made a grant of the village
Davdi to Limbaji, the ancestor of the plaintiff, in the following terms:—

“Knowing that you have been devotedly serving the State, the
Sarkar has graciously conferred upon you the village of Davdee
Tarafi Chakan, Zilla Poona, which is held by the State as a here-
ditary grant X (torn) X together with rates and taxes (torn)
rights of Patilship, four boundaries being defined, exclusive of
share and grant holders and inclusive of water, grass, herbs, wood
and trees, stone. quarries, mines and buried treasure has been
granted to you in perpetuity and without condition enjoying this
grant according to the prevailing system from generation to gener-
ation continue to serve the State lovally, faithfully and obediently.
The English Government will be addressed regarding the carrying
out of the grant of the village to you.”

The grant is a grant of the soil and is so worded as to show that
whatever rights the Gaikwar family had in the village Davdi were
assigned to the plaintifi's family, mncluding the mirast rights in the
lands in suit, enjoyed by the Gaikwar family from 1834 to 1854,

Limbaji died in 1879. On Limba}i’s death the Dewan ot Baroda passed
orders as per Exhibit 155 to the effect that the village of Davdi should
be continued to the son for life and until further orders. He was succeeded
by his son Madhavrao who held the lands in dispute till his death.

! (1887) 14 Cal. 457.
? (1898) 25 Cal. 496.
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Madhavrao’s son Raghunathrao was also the occupant of these lands
till 1go2 when he died leaving two widows Chandrabai and Sitabai.
Chandrabai being the senior widow, her name was entered by the Col-
lector as the occupant of these lands. The Baroda State contested this
entry and succeeded in 1904 in getting it removed and the name of the
Galkwar entered instead. In that year the Bombay Government declared
by their orders dated April 4, 1904 (Exhibit 1go0), that the grant by
Shahu Maharaj to the Gaikwar should be treated as a Saranjam formally
regranted to His Highness the present Gaikwar. In these orders the
Government clearly point out the nature of the tenure on which the
village Davdi was subsequently transferred by the Gaikwar to Limbaji
in 1862 and state that His Highness Khanderao Maharaj had no power
to confer on Limbajirao any tenure lasting beyond the former’s lifetime
and that so far as this grant purported to confer an heritable estate
beyond that pertod, it was invalid as against the British Government,

Chandrabai adopted the plaintiff in October 1g05. After the name of
the Gaikwar had been entered with the approval of the Government of
Bombay against these lands, the Baroda Durbar took action to take
possession. Among other things they entered into an agreement with
Sitabai on February 27, 1906, by which in consideration of a grant of
maintenance allowance, she assigned to the Gaikwar such rights she had
in the lands including those under rent notes which she had already
passed to certain tenants. The Gaitkwar then through his representative
took proceedings in the form of assistance suits with the result that
eventually he got possession of these lands some in 1906 and some in
1907.

On July 25, 1916, the plaintiff applied to the Government of India for
permission to file a suit against the Gaikwar of Baroda in connection
with these lands; but he did not get permission to file the suit until over
four years afterwards, namely on November 15, 1920. Plaintiff filed the
present suit on June 2, 1g922. In his plaint he claimed that he was entitled
to exclude the period from July 23, 1916, to November 15, 1920, which
had been spent in obtaining the necessary certificate under section 86
of the Code of Civil Procedure.

The trial Court held that the plaintiff was the validly adopted son
of Raghunathrao Dhavale, that he was the owner of the lands in suit on
the ground that in spite of resumption and regrant of the village Davdi
to the present Gaikwar by the British Government the mirasi rights
enjoyed by the Dhavale family in the lands in suit remained unaffected,
that he was entitled to exclude the time spent in obtaining the necessary
certificate under section 86 of the Code of Civil Procedure and that the
suit was in time by reason of section 13 of the Indian Limitation Act and
decreed the plaintiff’s claim as per its decree dated April 6, 1925.

Defendant No. 1 appealed to the High Court.

H. C. Coyajee, with R. W. Desai, for the appellants:—It has been
found by the lower Court that before the grant to Limbaji in 1862, the
lands in suit were held by His Highness the Gaikwar’s family as mirasi
lands, that by the grant Limbaji's family became entitled to the mirasi
rights in the suit lands, to the Patilki rights in four survey numbers not
in suit, and to the right to recover the royal share of the revenue of the
village Davdi which the Gaikwar was entitled to receive till then. In
other words, Limbaji's family acquired the rights as mirasdars in the -
suit lands by virtue of the grant of ¥862. It is not the plaintiff’s case that
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Limbaji’s family acquired these mirasi rights subsequent to and indepen-
dently of their grant in 1862 as inamdars by reason of any forfeiture,
lapse or resumption. Thus Secretary of State v. Girjabai ! relied upon by
the lower Court, does not apply, but the remarks at pages 1186 and 1189
make the point clear, and the view there expressed is accepted by the
Privy Council in Secvetary of State for India v. (rivjabai ®: seealso Secrelary
of State for India in Council v. Laxmibai . Further, the grant to Limbaji
has been, as found by the lower Court, not only of the right to receive
the royal share of the revenue but of the soil also. When the Gaekwar
resumned the grant he acquired also the mirasi rights which Limbaji
might have acquired during the continuance of the grant. The view of
the lower Court that there was no formal order of resumption on the
death of Madhavrao is not correct, in view of the protests made by H. H,
the Gaekwar, when the village was entered in the name of Raghnunath-
rac by the Collector, and on Raghunathrao’s death in the name of his
widow Chandrabai, and the representation made by the Gaekwar, In
1904 the Bombay Government formally resumed the village and re-
granted it to the Gaekwar. The effect of the resumption and regrant is
that the grant to Limbaji is resumed and along with the resumption of
the village of Davdi, the mirasi rights in the suit lands, which Limbaji
acquired along with the said village, were also resumed. The Bombay
Government had, in passing the resolution, made the position clear that
the grant by Shahu Maharaj to Khanderao Gaekwar was made as a
Saranjam, and that a grant by the Saranjamdar in excess of his powers
would not bind his successors.

Moreover, the plaintifi’s claim is clearly barred. The plaintiff is not
entitled to claim exemption of the period required for getting the certi-
ficate under section 86 of the Civil Procedure Code. There is nothing
in the Indian Limitation Act to allow such an exemption. The case of
Rupchand Makundas v. Mukunda Mahadev® is clearly distinguishable,
as it was a case under section 48 of the Dekkhan Agriculturists’ Relief
Act, which section expressly provides for exclusion of the period required
in obtaining a conciliator’s certificate. The maxim ‘‘lex non cogit ad
impossibilia” cannot apply to the present case. There was no real hard-
ship or impossibility in the case. The plaintiff allowed nine years to
pass before applying for permission and waited another eighteen months
after getting the permission before he brought the suit: see Jamini v.
Nagendra® and Jag Lal v. Har Narain Singh®.

Section 13 of the Indian Limitation Act does not apply for twe
reasons. First, the section must be read with sections 84, 85, 86 of the
Civil Procedure Code. The residence of a Ruling Chief is not relevant,
What is relevant is the consent of the Government. The word “defendant”
is defined in the Civil Procedure Code, and it must be interpreted in the
light of the relevant provisions of the Code. Secondly, the section does
not apply to suits for possession brought on the ground of dispossession.
To such a suit Article 142 of the Indian Limitation Act applies: see

! {1924) 26 Bom. L. R. 1173.
® (1927) L. R. 54 I. A, 350.
? {19zz) L. R. 50 1. A. 4q.

¢ {1914} 38 Bom. 656.

* {19z5) 43 Cal. L. J. 155.

# (1888) 10 All. 524.
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Harvinglon v. Gonesh Rov 1. The cases of Atul Kristo Bose v. Lyon & Co.?
and Poorno Chunder Ghose v. Sassoon ® are not directly in point. This
being an ejectment suit, the plaintiff must succeed on the strength of
his own title.

. S. Rao, for the respondent:—The original grant is only a grant of
the royal share of the revenue. It was an inam grant to the Gaekwar
and his descendants from generation to generation; in other words, it
was a hereditary and absolute grant. The use of the word “inam’’ in the
Sanad shows that the grant was inam and not Saranjam. The subsequent
grant to the plaintiff's ancestor Limbaji by Khanderao Gaekwar was
a grant, in consideration of faithful services rendered by the former,
of the Patilki watan conveying the soil also, and not merely a grant of
the royal share of revenue. The plaintiff’'s family became entitled to the
mirasi rights in the suit lands, to the Patilki rights in the four lands not
in suit, and to the right to recover the royal share of the revenue which
rhe Gaekwar was entitled to receive till then. The orders passed by the
Divan of Baroda in 1879 clearly show that the grant was to continue
during the lifetime of Limbaji’s son and until further orders. No orders
were passed by the Gaekwar putting an end to the grant, in fact there
was no resumption. There has been no reference to any resumption even
in the written statement of the defendant. The agreement made between
Sitabai and the officers of the Gaikwar shows that up to the date of the
grant in 1906, there was no resumption. On the strength of this agreement,
rent suits were filed in 1go6-08.

Rule 5 of the Saranjam Rules does not prohibit alienations of Saranjam
estate as in the case of watan estate or cases falling under section 56
of the Land Revenue Code: see Madhavrao Hartharrao v. Anusuyabai *;
Sakharam v. Trimbakrao® and Madhavrao Raste v. Imam®. A grant of
mirasi tenure is not an alienation but an act of management binding
on the successors of the Saranjam estate: see Sakharam v. Trimbakrao®
and Madhavrao Raste v. Imam® Rule 5 does not expressly prohibit
alienation by way of mirasi rights. The Privy Council case of Secretary
of State for India v. Girjabai® does not decide the question whether a
Saranjamdar can create mirasi rights in favour of strangers, but it
leaves the question open. The grant in favour of plaintiff’s ancestors
has never been impeached: the defendants’ ancestors have acquiesced
in it.

Asregards limitation, although the plaintiff's right to recover possession
accrued in 1gob-o7, still he is entitled to dednct the time required in
obtaining the permission of the Governor General in Council to file a
suit against defendant No. 1, under section 86 of the Civil Procedure
Code. The maxim "lex non cogit ad impossibilia’’ applies: see The Gener-
ous®: Hick v. Rodocanachi ®: Mayer v. Harding ''; and Rupchand

1 {1884} 10 Cal. 440 at p. 442.
? (1887} 14 Cal. 457.

3 (1898) 25 Cal. 496.

4 (1916) 40 Bom. 606.

& (1920) 28 Bom. L. R. 314.

¥ {1925) 50 Bom. 193.

? {(1920) 23 Bom. L. R. 314.

¢ (rgzy) L. R. 54 I A. 350.

® (1818} 2 Dodson Adm. R. 322.
10 [1891] 2 Q. B. 6206 at p. 638.
1 11867) L. R. 2 Q. B. 410,
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Makundas v. Mukunda Mahadev 1, see also section 13, Indian Limitation
Act. The word “defendant’ is as much applicable to a Ruling Chief
as to any other individual: see Atul Kriste Bose v. Lyon & Co.2 and
Poorno Chunder Ghose v. Sassoon 3.

Coyajee, in reply:—There can be no case of acquiescence on the part
of the Saranjamdar, in view of the protests made by H. H. the Gaekwar
from time to time. It is not a case of a transfer of mirasi rights in favour
of strangers, the transfer was of the whole village of Davdi including
the mirasi rights in the suit lands. In fact the grant was a grant of a
village intact. It was not as if Khanderao was creating occupancy rights
in favour of outsiders. The grant that was made to Limbaji was not on
account of any unavoidable necessity. The grant to Limbaji was not in
consideration of past services, but was by way of remuneration for
military services—first as Binidar and subsequently as Senapati—to be
rendered by Limbaji. The order passed by the Minister of Baroda Sir
T. Madhav Rao makes it clear that so far as Limbaji’s father was
concerned he was an unknown quantity in the Baroda State and Limbaji
himself began his career as folder of turbans in the military camp.

As regards the point left open by the Privy Council in the case of
Secretary of Stale for India v. Girjabai %, it should be observed that there
was no benefit reserved to the State by the grant of mirasi rights. I call
attention to this distinction which has been referred to in the judgment
of this Court in Girjabai’s case®, at page 1180.

On the question of limitation, the plaintiff does not offer any ex-
planation as to why there was a delay of ten years in applying for
permisston under section 86 of the Civil Procedure Code. If section 13
of the Indian Limitation Act is held to apply it would mean that there
is no period of limitation as against a Ruling Chief, which would be going
contrary to section 3 of the Act.

FAWCETT, AG. C. J.:—In this suit against the Gaikwar of Baroda,

- the plaintiff seeks to recover possession of certain lands situate in the
village Davdi, in the Poona District, to which he claims to be entitled
as the adopted son of one Raghunathrao, who died in February 1goz.
There is now no dispute that the plaintiff was in fact validly adopted by
Raghunathrao’s widow Chandrabai in October 1905, The main question
in dispute is whether these lands vested in the plaintiff at his adoption,
or, as the Gaikwar of Baroda alleges, had been validly resumed by him
prior to the plaintifi’ adoption. Then there is a subsidiary issue as to
whether the plaintiff’s suit is not in any case time-barred.

The main {acts may be briefly stated. The village of Davdi was in the
year 1728 A.D. conferred by Shahu Maharaj, the Raja of Satara, upon
the then Gaikwar, Pilaji, under a Sanad which is Exhibit 180. The lands
in suit are proved by evidence in this case to have been in the enjoyment
of the Gaikwar or members of his family from about 1834 to 1854. In
1862 the then Gaikwar, Khanderao, made a grant of the village to one
Limbaji, who was the grandfather of Raghunathrao, The grant 1s worded
s0 as to confer even more than what was granted by the original Sanad
of 1728, and would certainly cover the particular lands in suit. Limbaji

! {1974} 38 Bom. 656.

2 (1887) 14 Cal. 457.

¥ {1898} 25 Cal. 406.

4 (r927) L. R. 54 L. A. 350.
5 (1924) 26 Bom. L., R. 11%3.
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died in 1879 and was succeeded by his son Madhavrao, There is evidence
that Madhavrao had possession and that after his death in 1g9oo the
lands were in the occupation of his son Raghunathrao till his death in
February 1902. Raghunathrao’s name had been entered by the Collector
of Poona as the occupant of these lands in 1g01. Raghunathraoe left two
widows, Chandrabai and Sitabai; and the name of Chandrabai was then
entered by the Collector because she was the senior widow of Raghu-
nathrao. The Baroda Darbar contested this entry, and succeeded in
1904 in getting it removed, and the name of the Gaikwar entered instead.
As already mentioned Chandrabai adopted the plaintiff in October 1905,
After the name of the Gaikwar had been entered with the approval of
Government of Bombay against these lands, the Baroda Darbar took
action to take possession. Among other things, they entered into an
agreement with Sitabai on February 27, 1906, by which in consideration
of a grant of a maintenance allowance she assigned to the Gaikwar such
rights as she had in the lands, including those under rent notes that she
had already passed to certain tenants. The Gaikwar then through his
representative took proceedings in the form of assistance suits with the
result that he eventually got possession of these lands, some in 1906,
and some in 1go7. The plaintiff applied on July 25, 1916, to the Govern-
ment of India for permission to file a suit against the Gaikwar of Baroda
in connection with these lands. But he did not get permission to file the
suit until over 4 years afterwards, namely on November 15, 1920. He
then brought the present suit on June 2, 1g22, in order to recover pos-
session with mesne profits, as already mentioned. In his plaint he claims
that he was entitled to exclude the period from July 25, 1916, to Novemn-
ber 15, 1920, which had been spent in obtaining the necessary certificate
under section 86 of the Code of Civil Procedure, in calculating the period
of limitation of the suit, and that therefore the suit was not barred. The
two main issues, therefore, were the 2nd and 4th of those framed by the
Subordinate Judge, namely, (1) “Is it proved that the plaintiff is the
owner of the lands in suit?” and (z) “‘whether the plaintiff’s suit is
within time."”’

As to the first issue, the original grant to the Gaikwar (Exhibit 180)
was a grant merely of tand revenue and not of the soil, as is mentioned
in paragraph 7 of the Subordinate Judge's judgment and is common
ground before us. Government in their Resolution of rgo4, which is
Exhibit A in this appeal, held that that grant was one of Saranjam. [ may
here mention that Exhibit A was admitted by consent in this appeal in
view of the fact that a copy of the same Resclution had been tendered
in the lower Court but had been rejected as being a copy of a copy,
and therefore technically inadmissible. This Court also considered it
highly desirable that the original Resolution should be on the record of
the case. Therefore, it has been admitted, as additional evidence in appeal
under Order XLI, rule 27, Civil Procedure Code. The Gaikwar accepts
the position that in fact this was a Saranjam grant. 1t is contended by
Divan Bahadur Rao for the plaintiff-respondent that really it is not a
Saranjam grant but an ordinary inam grant without any of the
restrictions connoted by the word “Saranjam'”. Divan Bahadur Rao points
out that the grant contains wide words namely ““a new Inam’’ of the
villages mentioned “to be enjoyed in lineal succession from generation to
generation™ and that the word used is “inam’ and not “‘Saranjam’’.
But, in my opinion, this does not justify this Court in differing from the
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-view that Government had taken on this point. Primarily, it is for
Government to determine in any particular case of this kind, whether a
political tenure such as Saranjam exists. This is enacted in Bom, Act 11
of 1863, section 16, and Bom. Act VII of 1863, section 32 (cf. Act XI of
1852, Schedule B, clause 10). It has accordingly been laid down in
Ramchandra v. Venkatrao * and in Shkekk Sultan Sani v. Shekh Afmodin
that questions of this kind are primarily for Government to decide and
that no civil Court can interfere with their decision. The last mentioned
case also points out that the mere use of wide expressions such as the
grant of land “for ever’” or “from generation to generation’ does not
prevent the grant being one of Saranjam. Nor again is the use of the word
“inam’’ instead of “Saranjam’’ conclusive. The grant is mentioned as
being given to Limbaji by virtue of his rank of Senapati, a military title,
and of his being a devoted servant of the king; this supports the view
that the grant was one primarily for military purposes, so as to fall
under the description of Saranjam. Again, the grant has been so shown
in the Alienation Register kept under section 53 of the Land Revenue
Code. Even before the Resolution of 1904 it was so shown, as is mentioned
in paragraph 3 of the letter of the Commissioner, C. D., dated May 35,
1903, which is recited in the preamble of that Resolution. Therefore, I
am of opinion that this grant to the Gaikwar must be held to be one of
Saranjam, and subject to the restrictions that apply to a grant of that
nature.

The grant by Khanderao Gaikwar to Limbaji in 1862 was undoubtedly
a grant of the soil, as has been held by the Subordinate Judge in para-
graph g of his judgment, as it uses words which are associated with a
grant of the soil. Divan Bahadur Rao contends that such a grant would
cover mirast rights in the lands in suit. That is a contention which, I
think, must be conceded. Those rights are shown by Exhibits 197 and
202 to have vested in the Gaikwar, whose family cultivated them through
servants. How exactly they acquired such rights is not in evidence, but
it has been common ground before us that they were presumably
acquired by virtue of the powers of management that a Saranjamdar or
Inamdar has to utilise vacant lands for the best purpose available, or to
dispose of lands, that have lapsed either through forfeiture, resignation
or want of heirs. There is no evidence of this, but for the purpose of this
suit, that may, 1 think, be taken to be the manner in which the Gaikwar
obtained possession, in the absence of anything suggesting that the
Gaikwar had acquired any rights in these lands apart from the grant of
the village to him in 1728.

That being so, Divan Bahadur Rao further contends that these mirasi
rights would not be resumable under the Saranjam rules or otherwise,
assuming that the original grant of 1728 is one of Saranjam. The Sub-
ordinate Judge's remark in paragraph 8 of this judgment that "it is
immaterial whether the rights to these lands were held by the Gaikwar
before the grant by Raja Shahu or thereafter” is clearly wrong in view
of the decision of their Lordships of the Privy Council in Secretary of
State for India v. Girfabai 1. As | have already stated there is no suggest-
ion in this case that the Gaikwar acquired any right in these lands prior

! (1882) 6 Bom. 598 at p. 610,
2 (1892) 17 Bom. 431 at p. 456.
3 (1927) L. R. 54 1. A. 350.
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to the grant of 1728, and, therefore, the case is one which is of a similar
nature to that which was the subjectmatter of the decision in Girjfabai’s
case ', That also was a case of iand included in a Saranjam grant of the
revenue of certain villages, and the Privy Council held that land included
in such a Saranjam grant, which had passed into the possession of the
Saranjamdar upon the Khatedar’s family becoming extinct, or through
his default in payving the revenue, did not go as the private property of
the Saranjamdar to his heirs, but was property, which, on the death
of the Saranjamdar, Government was entitled to resume as part of the
Saranjam estate. In the present case, however, the Saranjamdar trans-
ferred his rights in these lands to a third party, and their Lordships in
Girjabai’s case ' kept open the point whether a Saranjamdar could create
rights in favour of third persons by virtue of his powers of management,
which would not be resumable but could be treated as the private
property of such third party. It is, therefore, contended that this case
1s not governed by Gérjabai’s case 1, and that the alienation of the mirasi
rights in these lands by the Gaikwar Khanderao in 1862 to the great
grandfather of the plaintiff is valid and binding on any successor of the
then Saranjamdar, Khanderao. In support of this contention Divan
Bahadur Rao has cited Madhavrao Hariharrao v. Anusuyabai®, Sak-
havam v. Trimbakrao ® and Madhavrao Raste v. Imam*. It is unfortunate
for him that I am rather tied in regard to this point by the opinion I have
already expressed against such a contention, or at any rate against the
contention that, in every case, an alienation of this kind is binding upon
a Saranjamdar’s successors. I refer to my remarks in Secrefary of State
v. (rirjabai®, with regard to the decisions in Madhavrao Hariharrao v.
Anusiwyabar ® and Sakharam v. Trimbakrao ®. It is true that in Madhavrao
Raste v. Imam* | was a party to a decision that the grant of mirasi
rights is not necessarily an alienation invalid beyond the life-time of
the Saranjamdar making the grant, That decision draws a distinction
between an alienation of mirasi rights to a stranger which confers no
benefit on the Saranjam estate and a grant of such rights to a cultivator
for the benefit of the estate. At page 438 I pointed out that none of the
kabulayats conferred a rent-free estate. At page 439 I said that each
case must stand on its own facts. I further remarked that there had
been acquiescence in the grant by the plaintifi’s predecessor-in-title, and
under the circumstances I held that there was a legitimate presumption
that the grant had been made for necessary purposes and, therefore, was
binding on the present Saranjamdar. Such a case is on a quite different
footing to the one we have to consider in the present suit. Here the alien-
ation was one which is absolutely rent-free. No benefit is reserved to the
Saranjam estate in the way of rent or in any other manner. The rents
of these lands all went into the pocket of Limbaji and his descendants,
Limbaji appears from the remarks of Sir T. Madhavrao in Exhibit 195
to have been an undeserving favourite of Khanderao; and although he
is represented in a better light in Madhavrao’s petition of 1880 (Exhibit
186}, he had no previous connection with this estate. Far from there

1 {1927) L. R. 54 I. A. 359.

{1916) 40 Bom. 606.

(rgzo) 23 Bom. L. R. 314.

(1925) 28 Bom. L. R. 433; 50 Bom. 195.

(1924) 26 Bom. L. R. 1173 at p. 1191; 490 Bom. 126.
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having been any acquiescence on the part of the present Gaikwar, who
succeeded to the Gadi in about 1874-1875, we find that upon Limbaji’s
death in 1879, clear orders were passed that his son Madhavrao was held
to have no right to a continuance of the village, but it was continued
for his life-time and until further orders as an act of grace (see paragraphs
6, 7 and 8 of the orders in Exhibit 195). These orders were enforced, as
clearly appears from Madhavrao’s petition dated July 8, 1880 (Exhibit
186}, where he says that the decision was enforced by the attachment of
the village of Matraj and by the withdrawal of certain allowances. In
view of these circumstances, [ think that this is clearly not a case of an
alienation that can properly be held to bind the successor of Khanderao
Gaikwar. In regard to such an alienation 1 adhere to the view I have
expressed in Secretary of State v. Girjabai  and Madhavrao Raste v. Imam?®,
Therefore, 1 differ from the view expressed by the Subordinate Judge in
paragraph 10 of his judgment that the rights of the Dhavle family
remained unaffected by the formal resumption of the Saranjam in 1904
by the Bombay Government and its regrant to the present Gaikwar.
Upon such regrant the Saranjam estate would pass as an estate unbur-
dened by any alienation that is not binding beyond Khanderao’s life-
time. If there was any technical defect in the validity of any prior
resumption by the Gaikwar, that would be cured by the o